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To
The Members of 
Prime Focus Limited

Your Company’s Directors are pleased to present the Eighteenth Annual Report and th e Audited Statements of the Accounts for the fi nancial year ended 
June 30, 2015.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

 The Consolidated and Standalone Audited Financial Results for the year ended June 30, 2015 are as follows:
            (` In lacs)

Particulars

Consolidated Standalone

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

(12 months) (15 months) (12 months) (15 months)

Income from operations 153797.45 103,272.16 11349.36 27,354.79

Other operating income 6961.09 4869.71 1010.14 175.40

Total income from operations 160758.54 108141.87 12359.50 27530.19

Less: Expenses 158749.98 101,639.25 9892.01 22,648.91

Add: Other income 1955.95 4601.01 1102.59 3693.81

Less: Finance costs 7272.55 6,867.60 2466.79 2,810.83

Less: Exceptional items 24754.80 1,740.65 1570.32 -171.51

Less: Tax expense 3252.51  707.93  2343.98  -446.50 

Less: Minority interest -2093.07 -638.69 - -

Net Profi t/Loss for the period -29222.28  2426.14  (2811.01)  6382.27 

2. OPERATIONS AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW

 During the year under review, on consolidated basis, total income of the Company and its subsidiaries stood to be ` 160758.54 lacs as compared to 
` 108141.87 lacs in the previous year.

 On standalone basis, total income during the year was ` 12359.5 lacs as compared to ` 27530.19 lacs in the previous year. Profi t before exceptional 
items and and tax during the period was ̀  1103.28 lacs as compared to ̀  5764. 26 lacs in the previous year. The Net (loss)/profi t aft er tax was ̀  (2811.01) 
lacs as compared to ` 6,382 lacs in the previous year.

 A detailed analysis on the Company’s performance, both Consolidated & Standalone, is included in the “Management Discussion & Analysis” Report 
which forms part of this Annual Report.

3. DIVIDEND

 In view of the losses in Financial Year 2014-15, your Board did not recommend any dividend for its equity shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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4. SHARE CAPITAL

 During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the 
Company was increased from ` 25,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty Five 
Crores Only) divided into 25,00,00,000 (Twenty Five Crores) equity 
shares of ` 1/- (Rupee One Only) each to ` 35,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty 
Five Crores Only) divided into 35,00,00,000 (Thirty Five Crores) equity 
shares of ` 1/-(Rupee One Only) each. 

 The Company had issued and allott ed 90,384,615 equity shares of 
` 1/- each to Reliance MediaWorks Limited and 23,076,923 equity 
shares of ` 1/- each to Monsoon Studio Private Limited aggregating to  
113,461,538 equity shares of `  1/- each on April 7, 2015 at a price of ` 
52/- per share (including a premium of ` 51/- per share) on Preferential 
basis thereby triggering an open off er limit of 26%. Hence Reliance 
MediaWorks Limited together with Person Acting in Concert namely 
Reliance Land Private Limited, Namit Malhotra, Naresh Malhotra and 
Monsoon Studio Private Limited made open off er to the shareholders 
of the company for the acquisition upto 7,77,08,534 fully paid up 
equity shares of face value ` 1/- each from the public shareholders of 
the company constituting 26% of the full diluted voting equity capital 
of the company.

 During the process of open off er, Reliance MediaWorks Limited 
acquired 4,36,95,446 equity shares and Monsoon Studio Private 
Limited acquired 44,29,172 equity shares from the public shareholders 
pursuant to Chapter II Regulation 3(2) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition 
of Shares and Takeover) Regulations, 2011.

 Consequent to the aforesaid allotment, the issued, subscribed 
and paid-up equity share capital of the Company increased to 
` 29,88,78,974/- comprising of 29,88,78,974 equity shares of ` 1/-
each from ` 18,54,17,436/- comprising of 18,54,17,436 equity shares 
of ` 1/-each.

5. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME (ESOP)

 In the Board of Directors’ meeting held on July 02, 2014, approval was 
granted to introduce and implement Employee Stock Option Scheme 
titled ‘PFL-ESOP Scheme 2014’ whereby stock options upto 6% of the 
paid up capital of the Company (post aforesaid preferential allotment) 
aggregating 17,932,738 stock options would be issued to eligible 
employees of the Company, its subsidiaries and associates. The said 
scheme was approved by the shareholders in the Extra-ordinary 
General Meeting held on August 01, 2014.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING THE 
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 

 During the year under review, following material changes took place: 

A. Merger of Double Negative Holdings Limited (Double Negative) 
with PFW’s VFX business:

 Eff ectively July 01, 2014, Prime Focus World N.V. (‘PFWNV’) 
forming part of the group, closed the transaction relating to the 
merger of Double Negative, one of the largest Visual eff ects 
services providers to the global fi lm industry pursuant to a share 
sale agreement date June 25, 2014. This agreement has created 
the World’s largest independent VFX, stereo conversion and 
animation company serving the Hollywood fi lm industry and 
Double Negative has now become a wholly owned subsidiary of 
PFWNV.

B. Prime Focus and Gener8 signed Technology Licensing 
Partnership

 Prime Focus had entered into a licensing and 3D conversion 
partnership with Canadas Gener8 Media Corp. (“Gener8” or “the 
Company”), a global leader in 3D conversion technology, which 
shall secure an exclusive worldwide license to use the Company’s 
proprietary 3D conversion technology G83D™ throughout the 
entertainment industry.

C. Acquisition of Film and Media business:

 The Company acquired the Film and Media Services business of 
Reliance MediaWorks Limited (“RMW”) on a slump sale basis as a 
going concern along with the assets and liabilities at a lump sum 
consideration of ` 350 crore.

 There were no material changes and commitments aff ecting the 
fi nancial position of the Company which have occurred between the 
end of fi nancial year of the Company to which the Financial Statements 
relate and the date of this Report.

7. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

 During the year under review, there were no signifi cant or material 
orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future 
operation. 
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Board of the Company has formed a Risk Management Committ ee 
and a policy to frame, implement and monitor the risk management 
plan for the Company. The Policy covers the various risks associated 
with the Company while executing its object. The Policy aims to 
assess the risk, manage it and monitor it so as to keep the risk at 
zero level or minimum level. The Risk Management Committ ee 
shall be responsible to monitor and review the risk management 
plan of the Company. The Company is committ ed to manage 
risk in a manner appropriate to achieve its strategic objectives.
For further details, please refer to the Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report which forms part of the  Annual Report.

9. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

 The Company is constantly endeavouring to improve the standards 
of internal control in various areas and taking steps to strengthen the 
internal control system to make it commensurate with the size of the 
respective entities and the nature of their business. Signifi cant audit 
observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit 
Committ ee. The Audit Committ ee reviews adequacy and eff ectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control environment and monitors the 
implementation of audit recommendations, including those relating 
to strengthening of the Company’s risk management policies and 
systems. For further details, please refer to the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report which forms part of the Annual Report.

10. HUMAN RESOURCES

 Human Resource is considered as one of the most critical resource in 
the business which can be continuously smoothened to maximizethe 
eff ectiveness of the organization. Human Resources build the 
Enterprise and the sense of belonging would inculcate the spirit of 
dedication and loyalty amongst them towards strengthening the 
Company’s Policies and Systems. All personnel continue to have 
healthy, cordial and harmonious approach thereby enhancing the 
contributory value of the Company. The Company has generally 
enjoyed cordial relations with its personnel.

 Further, the total number of personnels of the Company as on June 30, 
2015 is over 6,000. 

11. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

 The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace 
and has a mechanism in place for prevention, prohibition and redressal 

of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention 
and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. The 
Company is committ ed to providing equal opportunities without 
regard to their race, caste, sex, religion, colour, nationality, disability, 
etc. All employees are treated with dignity with a view to maintain a 
work environment free of sexual harassment whether physical, verbal 
or psychological. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, 
trainees) are covered. 

 The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line 
with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal 
Complaints Committ ee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints 
received regarding sexual harassment.

 During the year under review, Company has not received any complaints 
on sexual harassment.

12. DEBENTURES

 During the year under review, Company issued 4,891 unlisted, unrated 
Redeemable Debentures not convertible into Equity Shares of the 
Company of ` 100,000/- each aggregating to ` 48.91 Crore to meet 
general corporate purposes.

13. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public falling 
within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013(“Act”) read 
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

14. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

 The Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 pursuant to Section 
92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 is annexed as ANNEXURE-A to this 
Report.

15. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, applicable 
Accounting Standards and the provisions of the Listing Agreement 
with the Stock Exchanges and forms part of the Annual Report. 
Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing 
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the salient features of the fi nancial statements of the subsidiary 
companies is att ached to the Financial Statements in Form AOC-1. 
The Company will make available the said fi nancial statements and 
related detailed information of the subsidiary companies upon the 
request by any member of the Company or its subsidiary companies. 
These fi nancial statements will also be kept open for inspection by any 
Member at the Registered Offi  ce of the Company.

 Pursuant to the provisions of section 136 of the Act, the Audited 
fi nancial statements of the Company, consolidated fi nancial 
statements along with relevant documents and separate Audited 
Accounts in respect of subsidiaries, are available on the website of the 
Company viz.www.primefocus.com.

16. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES

 During the year, the following changes have taken place in subsidiary 
companies:

a. Companies which have become subsidiaries:

1. Gener8 India Media Services Limited (formerly known as Prime 
Focus Entertainment Services Limited/Reliance MediaWorks 
Entertainment Services Limited) -Subsidiary of the Company 

2. Reliance MediaWorks (Mauritius) Limited - Subsidiary of the 
Company

3. Reliance Lowry Digital Imaging Services Inc. - Subsidiary of 
Reliance MediaWorks (Mauritius) Limited

4. Double Negative Holdings Limited - Subsidiary of Prime Focus 
World N.V.

5. Gener8 Digital Media Services Limited - Subsidiary of PF World 
Limited

6. Double Negative Limited - Subsidiary of Double Negative 
Holdings Limited

7. Double Negative Singapore Pte. Limited- Subsidiary of Double 
Negative Holdings Limited

8. Double Negative Films Limited- Subsidiary of Double Negative 
Holdings Limited

9. Double Negative Canada Productions Limited - Subsidiary of 
Double Negative Holdings Limited

b. Companies ceased to be subsidiary companies

 Based on the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company vide 
Resolution dated March 31, 2015, the entire holding of 21,492,003 
ordinary shares in Prime Focus London Plc, a Company incorporated in 
the UK was sold at a total consideration of £ 399,751.26 (@1.86 pence 
each).  Prime Focus London Plc and its following subsidiaries cease to 
be subsidiaries of Prime Focus Limited.

 1. Prime Focus London Plc, UK 8. VTR Media Services Limited

 2. VTR Media Investments Limited  9. PF Broadcast & Commercial Limited

 3. Busy Buses Limited  10. Prime Focus Broadcast Limited

 4. Clipstream Limited 11. VTR Post Limited

 5. VTR Media Investments 2 Limited 12. Prime VFX Limited 

 6. DMJM Film Limited 13. PF Broadcast VFX Limited

 7. Prime Focus Productions 5 Limited 14. PF Film UK Limited
c. Joint Venture / Associates Companies

 a.  Joint Venture

 No Company has become / ceased to be a joint venture during the 
fi nancial year 2014-15.

 b. Associates Companies 

 Acquired 30% ownership interest in Digital Domain - Reliance 
LLC during the fi nancial year 2014-15.

 The Company has adopted a Policy for determining Material 
Subsidiaries in line with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The 
Policy, as approved by the Board, is uploaded on the website of the 
Company (URL: htt p://www.primefocus.com/sites/default/fi les/pdf/
Policy_on_Material_Subsidiaries.pdf)

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

i) The steps taken to or impact on conservation of energy– 
Although the Company is not engaged in manufacturing activities, 
the Company makes every eff ort to conserve energy as far 
as possible in its post-production facilities, Studios, Offi  ces, 
etc. The Company also takes signifi cant measures to reduce 
energy consumption by using energy effi  cient computers and by 
purchasing energy-effi  cient equipment. The Company purchases 
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PCs, laptops, air conditioners etc. that meet environment 
standards, wherever possible and replace old equipment with 
more energy-effi  cient equipment

ii) The Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources 
of energy– Not applicable

iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments– 
The Company constantly evaluates new developments and 
invests into latest energy effi  cient technology.

B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

i) The eff orts made towards technology absorption – The Company 
adopts the latest trends in the technology development and 
introduces the same so as to ensure reduction in cost with best 
quality output.

ii) The benefi ts derived like product improvement, cost reduction, 
Product development or import substitution– Not applicable

C) IMPORTED TECHNOLOGY 

i) The details of technology imported- Not Applicable

ii) The year of import - Not applicable

iii) Whether the technology has been fully absorbed - Not applicable

iv) If not fully absorbed - Not applicable

 Expenditure incurred on Research and Development (R&D):

 Your company is predominantly a service provider and therefore 
has not set up a formal R&D unit, however continuous research and 
development is carried out at various development centers as an 
integral part of the activities of the Company. 

 Particulars of foreign currency earnings and outgo are as under: 
(` In lacs)

Particulars June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Foreign Exchange Earned:
Revenue from operations
and interest income

1667 19,804

Foreign Exchange Outgo:
Technical service cost,
repairs and maintenance,
interest and others

58 183

18. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the fi nancial year 
ended June 30, 2015 as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges in India, is included as a separate 
section forming part of the Annual Report.

19. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

 A separate section on Corporate Governance forming part of the 
Directors’ Report and the certifi cate from the Practicing Company 
Secretary confi rming compliance of Corporate Governance norms 
as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock 
Exchanges is included in the Annual Report.

20. DIRECTORS

 Pursuant to Section 149(10) of the Act, read along with the Rules 
framed thereunder, the Members had at the Annual General Meeting of 
the Company held on December 24, 2014, approved the appointment 
of Independent Directors [viz. Mr. Srinivasan Kodi Raghavan (DIN: 
00012449), Mr. Rivkaran Singh Chadha (DIN: 00308288) and Mr. 
Padmanabha Gopal Aiyar (DIN 02722981)] from the conclusion of 
17th Annual General Meeting to the conclusion of 22nd Annual General 
Meeting i.e. for a period of fi ve consecutive years. Further, pursuant to 
the Section 149(13) and 152 of the Act, provisions for the retirement of 
rotation of directors shall not apply to such Independent Directors.

 At the said Annual General Meeting, Mr. Naresh Malhotra was 
re-appointed as a Whole-time Director, liable to retire by rotation for a 
term of fi ve years commencing from April 1, 2015. 

 In the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on August 1, 2014, 
Mr. Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan (DIN: 02696897) was appointed 
as Managing Director and Mr. Namit Malhotra (DIN: 00004049) was 
appointed as Chairman (Executive Director) and Chief Executive 
Offi  cer of the Company. They have been appointed for a tenure of three 
years with eff ect from June 25, 2014 and their period of offi  ce is liable 
to retire by rotation. 

 Dr. (Mrs.) Hemalatha Thiagarajan (DIN: 07144803) was appointed as 
an Additional Director (Non-Executive Independent) under Section 
149 and Section 161 of the Act w.e.f. March 31, 2015, subject to consent 
by the Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. Further, Mr. Amit Bapna (DIN: 00008443) was appointed as 
an Additional Director (Nominee on behalf of Reliance MediaWorks 
Limited) w.e.f. September 16, 2015. Notices pursuant to Section 
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160 of the Act have been received from the Member proposing the 
appointment of Dr. (Mrs.) Hemalatha Thiagarajan and Mr. Amit Bapna 
as Directors of the Company.

 In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and Articles 
of Association of the Company, Mr. Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan 
(DIN: 02696897) shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting of the Company and being eligible, off er himself for re-
appointment.

 The Board recommends these appointment / re-appointment. 
Items seeking your approval on the above are included in the Notice 
convening the Annual General Meeting.

 All the Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet 
the criteria of Independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the 
Act and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

 Brief resumes of the directors being appointed / re-appointed forms 
part of the Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 The Company has incurred loss for the Financial Year 2014-2015. 
Accordingly, the disclosure required under Schedule V, Part II, 
proviso of Section II B (iv)(IV) of the Act forms part of the Corporate 
Governance Report.

21. RECEIPT OF REMUNERATION OR COMMISSION FROM HOLDING 
COMPANY OR SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

 Mr. Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan, Managing Director of the 
Company was appointed as an Executive Director in Prime Focus 
Technologies Private Limited (“PFT”), a subsidiary company on June 
25, 2014. He is in receipt of ` 34,00,000/- p.a. as remuneration in his 
capacity as an Executive Director of PFT.

22. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

 During the year under review, Mr. Namit Malhotra was appointed as a 
CEO and Executive Director. Mr. Vikas Rathee was appointed as Chief 
Financial Offi  cer (CFO) of the Company w.e.f. August 01, 2014 in place 
of Mr. Nishant Fadia who stepped down as CFO with eff ect from July 
31, 2014.

 Ms. Kirti Desai was appointed as the Company Secretary and 
Compliance Offi  cer with eff ect from August 01, 2014 in place of 
Mr. Navin Agarwal who resigned with eff ect from July 31, 2014. Ms. 
Kirti Desai had resigned from the post of Company Secretary and 
Compliance Offi  cer with eff ect from July 07, 2015. Further, Ms. Parina 

Shah was appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance 
Offi  cer of the Company w.e.f. September 12, 2015.

 The Company has designated following personnel as KMPs pursuant 
to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act and the rules made 
thereunder.

� Mr. Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan, Managing Director

� Mr. Namit Malhotra, Chief Executive Offi  cer

� Mr. Vikas Rathee, Chief Financial Offi  cer

� Ms. Parina Shah, Company Secretary

23. BOARD EVALUATION

 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance 
requirements as prescribed by SEBI under Clause 49 of the Equity 
Listing Agreement, the Board of Directors (“Board”) has carried out an 
annual evaluation of its own performance, and that of its Committ ees 
and individual Directors.

 The performance of the Board and individual Directors was evaluated 
by the Board seeking inputs from all the Directors. The performance of 
the Committ ees was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs from the 
Committ ee Members. The Nomination and Remuneration Committ ee 
(“NRC”) reviewed the performance of the individual Directors. A 
separate meeting of Independent Directors was also held to review 
the performance of Non-Independent Directors; performance of 
the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairperson of the 
Company, taking into account the views of Executive Directors and 
Non-Executive Directors. 

 The criteria for performance evaluation of the Board included 
aspects like Board composition and structure; eff ectiveness of 
Board processes, information and functioning etc. The criteria for 
performance evaluation of Committ ees of the Board included aspects 
like composition of Committ ees, eff ectiveness of Committ ee meetings 
etc. The criteria for performance evaluation of the individual Directors 
included aspects on contribution to the Board and Committ ee 
meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful 
and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings etc. In addition 
the Chairperson was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role.

 Selection and procedure for nomination and appointment of 
Directors

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committ ee is responsible for 
developing competency requirements for the Board based on the 
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industry and strategy of the Company. The Board composition 
analysis refl ects in-depth understanding of the Company, including 
its strategies, environment, operations, fi nancial condition and 
compliance requirements.

 The Committ ee is also responsible for reviewing and vett ing the CVs of 
potential candidates’ vis-à-vis the required competencies, undertake 
a reference and due diligence and meeting potential candidates, prior 
to making recommendations of their nomination to the Board. At the 
time of appointment, specifi c requirements for the position, including 
expert knowledge expected, is communicated to the appointee.

 Criteria for Determining Qualifi cations, Positive Att ributes and 
Independence of a Director

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committ ee has formulated 
the criteria for determining qualifi cations, positive att ributes and 
independence of Directors in terms of provisions of Section 178 (3) of 
the Act and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, which is annexed as 
“Annexure-B”.

 Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors

 Pursuant to requirement of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
vide Circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/7/2014 dated September 15, 
2014, the Company has in place a programme for familiarisation of the 
Independent Directors with the Company, details of which is available 
on the website of the company: (htt p://www.primefocus.com/sites/
default/files/pdf/Familiarisation_programme_for_Independent_
Directors.PDF).

24. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

 The Company has in place a Remuneration Policy for the Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other Employees 
pursuant to the provisions of the Act and Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement.. The policy forms a part of this report and is annexed as 
“Annexure-C”.

25. BOARD MEETINGS

 During the year, fourteen Board Meetings were held. The details of 
which are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening 
gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the 
Act and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

 Details of the composition of the Board and its Committ ees and of the 
Meetings held, att endance of the Directors at such Meetings and other 
relevant details are provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

26. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The Audit Committ ee comprises of following members:

Name of the Member Positions

Mr. Rivkaran Chadha Chairman

Mr. Kodi Raghavan Srinivasan Member

Mr. Padmanabha Gopal Aiyar* Member

Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh or his Alternate viz. Mr. Vibhav 
Parikh, during his absence

Member

Mr. Amit Bapna** Member

 *Mr. Padmanabha Gopal Aiyar was appointed as a member of the 
Committ ee with eff ect from November 14, 2014. 

 **Mr. Amit Bapna was appointed as a member of the Committ ee with 
eff ect from September 16, 2015.

 Further, details relating to the Audit Committ ee are provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report.

27. VIGIL MECHANISM 

 The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy establishing vigil 
mechanism, to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and 
employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual 
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or 
ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also 
provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committ ee. It 
is affi  rmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access 
to the Audit Committ ee. 

 The policy of vigil mechanism is available on the Company’s website 
(Weblink: htt p://www.primefocus.com/sites/default/fi les/pdf/Vigil_
Mechanism_Policy.pdf )

28. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

 The information on employees who were in receipt of remuneration of 
not less than ` 60 lakhs during the year or ` 5 lakhs per month during 
any part of the said year as required under Section 197 (12) of the Act 
read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in the Annexure forming 
part of the Report. In terms of proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act, the 
Report and Accounts are being sent to the shareholders excluding the 
aforesaid Annexure. The said statement is also open for inspection 
at the registered offi  ce of the Company. Any member interested in 
obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary.
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 Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required 
under Section 197(12) of the Act read with the Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 are annexed to the Report as “Annexure D”.

29. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

 The brief outline of the CSR Policy of the Company alongwith the 
Annual Report on CSR activities is set out in “Annexure E” of this 
report. The policy is available on the Company’s website (Weblink: 
htt p://www.primefocus.com/sites/default/fi les/pdf/CSR_Policy.pdf)

30. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

 The particulars of Loans given, Investments made,Guarantees given 
and Securities provided during the year under Section 186 of the 
Act are stated in the Notes to Accounts of Standalone Financial 
Statements which forms part of this Annual Report.

31. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES

 All contracts/arrangements/ transactions entered by the Company 
with the Related Parties during the fi nancial year were on an Arm’s 
length basis and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of 
the Act and the Listing Agreement. There are no materially signifi cant 
related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons 
which may have a potential confl ict with the interest of the Company 
at large. The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related 
parties referred to in Section 188 (1) of the Actin Form AOC-2 pursuant 
to Section 134 (3) (h) of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is att ached as ANNEXURE-F to this Report.

 All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committ ee 
as also before the Board for approval. A statement of all Related Party 
Transactions is placed before the Audit Committ ee for its review on a 
quarterly basis, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions 
of the transactions.

 The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board 
is uploaded on the Company’s website (URL:htt p://www.primefocus.
com/sites/default/fi les/pdf/policy_on_related_parties.pdf.)

32. AUDITORS

 Statutory Auditors

 In the last AGM held on December 24, 2014, M/s Deloitt e Haskins & 
Sells (DHS), Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 117364W), have 
been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold offi  ce 

from the conclusion of 17th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion 
of 22nd Annual General Meeting of the Company, subject to ratifi cation 
of their appointment by the Members at every Annual General Meeting. 
Further, DHS have under Section 139(1) of the Act and the Rules framed 
thereunder furnished a certifi cate of their eligibility and consent for 
appointment.

 The Auditor’s Report on the consolidated fi nancial statements contains 
qualifi cation as regards fi gures for certain components included in the 
consolidated fi nancial statements being unaudited for part of the year 
as under:

i.) The fi nancial statements / the consolidated fi nancial statements 
of certain subsidiaries whose fi nancial statements / consolidated 
fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015 have 
been audited by us / other auditors refl ect total assets of 
` 2,893.31 crore as at 31st March, 2015, total revenues of ` 
953.34 crore and net cash outfl ow amounting to ` 0.52 crore for 
the year ended on that date. The fi nancial information of the said 
subsidiaries for the year ended 30th June, 2015, as considered in 
the consolidated fi nancial statements, has been derived by making 
appropriate adjustments, based on the management accounts 
approved by the board of directors of the Holding Company, to 
the fi nancial information as per the aforementioned audited 
fi nancial statements/consolidated fi nancial statements for the 
year ended 31st March, 2015. The fi nancial information so derived 
of the said subsidiaries refl ect total assets (net) of ` 73.63 crore 
as at 30th June, 2015, total revenues of ` 372.18 crore and net 
cash infl ows amounting to ` 19.98 crore for the year ended on that 
date, as considered in the consolidated fi nancial statements. Our 
opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of 
these subsidiaries, is based solely on our reports and that of the 
other auditors and the aforementioned management accounts.

ii.) The consolidated fi nancial statements include unaudited 
standalone fi nancial information in respect of certain subsidiaries 
which refl ect total assets of ` 45.70 crore as at 30th June, 2015, 
total revenue of ` Nil, cash infl ows amounting to ` 2.69 crore for 
the year then ended. These unaudited fi nancial information as 
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company have been 
furnished to us by the Management and our report in so far as 
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect 
of the subsidiaries is based solely on such approved unaudited 
standalone fi nancial information.
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 The response of Directors with respect to the above are as 
follows:-

 During the fi nancial year 2014-15, the following material events 
took place:

1. Double Negative UK Holdings Ltd became a subsidiary of 
Prime Focus World NV (a subsidiary of the company) in July 
2014. This entity has operating subsidiaries in UK, Singapore 
and Canada;

2. Licensing and 3D conversion partnership with Canada’s 
Gener8 Media Corp, a global leader in 3D conversion 
technology, in March 2015; and

3. Acquisition of the global Film and Media Services business 
(‘FMS business’) from Reliance MediaWorks Limited in April 
2015;

 There were various local auditors, the annual closing of all 
the subsidiaries being April – March, unlike July-June for the 
holding company, local accounting rules and conversion of 
the same to Indian GAAP for audit of fi nancials of the above 
mentioned acquisitions.

 In view of the above-mentioned facts, it was diffi  cult for 
the Company to complete the audit of component fi nancial 
statements within the available time frame.

 Secretarial Auditors

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed 
M/s. S. N. Ananthasubramanian & Co., Practicing Company 
Secretaries, to undertake Secretarial Audit of the Company for 
the fi nancial year 2014-15. The report of the Secretarial Auditor 
is annexed to this report as “Annexure G”. The Secretarial Audit 
Report does not contain any qualifi cations, reservation or adverse 
remarks.

33. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

 Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the 
best of their knowledge and ability, confi rm that: 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied 
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of aff airs of the company at the end of the fi nancial year and 
of the profi t and loss of the company for that period;

c) the directors had taken proper and suffi  cient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern 
basis.

e) the directors had laid down internal fi nancial controls to be 
followed by the company and such internal fi nancial controls 
are adequate and the Company is constantly endeavouring to 
improve the standards of internal control in various areas and 
taking steps to strengthen the internal control system to make 
it commensurate and eff ective with the size of the respective 
entities and the nature of their business.

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
were adequate and operating eff ectively.
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 On behalf of the Board of Directors

 Naresh Malhotra Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan
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 DIN:00004597  DIN:02696897
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I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS

1. CIN L92100MH1997PLC108981
2. Registration Date June 24, 1997
3. Name of the Company Prime Focus Limited
4. Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company/ Limited by shares
5. Address of the Registered offi  ce and contact 

details
Prime Focus House, Opp. Citi Bank, Linking Road, Khar (West) – Mumbai – 400 052
Tel: +91 22 67155000; Fax +91 22 67155001
Email : ir.india@primefocus.com;   Website: www.primefocus.com

6. Whether listed company Yes
7. Name, Address & contact details of the 

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.
Link Intime India Private Limited
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (W), Mumbai – 400078
Tel: +91 22 2596 3838
Email: ishwar.suvarna@linkintime.co.in;   Website: www.linkintime.co.in

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. 
No.

Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the Product/service % to total turnover of the company

1 Motion picture, video and television programme post-production activities 5912 100%

III. PARICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. 
No.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY/ 

ASSOCIATE

% of 
shares held

Applicable 
section

Note

1. Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited
Address: True North, Plot No. 63, Road No. 13, MIDC, Andheri 
(East), Mumbai-400093

U72200MH2008PTC179850 Subsidiary 75.5 2(87) -

2. Prime Focus Visual Eff ects Private Limited
Address: 2nd Floor, Building - H, Mainframe IT Park, Royal Palms, 
Near Aarey Colony, Goregaon (East), Mumbai, 400065

U52392MH2008PTC179538 Subsidiary 100 2(87) -

3. Prime Focus Motion Pictures Limited
Address: 2nd Floor, Building - H, Mainframe IT Park, Royal Palms, 
Near Aarey Colony, Goregaon (East), Mumbai, 400065

U92120MH2008PLC186091 Subsidiary 100 2(87) -

4. GVS Soft ware Private Limited
Address: 2nd Floor, Building - H, Mainframe IT Park, Royal Palms, 
Near Aarey Colony, Goregaon (East), Mumbai, 400065

U72100MH2007PTC174803 Subsidiary 100 2(87) -

5. Prime Focus 3D India Private Limited
Address: 2nd Floor, Building - H, Mainframe IT Park, Royal Palms, 
Near Aarey Colony, Goregaon (East), Mumbai, 400065

U92100MH2011PTC218470 Subsidiary 100 2(87) -

Annexure to Directors’ Reports

FORM NO. MGT 9 - EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on fi nancial year ended on June 30, 2015

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

Annexure A
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Sr. 
No.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY/ 

ASSOCIATE

% of 
shares held

Applicable 
section

Note

6. Gener8 India Media Services Limited (Formerly known as 
Prime Focus Entertainment Services Limited/Reliance 
MediaWorks Entertainment Services Limited
Address: 6th Floor, Building No.3, Serene Properties Pvt. 
Ltd.  SEZ (Mindspace Airoli) Thane Belapur Road, Airoli, Navi 
Mumbai-400708

U70100MH2006PLC160748 Subsidiary 100 2(87) -

7. Prime focus World Creative Services Private Limited
Address: 2nd Floor, Building - H, Mainframe IT Park, Royal Palms, 
Near Aarey Colony, Goregaon (East), Mumbai, 400065

U92412MH2011PTC218562 Subsidiary 100 2(87) 4

8. Prime Focus International Limited
Address: 64 Dean Street, London, W1D 4QQ

N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) -

9. PF investments Limited (Mauritius)
Address: C/o Mauritius International Trust Company Limited,
4th Floor, Ebene Skies, Rue de L'Institut, Ebene,
Republic of Mauritius

N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) -

10. PF World Limited
Address: C/o Mauritius International Trust Company Limited,
4th Floor, Ebene Skies, Rue de L'Institut, Ebene,
Republic of Mauritius 

N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) -

11. PF Overseas Limited
Address: 6th Floor, Tower 1, NeXTeracom Building, Ebene, 
Mauritius

N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) -

12. Reliance MediaWorks (Mauritius) Limited
Address: 3rd Floor, Cerne House , La Chaussee, Port Louis, 
Mauritius. P.0. Box 322

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) -

13. Prime Focus Luxembourg S.a.r.l.
Address: 6, Rue Eugene Ruppert,
L-2453 Luxembourg

N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 1

14. Gener8 Digital Media Services Ltd, Canada
Address: 20th Floor, 250 Howe Street Vancouver BC V6C 3R8, 
Canada

 N.A. Subsidiary  100 2(87) 1

15. Prime Focus 3D Cooperatief U.A.
Address: Prins Bernhardplein 200, 1097 JB, Amsterdam, 
The Netherlands

 N.A. Subsidiary  100 2(87) 2

16. Prime Focus World N.V.
Address: Prins Bernhardplein 200, 1097JB Amsterdam, The 
Netherlands

 N.A. Subsidiary 76.33 2(87) 3

17. Prime Focus International Services UK Limited
Address: 160 Great Portland Street, London
W1W 5QA

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 4
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Sr. 
No.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY/ 

ASSOCIATE

% of 
shares held

Applicable 
section

Note

18. Prime focus Creative Services Canada, INC
Address: 2200 - 1055 West Hastings St., Vancouver British 
Columbia V6E 2E9

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 4

19. Prime Focus VFX USA Inc.
Address: Prime Focus VFX USA, 1800 North Vine Street,
Los Angeles, California 90028

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 4

20. Prime Focus North America, Inc.
Address: 1800 North Vine Street, Los Angeles,
California 90028

  NA Subsidiary 100 2(87) 4

21. Prime Focus ME Holdings Limited
Address: Mill Mall, Suite 6, Wickhams Cay 1, PO Box 3085, Road 
Town, Tortola, Virgin Islands, British Virgin Islands.

  NA Subsidiary 100 2(87) 4

22. Prime Focus China Limited 
Address: Akara Bldg., 24 De Castro Street, Wickhams Cay 1, 
Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands

 N.A. Subsidiary 70 2(87) 4

23. Double Negative Holdings Limited
Address: 160 Great Portland Street, London W1W 5QA

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 4

24. 1800 Vine street Inc.
Address: 1800, North Vine Street, Los Angeles
California 90028

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 5

25. Vegas II VFX Limited 
Address: 20th Floor, 250 Howe Street, Vancouver, 
BC V6C 3R8 Canada

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 6

26. Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited
Address: 64 DEAN STREET, LONDON, W1D 4QQ

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 7

27. PF Technologies INC
Address: 345, Hudson Street, 13th Floor, New York 10014

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 7

28. Prime Focus (HK) Holdings Limited
Address: Room 501-7, 5th Floor, Sands Building, 17 Hankow 
Road, Tsimi Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 8

29. Reliance Lowry Digital Imaging Services Inc.
Address: 2777 N. Ontario Street - Suite 200 Burbank, 
CA, 91504

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 9

30. Double Negative Limited
Address: 160 Great Portland Street, London, W1W 5QA, 
United Kingdom

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 10

31. Double Negative Singapore Pte. Limited
Address: 80 Raffl  es Place, #32-01, UOB Plaza 1, 
Singapore – 048624

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 10

32. Double Negative Canada Productions Limited 
Address: 20th Floor, 250 Howe St, Vancouver, BC V6C 3R8, 
Canada

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 10
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Sr. 
No.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY/ 

ASSOCIATE

% of 
shares held

Applicable 
section

Note

33. Double Negative Films Limited 
Address: 160 Great Portland Street, London, W1W 5QA, 
United Kingdom

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 10

34. DAX PFT LLC
Address: 1675 S State St Ste B, Dover, DE, 19901US

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 11

35. DAX Cloud ULC
Address: 693, Queen Street East, Toronto, Ontario M4M1G6

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 12

36. Prime Post Europe Limited
(formerly known as Prime Focus (MW) Limited
Address: 2, Brouchier Street, London, W1D 4HX

 N.A. Subsidiary 100 2(87) 13

NOTES:
 1. Subsidiary of PF World Limited 
2. 99.99% held by Subsidiary of Prime Focus Luxembourg S.a.r.l. and 0.01% held by PF Investments Limited
3. Subsidiary of Prime Focus 3D Cooperatief U.A.
4. Subsidiaries of Prime Focus World N.V.
5. Subsidiary of Prime Focus North America, Inc.
6. Subsidiary of Prime Focus Creative Services Canada, Inc.
7. Subsidiary of Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited 
8. Subsidiary of Prime Focus China Limited
9. 90% held by Reliance MediaWorks (Mauritius) Limited and 10% held by Prime Focus Limited
10. Subsidiary of Double Negative Holdings Limited
11. Subsidiary of Prime Focus Technologies Inc.
12. Subsidiary of DAX PFT LLC.
13. Subsidiary of Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
[As on July 1, 2014]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
 [As on June 30, 2015]

% 
Change
during

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF  77,101,546 Nil  77,101,546 41.58  77,101,546 Nil  77,101,546 25.80 -15.79*
b) Central Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
c) State Govt.(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) Bodies Corp. Nil Nil Nil Nil 2,75,06,095 Nil 27,5,06,095 9.20 9.20
e) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
f) Any other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total shareholding of Promoter (A)  77,101,546 Nil  77,101,546 41.58  104,607,641 Nil  104,607,641 35.00 -6.58
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Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
[As on July 1, 2014]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
 [As on June 30, 2015]

% 
Change
during

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds  4,179,260 Nil  4,179,260 2.25 Nil Nil Nil Nil -2.25
b) Banks / FI  142,378 Nil  142,378 0.08 49,536 Nil  49,536 0.02 -0.06
c) Central Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil NA
d) State Govt.(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil NA
e) Venture Capital Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil NA
f) Insurance Companies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil NA
g) FIIs  3,654,176 Nil  3,654,176 1.97  1,174,041 Nil  1,174,041 0.39  -1.58
 h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil NA
i) Others (specify)
Persons acting in concert

Nil Nil Nil Nil  Nil Nil  Nil Nil N.A.

Sub-total (B)(1):-  7,975,814 Nil  7,975,814 4.30  135,303,638 Nil  135,303,638 45.27 40.97
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i.) Indian 2,27,28,752 Nil 2,27,28,752 12.26 14,33,42,338 Nil 14,33,42,338 47.96 35.70
ii) Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil NA
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital upto ` 1 lakh

 16,963,768  1,380  16,965,148 9.15  9,765,943 20  9,765,963 3.27 -5.88

ii) Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in excess of 
` 1 lakh

 18,581,177 Nil  18,581,177 10.02  2,063,401 Nil  2,063,401 0.69 -9.33

c) Others (specify)
Foreign Portfolio investor Nil Nil Nil Nil  14,696 Nil  14,696 0.00 0.0049
Non Resident Indians  1,273,053 Nil  1,273,053 0.69  811,912 Nil  811,912 0.27 -0.42
Non Resident Indians (Non-
epatriable)

 221,087 Nil  221,087 0.12  159,086 Nil  159,086 0.05 -0.07

Overseas Corporate Bodies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil  Nil Nil NA
Foreign Nationals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil  Nil Nil NA
Foreign Company  36,549,990 Nil  36,549,990 19.71  36,549,990 Nil  36,549,990 12.23 7.48**
Clearing Members  4,008,869 Nil 4,008,869 2.16 340370 Nil  340,370 0.11 -2.05
Trusts  12,000 Nil 12000 0.01 Nil Nil  Nil Nil -100.00
Other Bodies Corporate  Nil Nil  Nil Nil Nil Nil  Nil Nil N.A.
Foreign Bodies - D R
Sub-total (B)(2):-  100,338,696  1,380 100,340,076 54.12  193047736 20 193047 64.59 10.47
Total Public Shareholding (B)=(B)
(1)+ (B)(2)

 108,314,510  1,380  108,315,890 58.42  194,271,313 20 19,42,71,333 65.00  6.58

C. Shares held by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Grand Total (A+B+C)  185,416,056 1380  185,417,436 100.00  298,878,954 20 298,878,974  100.00  61.19
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B)  Shareholding of Promoter-

Sr. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
i.e. July 1, 2014

Shareholding at the end of the year i.e.
 June 30, 2015

% change in 
shareholding 

during the yearNo. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

1. Mr. Naresh Malhotra 6,22,01,546 33.55 24.60 6,22,01,546 20.81 18.87 -5.73*
2. Mr. Namit Malhotra 1,49,00,000 8.04 Nil 1,49,00,000 4.99 1.64 3.05*
3. Monsoon Studio Private Limited Nil Nil Nil 2,75,06,095 9.20 1.48 9.20

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

SN Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
(as on July 1, 2014)

Cumulative Shareholding during the year 
as on June 30, 2015

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of the 
company

1. Mr. Naresh Malhotra 6,22,01,546 33.55 6,22,01,546 20.81*
At the end of the year 6,22,01,546 33.55 6,22,01,546 20.81*

2. Mr. Namit Malhotra 1,49,00,000 8.04 1,49,00,000 4.99*
At the end of the year 1,49,00,000 8.04 1,49,00,000 4.99*

3. Monsoon Studio Private Limited Nil Nil Nil Nil
Acquisition through Open off er on January 20, 2015 44,29,172 2.39 44,29,172 2.39
Preferential allotment made on April 7, 2015 2,30,76,923 7.72 2,75,06,095 9.20
At the end of the year 2,75,06,095 9.20

 Notes: *There is no change in the shareholding in terms of individual holding of Mr. Naresh Malhotra and Mr. Namit Malhotra. However there is a change in the percentage 
shareholding on account of Preferential Allotment and subsequent increase in the share capital of the Company.

 **There is no change in the shareholding in terms of individual holding of Foreign Company. However there is a change in the percentage shareholding on account of 
Preferential Allotment and subsequent increase in the share capital of the Company.

 The change in the total capital of the Company is on account of Preferential Allotment of 11,34,61,538 equity shares of ` 1/- each on April 7, 2015.

D)  Shareholding Patt ern of top ten Shareholders:

 (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sr. 
No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
as on July 1, 2014

Cumulative Shareholding during the year 
as on June 30, 2015

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

1. Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius)III Limited 36549990 19.71 36549990^ 12.23
2. Top Class Capital Markets Private Limited 7982408 4.31 7308400 2.45
3. Centrum Financial Services Limited 444000 0.24 218000 0.07
4. Citigroup Global Markets Mauritius Private Limited 400000 0.22 356127 0.12
5. Angel Broking Private Limited 398202 0.21 303393 0.00
6. Religare Finvest Ltd* 373400 0.20 181050 0.06
7. Fatehsingh Chadha* 245740 0.13 210533 0.07
8. Kan Hassomal Lakhani 229800 0.12 227781 0.08
9. Bindeshwari Mishra 190000 0.10 230115 0.08
10. Merzin D Tavaria* 170000 0.09 170000 0.06
11. Reliance MediaWorks Limited** Nil N.A. 13,40,80,061 44.86
12. Premier Investment Fund Limited** Nil N.A. 733151 0.25
13. Rajesh Kanayalal Soneji** Nil N.A. 220000 0.07
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 Note:

1. *Ceased to be in the list of Top 10 as on June 30, 2015. The same is refl ected above since the shareholder was one of the Top 10 shareholders as on July 1, 2014

2. **Not in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on July 1, 2014. The same has been refl ected above since the shareholder was one of the Top 10 shareholders as on June 30, 
2015

3. ^Out of the 3,65,49,990(12.23%) held by Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) III Limited, Marina IV (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. is the benefi cial owner of 
2,33,90,875(7.83%) equity shares of the Company which are registered in the name of Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) III Limited. Further Standard 
Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) III Limited and Marina IV (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. are affi  liates under the common control of Standard Chartered Plc.

4. Shareholding is consolidated based on permanent account number (PAN) of the Shareholder.

5. Date wise increase decrease in the shareholding is available on the website www.primefocus.com

E)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr. 
No.

Shareholding of each Directors and each Key Managerial 
Personnel

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
(as on July 1, 2014)

Cumulative Shareholding during the year 
as on June 30, 2015

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

1. Mr. Naresh Malhotra 62201546 33.55 62201546 20.81*
2. Mr. Namit Malhotra 1,49,00,000 8.04 1,49,00,000 4.99*
3. Mr. Ramakrishan Sankaranarayanan 50 0.00 50 0.00

 *There is no change in the shareholding in terms of individual holding of Mr. Naresh Malhotra and Mr. Namit Malhotra. However there is a change in the percentage 
shareholding on account of Preferential Allotment and subsequent increase in the share capital of the Company.

V)  INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment as on June 30, 2015  is as under:
(In ‘`’ )

 Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

 Unsecured Loans  Deposits  Total Indebtedness

 Indebtedness at the beginning of the fi nancial year
 i) Principal Amount  1,425,607,302  1,901,000,000  -  3,326,607,302
 ii) Interest due but not paid  -  -  -  -
 iii) Interest accrued but not due  5,893,588  -  5,893,588
 iv) Premium payable on NCD  -  445,623,858  -  445,623,858

 Total (i+ii+iii+iv)  1,431,500,890  2,346,623,858  -  3,778,124,748
 Change in Indebtedness during the fi nancial year
 * Addition  -  -  -
 i) Principal Amount  1,038,655,471  -  -  1,038,655,471
 ii) Interest due but not paid  - -  - -
 iii) Interest accrued but not due  8,572,545  -  -  8,572,545
 iv) Premium payable on NCD  2,808,006  316,158,001  -  318,966,007

 Total (i+ii+iii+iv)  1,050,036,022  316,158,001  -  1,366,194,023
 * Reduction  -  -
 i) Principal Amount  640,310,203  -  -  640,310,203
 ii) Interest due but not paid  -  -  -  -
 iii) Interest accrued but not due  5,893,588  -  -  5,893,588
 iv) Premium payable on NCD  -  -  -  -

 Total (i+ii+iii+iv)  646,203,791  -  -  646,203,791
 Net Change  403,832,231  316,158,001  -  719,990,232
 Indebtedness at the end of the fi nancial year
 i) Principal Amount  1,823,952,570  1,901,000,000  -  3,724,952,570
 ii) Interest due but not paid  - -  - -
 iii) Interest accrued but not due  8,572,545  -  -  8,572,545
 iv) Premium payable on NCD  2,808,006  761,781,859  -  764,589,865

 Total (i+ii+iii+iv)  1,835,333,121  2,662,781,859  -  4,498,114,980
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VI.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(In ‘`’ )

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

Mr. Naresh Malhotra Mr. Ramakrishnan 
Sankaranarayanan

Mr. Namit Malhotra

1. Gross salary  60,00,000 p.a.  50,00,000 p.a.  50,00,000 p.a.  1,60,00,000
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil
(c) Profi ts in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax 
Act, 1961

 Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil

2. Stock Option  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil
3. Sweat Equity  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil
4. Commission

- as % of profi t
- others, specify…

 Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil

5 Others, please specify  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil
Total (A)  60,00,000 p.a.  50,00,000 p.a.  50,00,000 p.a.  1,60,00,000
Ceiling as per the Act  62.14 Lac per annum as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013  18,642,543

B.  Remuneration to other directors

(In ‘`’ )

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Mr. G. P. Aiyar  Mr. Rivkaran 
Chadha

Mr. K. R. 
Srinivasan

Dr. (Mrs. 
Hemalatha 
Thiagarajan

Mr. Nainesh 
Jaisingh

Mr. Vibhav Parikh
(Alternate to Mr. 
Nainesh Jaisingh)

1 Non-Executive Independent Directors

Fee for att ending board meetings  1,80,000 
(20,000 per 

meeting)

 2,80,000 
(20,000 per 

meeting)

 1,20,000 
(20,000 per 

meeting)

 40,000 
(20,000 per 

meeting)

N.A. N.A.

Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil N.A. N.A.
Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (1)  1,80,000  2,80,000  1,20,000  40,000 N.A. N.A.

2 Non-Executive Directors
Fee for att ending board committ ee 
meetings

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 20,000 
(20,000 per 

meeting)

2,60,000 
(20,000 per 

meeting)
Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total (B)=(1+2)  1,80,000  2,80,000  1,20,000  40,000  20,000  2,60,000
Total Managerial Remuneration Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Overall Ceiling as per the Act  1,00,000 per meeting as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

 Note : 

 The Non-Executive Directors are not paid any commission except sitt ing fees for att ending the meeting of the Board  of Directors of the Company which is within the 
limits prescribed under the  Act.
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C.  REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
(In ‘`’ )

Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Managerial Personnel
CEO

(Mr. Namit Malhotra)
CS

(Mr. Navin Agarwal 
from July 1, 2014 to 

July 31, 2014)

CS
(Ms. Kirti Desai w.e.f. 

August 1, 2014 to 
June 30, 2015)

CFO
(Mr. Vikas Rathee 

(w.e.f. August 1, 2014)

Total

1 Gross salary  4,16,667 per month  3,57,849 per month  1,30,426 per month  12,50,000 per month  21,54,942 per month
(a) Salary as per provisions contained 
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961

Nil Nil Nil Nil

(c) Profi ts in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

Nil Nil Nil Nil

2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil
4 Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil

- as % of profi t Nil Nil Nil Nil
Others, specify… Nil Nil Nil Nil

5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total  4,16,667 per month  3,57,849 per month  1,30,426 per month  12,50,000 per month  21,54,942 per month

 NOTE: Mr. Namit Malhotra is the CEO (Key Managerial Personnel) as well as Executive Director in the Company.

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

 There were no penalties / punishment / compounding of off ences for breach of any section of Companies Act against the Company or its Directors, if any, during the year 
ended June 30, 2015.

 On behalf of the Board of Directors

 Naresh Malhotra Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan
 Whole-Time Director Managing Director
 DIN:00004597  DIN:02696897

Date: September 16, 2015
Place: Mumbai
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1.  Defi nition of Independence

 A director will be considered as an “Independent Director” if the person 
meets with the criteria for ‘Independent Director’ as laid down in the 
Companies Act and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement (as may be 
applicable).

 The defi nition of independence as provided in the Act and Clause 49 is 
as follows:

 “An independent director in relation to a company, means a director 
other than a managing director or a whole-time director or a nominee 
director,—

(a) who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and 
possesses relevant expertise and experience; 

(b) (i)  who is or was not a promoter of the company or its holding, 
subsidiary or associate company; 

 (ii) who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, 
its holding, subsidiary or associate company; 

(c) who has or had no pecuniary relationship with the company, its 
holding subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or 
directors, during the two immediately preceding fi nancial years 
or during the current fi nancial year; 

(d) none of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or 
transaction with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate 
company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to two per 
cent. or more of its gross turnover or total income or fi ft y lakh 
rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever 
is lower, during the two immediately preceding fi nancial years or 
during the current fi nancial year; 

(e) who, neither himself nor any of his relatives— 

(i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel 
or is or has been employee of the company or its holding, 
subsidiary or associate company in any of the three fi nancial 

years immediately preceding the fi nancial year in which he is 
proposed to be appointed; 

(ii) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in 
any of the three fi nancial years immediately preceding the 
fi nancial year in which he is proposed to be appointed, of— 

(A) a fi rm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or 
cost auditors of the company or its holding, subsidiary 
or associate company; or 

(B) any legal or a consulting fi rm that has or had any 
transaction with the company, its holding, subsidiary or 
associate company amounting to ten per cent. or more 
of the gross turnover of such fi rm; 

(iii) holds together with his relatives two per cent or more of the 
total voting power of the company; or 

(iv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, 
of any nonprofi t organisation that receives twenty-fi ve per 
cent or more of its receipts from the company, any of its 
promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate 
company or that holds two per cent. or more of the total 
voting power of the company; 

(v) is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a 
lessor or lessee of the company(additional provision as per 
Clause 49); 

(vi) who is not less than 21 years of age (additional provision as 
per Clause 49)

(f) who possesses such other qualifi cations as may be prescribed” 

•  Current and ex-employees of a Prime Focus may be 
considered as independent only if he/ she has or had no 
pecuniary relationship with any Group company (due 
to employment/ receipt of monthly pension by way of 
Special Retirement Benefi ts/ holding consultant or advisor 
positions) during the two immediately preceding fi nancial 
years or during the current fi nancial year.

CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES AND 
INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR

Annexure B
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2. Qualifi cations of Directors 

•  Boards will ensure that a transparent board nomination process 
is in place that encourages diversity of thought, experience, 
knowledge, perspective, age and gender. 

•  It is expected that boards have an appropriate blend of functional 
and industry expertise. 

•  While recommending appointment of a director, it is expected 
that the Nomination and Remuneration Committ ee (“NRC”) 
consider the manner in which the function and domain expertise 
of the individual contributes to the overall skill-domain mix of the 
Board. 

•  Independent Directors (“ID”) ideally should be thought/ practice 
leaders in their respective functions/ domains. 

3. Positive att ributes of Directors 

 Directors are expected to comply with duties as provided in the Act. 
For reference, the duties of the Directors as provided by the Act are as 
follows:

1)  “Act in accordance with the articles of the company.

2)  Act in good faith in order to promote the objects of the company 
for the benefi t of its members as a whole, and in the best interests 
of the company, its employees, the shareholders, the community 
and for the protection of environment. 

3) Exercise duties with due and reasonable care, skill and diligence 
and exercise independent judgment. 

4) Not be involved in a situation in which he may have a direct or 
indirect interest that confl icts, or possibly may confl ict, with the 
interest of the company. 

5) Not achieve or att empt to achieve any undue gain or advantage 
either to himself or to his relatives, partners, or associates. 

6) Not assign his offi  ce.” 

 Additionally, the Directors on the Board of Prime Focus are also 
expected to demonstrate high standards of ethical behavior, 
strong interpersonal and communication skills and soundness of 
judgment.

 IDs are also expected to abide by the ‘Code for Independent 
Directors’ as outlined in Schedule IV to section 149(8) of the Act. 
The Code specifi es the guidelines of professional conduct, role 
and function and duties of Independent Directors. The guidelines 
of professional conduct specifi ed in the Code are as follows:

 “An independent director shall:

1) uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; 

2) act objectively and constructively while exercising his duties; 

3) exercise his responsibilities in a bona fi de manner in the 
interest of the company; 

4) devote suffi  cient time and att ention to his professional 
obligations for informed and balanced decision making; 

5) not allow any extraneous considerations that will vitiate his 
exercise of objective independent judgment in the paramount 
interest of the company as a whole, while concurring in or 
dissenting from the collective judgment of the Board in its 
decision making; 

6) not abuse his position to the detriment of the company or its 
shareholders or for the purpose of gaining direct or indirect 
personal advantage or advantage for any associated person; 

7) refrain from any action that would lead to loss of his 
independence; 

8) where circumstances arise which make an independent 
director lose his independence, the independent director 
must immediately inform the Board accordingly; 

9) assist the company in implementing the best corporate 
governance practices.” 

 On behalf of the Board of Directors

 Naresh Malhotra Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan
 Whole-Time Director Managing Director
 DIN:00004597  DIN:02696897

Date: September 16, 2015
Place: Mumbai
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1. PREAMBLE

 This policy is framed pursuant to the requirement of sub clause IV of 
Clause 49 of the Equity Listing Agreement revised by the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/2/2014 
dated April 17, 2014 with the objective to align with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, adopt the best practices on corporate 
governance and make the corporate governance framework more 
eff ective.

 In pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human resources 
as its most valuable assets, ensure equitable remuneration to all viz. 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other employees of the 
Company, this policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Members and other 
employees has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committ ee and approved by the Board of Directors in terms of the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the above mentioned 
requirements of listing agreement as may be amended from time to 
time.

2. OBJECTIVE AND PURPOSE OF THE POLICY:

 The objective and purpose of this policy are:

- To formulate the criteria and terms to determine qualifi cations, 
att ributes and independence of Directors;

- To identify the qualifi cation, key att ributes and profi le required 
of persons who may be appointed in Senior Management and Key 
Managerial positions; 

- To determine remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management employees and other 
employees based on the Company’s size of business, fi nancial 
position and trends and practices prevailing in similar companies 
in the industry;

- To devise mechanism and carry out evaluation of the performance 
of Directors;

- To devise and achieve diversity on the composition of Board, an 
essential element to support quality of performance;

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
Annexure C

- To retain, motivate and promote talent and create a sense of 
participation and ownership. 

 Accordingly, the following policy formulated by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committ ee and applicable to Directors (Executive and 
Non Executive), Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 
Personnel and other employees was recommended for adoption to the 
Board of Directors. The key features of the Remuneration policy and 
the evaluation criteria followed shall be disclosed in the Annual Report 
of the Company.

3. RELEVANT PARTICULARS

 Eff ective Date:

 This policy as formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committ ee and approved by the Board shall be eff ective from October 
1, 2014.

 Nomination and Remuneration Committ ee:

 The Board has changed the nomenclature of the Company’sexisting 
Remuneration Committ ee by renaming it as Nomination and 
Remuneration Committ ee on May 12, 2014 pursuant to the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the revised Listing 
Agreement. The Nomination and Remuneration Committ ee of the 
Company comprises of the following Directors:

Sr. No. Name Position

1. Mr. Rivkaran Chadha Independent and 
Non-Executive Director

2. Mr. Kodi Raghavan 
Srinivasan

Independent and 
Non-Executive Director

3. Mr. Padmanabha Gopal 
Aiyar

Independent and 
Non-Executive Director

4. Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh or 
his alternate Mr. Vibhav 
Parikh

Non-Executive Director

 The Board has the power to reconstitute the Committ ee consistent 
with the Company’s policy and in compliance with the applicable 
statutory requirements.
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 Defi nitions

• Key Managerial Personnel (KMP): Key Managerial Personnel 
means:

1) Managing Director or Chief Executive Offi  cer;

2) Whole-time Director;

3) Chief Financial Offi  cer;

4) Company Secretary and

 such other offi  cer as may be prescribed under the applicable 
statutory provisions or regulations;

• Senior Management: Senior Management means personnel of the 
Company occupying the position of one level below the Board of 
Directors of the Company. 

 General

 This Policy is divided in three parts: 

 Part – A covers the matt ers to be dealt with and recommended by the 
Committ ee to the Board

 Part – B covers the appointment criteria and nomination

 Part–C covers remuneration criteria.

 PART – A

 MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH, PERUSED AND RECOMMENDED 
TO THE BOARD BY THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE

 The Committ ee shall, based on the requirement from time to time:

- Identify and formulate criteria to determine qualifi cations, 
positive att ributes and independence of a Director.

- Formulate criteria to identify persons who are qualifi ed to 
become Directors and persons who may be appointed in Key 
Managerial and Senior Management positions.

- Recommend to the Board,appointment of Director, KMP and 
Senior Management Personnel and other employees.

 PART – B

 APPOINTMENT CRITERIA 

 Appointment criteria and qualifi cations:

1. The Committ ee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, 
professional qualifi cations, expertise and experience of 

the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior 
Management level and other employees and recommend to the 
Board his/her appointment. While doing this the Committ ee 
shall also take into account the mandatory requirement for the 
composition of the Board, Audit Committ ee,the Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committ ee. The Committ ee shall lay emphasis 
on a diverse Board composition based on a range of diversity 
perspectives such as gender, age, educational background, skills, 
experience etc. The ultimate decision shall be based on merit.

2. The Committ ee has discretionary power to decide whether 
qualifi cation, expertise and experience possessed by a person 
is suffi  cient/satisfactory for the concerned position as a KMP or 
Senior management personnel.

3. The Committ ee shall not recommend for appointment or 
continuation of any person as Director who:

• Is of unsound mind and so declared by a competent court;

• Is an undischarged insolvent;

• Has applied to be adjudicated as an insolvent and his 
application is pending;

• Has been convicted by a Court of any off ence whether 
involving moral turpitude or otherwise and sentenced in 
respect thereof to imprisonment for not less than six months 
and a period of fi ve years has not elapsed from the date of 
expiry of the sentence;

• Has been convicted of any off ence and sentenced in respect 
thereof to imprisonment for seven years;

• An order disqualifying him for appointment as Director has 
been passed by a Court or Tribunal and the order is in force;

• Has not paid any calls in respect of the shares of the Company 
held by him and six motnhs have elapsed from the last day 
fi xed for the payment of the call;

• Has been convicted of the off ence dealing with related party 
transactions under Section 188 at any time during the last 
preceding 5 years;

• Has not been allott ed the DIN under Section 152 of the 
Companies Act 2013;

• Has not completed the age of twenty-one years and has 
att ained the age of 70 years. If any Director who has 



PRIME FOCUS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

52

completed the age of 70 years and the appointment is 
approved by special resolution passed by the Company 
in General Meeting, no further approval of the Central 
Government shall be required;

• Is a managerial person in more than one company and draws 
remuneration from one or more companies above the 
ceiling provided in Section V of Part II of Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

 Further no person who has been a Director of the Company 
shall be eligible to be reappointed as Director of that 
Company or appointed as Director in any other Company for 
a period of fi ve years from the date on which the Company 
fails to:

• File fi nancial statements or annual returns for any continuous 
period of three fi nancial years

• Repay deposits accepted or pay interest thereon or redeem 
any debentures on the due date or pay interest due thereon 
or pay any dividend declared and such failure continues for 
one year.

 No person can be appointed as Director in more than twenty 
companies and maximum number of public companies in 
which he can be a Director shall not exceed ten. Similarly 
a person cannot be a Managing Director in more than two 
companies.

 There shall be a minimum of three Directors and a maximum 
of fi ft een in a Company. The Company can appoint a higher 
number of Directors on approval by Members vide special 
resolution. 

  Term and Tenure

1. Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

 The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its 
Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director or 
Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding fi ve years at a time. 
No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the 
expiry of term.

2. Independent Director:

 As per Companies Act, 2013 an Independent Director shall hold 
offi  ce for a term up to fi ve consecutive years on the Board of the 
Company and will be eligible for re-appointment for another term 

of fi ve years on passing of a special resolution by the Company 
and disclosure of such appointment in the Board’s Report.
No Independent Director shall hold offi  ce for more than two 
consecutive terms of fi ve years and thereaft er he shall be eligible 
for appointment aft er expiry of three years (cooling period) of 
ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an 
Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three 
years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any 
other capacity, either directly or indirectly. 

 At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be 
ensured that the number of Boards on which such Independent 
Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an 
Independent Director but only three listed companies as an 
Independent Director in case such person is also serving as a 
Whole-time Director of a listed company.

3. Senior Management Personnel:

 In terms of the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 
2013, a Whole-time Key managerial personnel (KMP) shall not 
hold offi  ce in more than one Company except in its subsidiary 
company at the same time.

 However the KMP can be a Director in any other Company (which 
may or may not be a subsidiary) with the approval of the Board.

 Any remuneration payable to a Managing Director/Whole-time 
Director/ Executive Director who is also drawing remuneration 
in another Company in a similar position shall be subject to 
the highest maximum  limit admissible from any one Company 
calculated in such manner as provided in Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

 Evaluation:

 The Committ ee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every 
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel at regular intervals 
(yearly or such other interval as the Committ ee deems fi t).

 PART – C

 POLICY RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION FOR THE WHOLE-TIME 
DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

A) General:

1. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time 
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel and other employees 
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will be determined by the Committ ee and recommended to the Board 
for approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. 
shall be subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the 
Company and Central Government, wherever required.

2. The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Whole-time 
Director shall be in accordance with the percentage/slabs/conditions 
laid down under Section 197,198 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Schedule V and rules 4 and 5 of the 
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules 2014 made thereunder.

3. Increments to the existing remuneration/compensation structure 
may be recommended by the Committ ee to the Board which should be 
within the celing limit slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case 
of Whole-time Director. 

B) Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP 
and Senior Management Personnel:

1. Fixed pay:

 The Whole-time Director/KMP and Senior Management Personnel 
shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by 
the Board on the recommendation of the Committ ee. The break- up 
of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s 
contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. 
shall be decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation 
of the Committ ee and approved by the shareholders and Central 
Government, wherever required.

2. Minimum Remuneration:

 If, in any fi nancial year, the Company has no profi ts or its profi ts are 
inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-time 
Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, 
with the previous approval of the Central Government.

3. Provisions for excess remuneration:

 If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by 
way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013 or the prior sanction of the Central 
Government, where required, is not obtained, he/she shall refund such 
sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust 
for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum 
refundable to it unless it is approved by the Central Government.

C) Remuneration to Non- Executive/Independent Director:

1. Remuneration/Commission:

 The remuneration/commission shall be fi xed as per the slabs and 
conditions mentioned in the Articles of Association of the Company 
and the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

2. Sitt ing Fees:

 The Non-Executive/Independent Director may receive remuneration 
by way of fees for att ending meetings of Board or Committ ee thereof. 
Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed ` One lakh 
per meeting of the Board or Committ ee or such amount as may be 
prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

3. Commission:

 Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by 
shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the profi ts of the 
Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

4. Stock Options:

 An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of 
the Company.

 On behalf of the Board of Directors

 Naresh Malhotra Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan
 Whole-Time Director Managing Director
 DIN:00004597  DIN:02696897

Date: September 16, 2015
Place: Mumbai
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Annexure D

[Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014]

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the fi nancial year and the 
percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Offi  cer, Chief Executive Offi  cer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 
fi nancial year;

(` in lacs)

Sr. 
No.

Names of Directors/Key Managerial 
Personnel

Designation Remuneration Ratio of Directors 
remuneration to Median 

remuneration

% increase 
in the 

remuneration
DIRECTORS

1. Mr. Namit Malhotra Chairman, Chief Executive 
Offi  cer and Executive Director

50  12.81 :1 #

2. Mr. Naresh Mahendranath Malhotra Whole – time Director 60  15.37:1 Nil
3. Mr. Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan Managing Director 50  12.81 :1 #

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
1. Mr. Vikas Rathee Chief Financial Offi  cer 137.5 N.A. #
2. Mr. Navin  Agarwal Company Secretary  3.57 N.A. #
3. Ms. Kirti Desai Company Secretary  15.58 N.A. #

 #Details not given as Mr. Namit Malhotra, Mr. Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan, Directors and Mr. Vikas Rathee, Mr. Navin Agarwal and Ms. Kirti Desai 
were KMPs only for part of the Financial Year 2014-15.

 Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration only by way of sitt ing Fees.

2. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the fi nancial year is;

 Percentage of increase in the median remuneration on employees is 9%.

3. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company; 

 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on June 30, 2015 was 439.

4. The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance;

 The average increase given to employees were 5.20%. The average increase in remuneration is not based on Company`s performance alone, but also 
takes consideration other factors like market benchmark data, the average increases being given by peer companies and overall budgetary impact 
within the Company.

5. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the company; 
(In ‘`’ )

Aggregate remuneration of  key managerial personnel (KMP) in FY15 
 Remuneration in  FY 2014-15 2,56,66,785
 Revenue from operations 1,13,49,35,721
 Remuneration as % of revenue 2.26%
 Loss aft er Tax (PAT) (28,11,01,952)
 Remuneration of KMP (as % of PAT)* N.A.

 *In view of losses, not applicable.
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6. a.  Variations in the market capitalisation of the company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of the current fi nancial year and previous 
fi nancial year; 

(` in lacs)

Particulars *June 30,2015 **June 30, 2014 % Change 

Market Capitalisation 
(No. of Shares X Market price) (In `)

137,633.77 91,688.92 50.10%

Price Earning Ratio N.A. 37.71:1 N.A.

  * Market Price at NSE as on June 30,2015 : ` 46.05/-

  ** Market Price at NSE as on June 30,2014 : ` 49.45/-

 b.  Percentage increase over decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the company in comparison to the rate at which the company 
came out with the last public off er in case of listed companies:

Market price as on June 30, 2015  ` 46.05*

Price at the time of IPO launched in fi scal 2006 
(converted to price of each share of face value of ` 1 each)

` 37.4

% Increase of Market price over the price at the time of Public Issue 23.26%

Note:  1.  Closing share price of the Equity shares at NSE Ltd. has been used for the above table.

 2.  The IPO of the Company was launched in the Fiscal 2006 when the face value of the shares was ` 10/- each. Considering the stock split 
of equity shares from ` 10/- to ` 1/- each, conversion price works out to be ` 37.40/- per share.

7. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last fi nancial year and its 
comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justifi cation thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration; 

 Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last fi nancial year was 5.20%. Theincrease 
in remuneration is determined based on the performance by the employee of the Company.

8. Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the company; 
(` in lacs)

  Executive Director  Chief Financial 
Offi  cer  Company Secretary  Company Secretary 

  Mr. NamitMalhotra 
(Chairman and CEO)

Mr. Ramakrishnan 
Sankaranarayanan 

(Managing Director)
Mr. Vikas Rathee** Mr. Navin Agarwal * **Ms. Kirti Desai #

Remuneration in FY15  50 50 137.5 3.57 15.58

Revenue from operations 11,349.35 11,349.35 11,349.35 11,349.35 11,349.35

Remuneration as % of revenue 0.44% 0.44% 1.21% 0.03% 0.14%

Loss aft er Tax (PAT) (2,811.01) (2,811.01) (2,811.01) (2,811.01) (2,811.01)

Remuneration  (as % of  PAT)^ N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

 *Upto July 31, 2014  ** From August 1, 2014  # Upto July 7, 2015  ^In view of losses, not applicable
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9. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors; 

 It is based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committ ee and as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

10. the ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the 
highest paid director during the year;

 The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the 
highest paid director during the year is1:2.29

11. Affi  rmation

 It is hereby affi  rmed that the remuneration paid is as perthe Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 

 On behalf of the Board of Directors

 Naresh Malhotra Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan
 Whole-Time Director Managing Director
 DIN:00004597  DIN:02696897

Date: September 16, 2015
Place: Mumbai
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1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview 
of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and a 
reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 
programs

CSR is strongly connected with the principles of Sustainability; an organization 
should make decisions based not only on fi nancial factors, but also on the 
social and environmental consequences. Therefore, it is the core corporate 
responsibility of Prime Focus Limited to practice its corporate values through 
its commitment to grow in a socially and environmentally responsible way, while 
meeting the interests of its stakeholders.

The CSR policy of the Company can be viewed on website of the Company at 

(Weblink: htt p://www.primefocus.com/sites/default/fi les/pdf/CSR_Policy.pdf)

2. Composition of the CSR Committ ee. Sr. No.  Name of the Member Position in Committ ee
1. Mr. Rivkaran Chadha Chairman
2. Mr. Naresh Malhotra Member
3. Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh or his 

alternate Mr. Vibhav Parikh
Member 

3. Average net profi t of the company for last three fi nancial years - ` (9,46,02,378)

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in 

item 3 above)

Not Applicable in view of Loss

5. Details of CSR spent during the fi nancial year Not Applicable

a. Total amount to be spent for the fi nancial year; NIL

b. Amount unspent, if any; - Not Applicable

c. Manner in which the amount spent during the fi nancial year Not Applicable

6. Reasons for failure to spend the two percent of the average net 

profi t of the last three fi nancial years or any part thereof:

Not Applicable

7. Responsibility statement of CSR Committ ee of the Board The CSR Committ ee states that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR 
Policy, is in compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Naresh Malhotra
Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 00004597

Rivkaran Chadha
Ch airman – CSR Committ ee

DIN: 00308288

Date: September 16, 2015
Place: Mumbai

Annual Report On Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities 
Annexure E
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Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in 
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

1.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis - Nil

2.  Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name of the 
related party and 

Nature of 
relationship

Nature of 
contracts/
arrangements/
transactions 

Duration of 
the contracts / 
arrangements/
transactions 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or arrangements 
or transactions including 
the value, if any: 

Date(s) of 
approval by the 
Board, if any: 

Amount paid as 
advances, if any

Prime Focus World 
Creative Services 
Private Limited

Subsidiary Consideration 
received towards 
Business Transfer 
Agreement dated 
July 31, 2014

One time The total net consideration 
is in INR equivalent of not 
lessthan USD 38 million to 
be discharged in a manner 
and on such terms and 
conditions as is mutually 
agreed upon between the 
Company and Prime Focus 
World Creative Services 
Private Ltd.

August 1, 2014 
and ratifi cation 
by shareholders 
vide postal ballot 
on September 10, 
2014

Received in 
2014-15 - 
` 1,675,800,000
Full 
consideration – 
`2,297,049,000

 On behalf of the Board of Directors

 Naresh Malhotra Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan
 Whole-Time Director Managing Director
 DIN:00004597  DIN:02696897

Date: September 16, 2015
Place: Mumbai

Annexure F
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To,

The Members,

Prime Focus Limited 
CIN: L92100MH1997PLC108981
Prime Focus House, Linking Road,
Opp. Citi Bank, Khar (West),
Mumbai- 400052.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Prime 
Focus Limited (hereinaft er called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verifi cation of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and other records maintained by the Company and also 
the information provided by the Company, its offi  cers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report 
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the fi nancial year ended on 30th June 2015, complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinaft er:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and other records maintained by the Company for the fi nancial year ended on 
30thJune, 2015 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992/ Securities and Exchange Board Of India (Prohibition 
Of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (eff ective 15th May,2015);

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 /Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefi ts) Regulations,2014 (eff ective 28th October 2014) Not Applicable as the Company 
did not have anyEmployee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme in force during the period under review;

Annexure G
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30th JUNE 2015

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]



PRIME FOCUS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

60

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies and 
dealing with client - Not Applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the fi nancial year 
under review;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 -Not applicable as the Company has not delisted/
propose to delist its equity shares from any stock exchange during the fi nancial year under review;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 -Not applicable as the Company has not bought back/
propose to buy-back any of its securities during the fi nancial year under review.

vi. The Company has as represented by management, the following laws, which are specifi cally applicable to the Company.:

1. Indian Contract Act, 1872

2. Indian Copyright Act, 1957

3. Trademarks Act, 1999

4. The Patent Act, 1970 

5. The Information Technology Act, 2000 and rules, regulations and amendments made thereunder.

  We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (not applicable as not eff ective during the period under 
review).

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, and; 

 During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned 
above.

 We further report that: -

� The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried 
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

� Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent suffi  ciently in 
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifi cations on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

� Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the management were taken unanimously.

 We further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the basis of the Compliance 
Certifi cate(s) issued by the Company Secretary and other Senior Management Personnel and taken on record by the Board of Directors at 
their meeting, we are of the opinion that there are systems and processes in place in the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines: -
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� As informed, the Company has responded to notices for demands, claims, penalties etc., levied by various statutory /regulatory authorities 
and initiated actions for corrective measures, wherever found necessary.

We further report that during the audit period:

1.  The members have passed the following special resolutions which have a major bearing on the Company :

� Accorded consent to the Board of Directors to borrow moneys on behalf of the Company up to ` 1000 crore.

� Accorded consent to the Board of Directors to create mortgage/pledge/hypothecation/charge on all or any of the movable/immovable 
properties of the Company for securing the borrowings of the Company upto ` 1000 crore.

� Ratifi ed agreement to sell off /transfer or otherwise dispose off  the “Backend” Business and Undertaking of the Company to Prime 
Focus World Creative Services Private Limited.

� Accorded consent for Adoption of new Articles which are in conformity with the provisions of the Act.

� Accorded consent to the Board of Directors to enter into related Party Transactions upto a certain annual limit as per Section 188(1) of 
the Act.

� Accorded approval to all existing material Related Party Transactions which would continue beyond 31st March 2015

� Accorded consent to the Board of Directors to frame the proposed ESOP Scheme of the Company;

� Accorded consent to the Board of Directors to extend the benefi ts of the PFL-ESOP Scheme2014 to the eligible employees of the 
holding company, subsidiary and, associate companies, if any, of the Company as per applicable laws.

� Accorded consent to the Board of Directors to create, off er, issue and allot, from time to time and in one or more tranches, by way of a 
Preferential Issue:

(i) up to 23,076,923 Equity Shares of a face value of ` 1/- each to Monsoon Studio Private Limited, 

(ii) up to 23,076,923 Equity Shares of a face value of ` 1/- each to Reliance MediaWorks Limited for cash and 

(iii) up to 67,307,692 Equity Shares of a face value of ` 1/- each to Reliance MediaWorks Limited as a consideration for transfer of its 
Film and Media Services business (“F&M Business”) to the Company.

2.  Allotment of 4891 unlisted, unrated, redeemable Debentures aggregating to ` 48.91 crore (Rupees Forty Eight Crore Ninety One Lac) was 
made by the Board of Directors to certain pre-identifi ed persons on a private placement basis.

For S. N. ANANTHASUBRAMANIAN & CO

S N Ananthasubramanian
FCS No.4206 

C P No. 1774 
Date: 12th September, 2015
Place: Thane 
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Coming of Age: FY15 marks beginning of new chapter of growth for PFL

Section 1

Prime Focus at 18

FY15 saw Prime Focus work on some of the biggest blockbusters of the 
year including Avengers: Age of Ultron (US$1.4 billion), Guardians of the 
Galaxy (US$774 million), The Hunger Games: Mockingjay Part 1 (US$752 
million) and Mission: Impossible – Rogue Nation (US$679 million). On the 
technology side, PFT has logged over 1.2 million hours of content under 
management, 100,000 hours of content is digitized annually and manages 
100K new TV episodes a year. As we turn 18 and enter a new phase, we have: 
Growth. Experience. Confi dence. Potential….all on our side.

Growth: From a garage start-up to the World’s largest integrated media 
services powerhouse with a unique ‘Creative cum tech’ combination and 
strong presence (21 global offi  ces) across all major content markets 
employing over 6,000 personnel and having over ` 16 billion in revenues.

Experience: Working with leading Hollywood studios like Disney, Marvel, 
Universal,Dreamworks, Paramount, Lionsgate, etc. & top Bollywood players 
for creative services. Similarly, technology and technology enabled services 
for marquee clients like FX Network, Star TV, Crown Media, SABC, National 
Geographic channel, ZEE TV, Sony, BBC, HOOQ, BARC, Hotstar and many 
others.

Confi dence: Won the coveted Academy Award for Interstellar (and BAFTA 
& VES Awards), Best VFX Awards for Kick (IIFA Awards) and Sin City: A 
Dame To Kill For (Apollo Asia Award &Stereo Award from the Advanced 
Imaging Society) and received Frost & Sullivan Global Growth Excellence 
Leadership Award and Marcom Awards for ‘Digital Next’ campaign at PFT.

Potential: Total Global M&E Revenue is expected to rise at a CAGR 
of 5.1% over the coming fi ve years to reach US$2.23 trillion in 2019. 
Filmed entertainment revenue will grow at 4.1% CAGR to 2019, reaching 
US$104.62 billion, strong growth will be seen in China (14.5% CAGR) and 
Latin America, US- global leader with 33% share will see above-average 
growth of 4.6% CAGR. Also, there is a huge untapped potential in the 
market for Content Management solutions for the M&E Industry globally – 
the total addressable market estimated at US$10.6 billion in 2014, which is 
also expected to grow at a steady pace of 5%p.a.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
Section 2

FY15 Key Highlights

Post transformative transactions in the previous year, FY15 has seen 
smooth progress in the integration process. Already, Phase 1,which 
focused on maximizing positive synergies, cost optimization, building 
world class capabilities at Vancouver (operational), atleast some VFX 
work emanating out of India and divestiture of non-core activities, is 
nearing completion. Simultaneously, we have successfully entered Phase 
2 of scalable and sustainable growth spurred by multiple growth levers 
across businesses and geographies.

Creative Services, Established as world’s largest globally integrated 
media services powerhouse

• Steady Integration of PFW and Dneg 

• Opened new Dneg Vancouver facility, in process of sett ing up Film 
City (Mumbai) facility to assist on Dneg projects

• Closed London & Vancouver PFW VFX operations, pruned 
India operations, eliminated duplicated overheads for cost 
consolidation 

• Maximizing cross-selling opportunities –VFXand 3D for Avengers: 
Age of Ultron, Terminator: Genisys & Ant-Man

• Strategic partnership with Gener8 – a global leader in 3D conversion 
technology to expand 3D services

• “A-Level” Pedigree in Hollywood with coveted Academy Award win for 
Best VFX for Interstellar

• Worked on some of the highest grossing movies of the year - 
Avengers: Age of Ultron, Guardians of the Galaxy, The Hunger Games: 
Mockingjay Part 1 and Mission Impossible: Rogue Nation

Technology business transforming the M&E industry

• CLEAR™, the fl agship product of PFT, now manages over 1.2 MN hours 
of content across the globe 

• DAX integration on track as fi rst year post-acquisition revenue 
achieved target with expanded market share 

• Opened a SEZ facility in Bengaluru & continued to expand sales and 
marketing footprint globally
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• Launched ‘Digital Next’ Go to Market campaign at NAB Show; off ering 
Cloud solutions for M&E enterprises 

• Clients Update:

• BARC project for play out monitoring services goes live, already 
streaming ~415 live channels across India 

• Various clients like BCCI, Warner Brothers and all DAX clients 
renewed contracts, some of them multi-year 

• Added new Clients Like EPIC TV, HOOQ, FX Networks, Crown 
Media Holdings and Tru Entertainment

• CLEAR™ Operations Cloud powers ‘Hotstar’, Asia’s biggest GEC 
OTT platform

• Won Global Growth Excellence Leadership Award from Frost & 
Sullivan 2015 for Media Resources & Workfl ow Management

• Won Marcom Awards for ‘Digital Next ‘Campaign 

PFL-RMW FMS merger complete; game-changer for Indian FMS business

• Merger completed post approvals, open off er & preferential 
allotment on April 7, 2015

• Enhanced leadership in fast growing Indian M&E market

• Unmatched value proposition with complete media services 
off ering across the spectrum

• Integrated facilities with strong asset base & signifi cant capacity 
addition

• Sold UK post production business to focus on core business

Fresh Capital Infusion

• RMW and the promoters infused fresh equity capital of ` 1.2 billion 
each into Prime Focus at ` 52 per share, through a preferential 
allotment aggregating ` 2.4 billion

• RMW Limited and the promoters concluded the open off er on January 
2, 2015, acquiring collective shareholding of 16.1% of fully diluted 
shares (including the announced preferential allotment)

• PFL raises ` 489 million through Redeemable Debentures not 
convertible into Equity Shares of the Company

Other Highlights 

• Namit Malhotra included in prestigious Variety Dealmakers Impact 
Report

• Namit Malhotra included in Economic Times Top 50 Inspiring 
Entrepreneurs

• Namit Malhotra honoured with FICCI Outstanding Contribution 
Award

• Prime Focus launches the Naresh Malhotra Foundation

Section 3

Global & Indian Media &Entertainment Industry Landscape

Global economy adjusting to lower commodity prices, growth to gather 
pace in 2016

2013 2014 2015 2016
World 3.3 3.4 3.1 3.6
Advanced Economies 1.1 1.8 2.0 2.2

US 1.5 2.4 2.6 2.8
Euro Area -0.3 0.9 1.5 1.6
Japan 1.6 -0.1 0.6 1.0
UK 1.7 3.0 2.5 2.2

Emerging Economies      
Brazil 0.1 -3.0 -1.0
Russia 1.3 0.6 -3.8 -0.6
India 6.9 7.3 7.3 7.5
China 7.7 7.3 6.8 6.3

Source: World Economic Outlook, IMF  

Global economic growth is projected to grow at 3.1% in 2015, increasing to 
3.6% in 2016. In advanced economies, the modest recovery that started in 
2014 is projected to strengthen further by 2016. For most emerging market 
economies, external conditions were diffi  cult in fi rst half of 2015 with 
increased fi nancial market volatility in summer, declining commodity prices 
and downward pressure on currencies. The growth is projected to be higher 
next year, more than off sett ing the expected gradual slowdown in China.

India, emerging as one of the largest and most promising economies–
expected growth of 7-7.5%

2012 -13 2013 - 14 2014 - 15

5.1%

6.9%
7.3%

Source: Central Statistics Offi  ce
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FY15 was an eventful year for the Indian economy with the newly elected 
government unleashing major structural reforms. These measures sent 
strong and positive signals to investors, resulting in a marked revival of 
sentiments and consumer demand. Sharp fall in prices of crude oil also 
buoyed growth. This had a benign impact on infl ation & current account 
defi cit. As infl ation tamed to desirable levels in the vicinity of 5%, the 
Reserve Bank of India eased monetary policies. The repo rate was reduced 
in January 2015. India’s GDP for FY15 grew by 7.3%, against 6.9% in the 
previous fi scal year. For the fi rst time, the Indian economy crossed the 
threshold of US$2 trillion in FY15. (source : RBI)

Global Entertainment & Media revenues growing at 5.1%, to reach US$2.2 
trillion by 2019

As per PWC’s Global entertainment and media outlook 2015–2019, the total 
worldwide entertainment and media revenues will rise at a CAGR of 5.1% 
over the coming fi ve years, from US$1.74 trillion in 2014 to US$2.23 trillion 
in 2019. The total global fi lmed entertainment revenue will rise at a 4.1% 
CAGR to 2019, reaching US$104.62 billion. Particularly strong growth will be 
seen in China (14.5% CAGR) and in Latin America due to 6.1% CAGR in Brazil 
and 11.5% CAGR in Argentina. Even the US, the global leader with 33% of 
the total market in 2014, will see above-average growth of 4.6% CAGR.

G lobal Entertainment & Media Spend

US$ 1.74
trillion

2014 2019

US$ 2.23
trillion

Source: Global entertainment and media outlook: 2015-2019 – PwC

Global Box offi  ce collections reached US$36.4 billion, driven primarily by 
Asia Pacifi c region

According to the Theatrical Market Statistics 2014 released by the Motion 
Pictures Association of America (MPAA), the global box offi  ce of all fi lms 
released around the world in 2014 reached US$36.4 billion. The Chinese 
box offi  ce delivered a stellar performance, recording a collection of US$4.8 
billion in 2014, an increase of 34%, becoming the fi rst international market 
(non US/Canada) to cross US$4 billion in box offi  ce revenue.

Global Box Offi  ce - All Films (US$ Billions)
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Source: Theatrical Market Statistics 2014

2014 Top 5 Non-US Box Offi  ce Markets  All Films (US$ Billions)

China 4.8
Japan 2.0
France 1.8
UK 1.7
India 1.7

Source: IHS Screen Digest, local sources

In 2014, the Asia Pacifi c region (US$12.4 billion) increased 12% compared to 
2013, driving the international increase and remaining the largest region in 
terms of international box offi  ce for the second year in a row.

Global digital cinema grew at 14% leading to increasing demand for 
VFX&3D heavy Hollywood blockbusters 

The total cinema screens increased by 6% in 2014 to over 142,000 screens. 
This was driven mainly by the continued double-digit growth of digital 
screens in Asia-Pacifi c, which grew at over 15% in 2014. 90% of all screens 
globally are now digital in 2014, compared to 83% in 2013. 

41,518

86,171
(67%)

39,824

71,985
(64%)

35,975

53,367
(60%)

27,469

36,356
(57%)

15,483

19.580
(56%)

20142010 2011 2012 2013

U.S. / CanadaInternational

Source: Theatrical Market Statistics 2014
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Globally, the VFX industry sizeis~US$2.1 billion and is growing steadily 
(Source: Frank N. Magid Associates, Inc.) with VFX consuming about 30%-
40% of the total budget of a fi lm. VFX heavy fi lms perform well in the 
international markets because of a wider reach and greater demand. The 
VFX market is in line to grow at a steady pace going forward. 

Top 10 grossers of 2015:

Movie name Collections
(US$ Millions)

VFX 
Heavy

Jurassic World 1,665 �

Furious 7 1,512 �

Avengers: Age of Ultron 1,403 �

Minions 1,151 �

Inside Out 819 �

Mission Impossible: Rogue Nation 680 �

Fift y Shades of Grey 570  -
Cinderella (2015) 542 �

San Andreas 470 �

Terminator: Genisys 440 �

Source: Box Offi  ce Mojo

According to the Theatrical Market Statistics 2014, 9 of the top 10 and 
15 of the top 25 fi lms (Based on U.S./Canada Box Offi  ce collection) were 
released in 3D. Digital 3D screens continued to increase in all regions during 
2014. The share of digital 3D screens as a proportion of total digital screens 
increased from 47% in 2013 to 51% in 2014. In the Asia-Pacifi c region, the 
share of digital 3D screens as a proportion of total digital screens grew to 
70% in 2014, more than in any other region across the globe. 

Worldwide Digital 3D Screens 

22,385

36,344

45,546

53,069

64,905

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Source: Theatrical Market Statistics 2014 by MPAA

3D continues to contribute signifi cantly to global fi lm collections. 

2015 3D Collections
(US$ Millions)

Jurassic World 651
Avengers: Age of Ultron 459
Inside Out 354
Minions 333

Source: Box Offi  ce Mojo

Growing need for Content Management solutions for E&M industry

                                               Total Addressable Market (In US$ billion)                                                                                                                               
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Source: Company Estimate

The total addressable market for technology-based media services is 
expected to grow at a CAGR of 5% from US$10.6 billion to reach US$12.9 
billion by 2018. North America is the largest market while Asia and Latin 
America are the fastest growing markets.

Digital Content will account for 87% of the growth in M&E Spending 
between 2013 and 2017, with the growth of Digital content comes 
increasingly complex media management.
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Animation

There were 10 animated movies in the top 100 movies released during the year. Some of the hit movies include:

2014 & 2015 Collections
(US$ Millions)

Inside Out 354
Minions 333
The Lego 258
Home 177
The SpongeBob Movie: Sponge Out of Water 163

Source: Box Offi  ce Mojo

20 Animated movies are announced to be released in 2015 and 2016.

Indian E&M Industry poised to grow at 14% CAGR to reach ` 1.9 trillion

The Indian Media & Entertainment (M&E) industry registered a growth of 11.7% over 2013 to reach market size of over ` 1 trillion. According to the FICCI-
KPMG Indian Media and Entertainment Industry Report 2015, the industry continued to be dominated by the rapid spread and reach of digitization across 
all segments of the value chain – from fi lm production to exhibition. Digital advertising saw “stupendous” growth of 44.5% in 2014 over 2013, driven by the 
explosion of smart devices and gadgets, coupled with the lowering of tariff s of data charges, both mobile as well as broadband. By the end of 2014, India had 
over 116 million internet enabled smartphones. 

In television, advertising saw strong growth, driven by the positive shift  in the macroeconomic environment, the general election spends and the emergence 
of e-commerce as a signifi cant new advertising spender.

Overall industry size 
(INR billion)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Growth in 
2014 over 2013

2015P 2016P 2017P 2018P 2019P CAGR 
(2014- 2019P)

TV 241 257 297 329 370.1 417.2 474.9 13.8% 543.2 631.2 739.6 854.6 975.5 15.5%
Print 172 175.2 192.9 208.8 224.1 243.1 263.4 8.3% 284.5 307.1 331.9 358 386.8 8.0%
Films 104.4 89.3 83.3 92.9 112.4 125.3 126.4 0.9% 136.3 155.6 170.7 186.3 204 10.0%
Radio 8.4 8.3 10 11.5 12.7 14.6 17.2 17.6% 19.6 22.3 27 32.7 39.5 18.1%
Music 7.4 7.8 8.6 9 10.6 9.6 9.8 2.3% 10.4 12 14.2 16.9 18.9 14.0%
OOH 16.1 13.7 16.5 17.8 18.2 19.3 22 14.0% 24.4 27.1 29.6 32.2 35.1 9.8%
Animation and VFX 17.5 20.1 23.7 31 35.3 39.7 44.9 13.1% 51 58.7 68.5 80.6 95.5 16.3%
Gaming 7 8 10 13 15.3 19.2 23.5 22.4% 27.5 31.8 35.4 40 45.8 14.3%
Digital Advertising 6 8 10 15.4 21.7 30.1 43.5 44.5% 62.5 84 115.3 138.2 162.5 30.2%
Total 580 587 652 728 821 918 1026 12% 1159 1330 1532 1740 1964 14%

Source: FICCI-KPMG Indian Media and Entertainment industry report 2015

The industry is expected to register a higher CAGR of 13.9% to touch ` 1,964 billion by 2019. Key success factors going forward will be tailored content 
strategies for audiences (be it global, national or local) and a focus on building the relevant digital and physical touch points to enable easier and more open 
and interactive access. With this, India could be at the cusp of signifi cant growth and earn its place in the global spotlight.

Indian fi lm industry to reach ` 204 billion by 2019 growing at CAGR of 10%

2014 was a “mixed bag” for the fi lms segment with category-A fi lms with top actors continuing to att ract audiences and being successful at the box offi  ce 
and some strong content driven fi lms which delivered high returns on investment. However, fi lms without either strong content or top league actors failed. 
The total size of the Indian fi lm industry grew marginally in 2014 to reach ` 126.4 billion, compared to `125.3 billion in 2013. Domestic theatrical revenues 
continued to be the mainstay of the industry, accounting for ` 93.5 billion (74%) of the total revenues. There has been in interesting trend noticed over the 
last few years: the gap between the Top 10 fi lms and the rest has widened further wherein share of the Top 10 fi lms in terms of gross box offi  ce collections 
grew by 2.4% in 2014 over 2013 collections.
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As digitization widens the simultaneous reach of fi lms, the release window gets narrower and narrower, playing a critical part in the release strategy of 
fi lms. During the year, fi lmmakers continued to consciously plan the release of their fi lms either during major festivals or during long weekends, and avoided 
major sporting events like the IPL. It is estimated that between 60-80% of a fi lm’s theatrical revenues are now collected in the fi rst week of release. This 
has driven fi lmmakers to spend more heavily on marketing.

Animation, VFX& Post-Production

The overall size of the animation, VFX and post-production segment grew to ` 44.9 million in 2014, compared to ` 39.7 million in 2013. The highest growth 
was recorded in the VFX sub-segment, which grew by 22%followed by post-production with growth of 15%.

Size of Animation, VFX and post-production industry in India

Segments 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 CAGR % 2010 – 2014 Growth in 2014
Animation services 6.2 7.1 7.6 8 8.1 7% 1%
Animation production 3.9 4.2 4.5 4.7 5.1 7% 9%
VFX 4.5 6.2 7.7 9.3 11.3 26% 22%
Post-production 9.1 13.5 15.5 17.7 20.4 22% 15%
Total 23.7 31 35.3 39.7 44.9 17% 13%

Source: FICCI-KPMG Indian Media and Entertainment industry report 2015

The Indian VFX industry grew at 26% CAGR between 2010 & 2014 on the back of steady rise in the number of fi lms being made with VFX. Global studios are 
also increasingly using Indian VFX studios - a clear validation of the creative talent in India. According to the FICCI KPMG Indian Media and Entertainment 
Industry Report 2015, out of the ten movies nominated for Oscars in the 2014 Best Visual Eff ects category, Indian studios performed outsourcing services 
for six movies; namely Interstellar, Guardians of The Galaxy, Night at the Museum - Secret of the Tomb, Malefi cient,Godzilla and X Men: Days of Future 
Past. The VFX work outsourced in India is rising exponentially, with more high-end projects being delivered from India. Today, almost all major productions 
have a good amount of VFX. In 2014, fi lms like PK, Kick, Happy New Year, Bang Bang and Singham Returns, all had considerable VFX content. Regional fi lms, 
particularly, south Indian fi lms, are also increasingly using VFX. Baahubali is the fi rst Indian fi lm that spent more than ` 850 million on VFX. 

Top 10 Bollywood grossers of 2014 and 2013 with number of VFX shots

2014 movies Box offi  ce 
collection 

INR 
million

VFX partner Number 
of VFX 

shots 
(approx)

2013 movies Box offi  ce 
collection INR 

million

VFX partner Number of 
VFX shots 

(approx)

PK 3,395 Riva VFX 700 Dhoom 3 2,803 Tata Elxsi 1,500
Kick 2,330 Prime Focus 1,000 Krrish 3 2,405 Red Chillies VFX 3,500
Happy New Year 2,033 Red Chillies VFX 2,000 Chennai Express 2,267 Reliance MediaWorks & 

Red chillies VFX
1300

Bang Bang 1,810 Prime Focus 1,600 Yeh Jawaani Hai Deewani 1,900 Prime Focus 300
Singham Returns 1,410 Reliance Mediaworks 2,500 Goliyon Ki Raasleela Ram- Leela 1,100 Reliance Mediaworks 750 plus
Holiday 1,127 Future Works 750 Bhaag Milkha Bhaag 1,035 Pixion Studios 160
Jai Ho 1,110 Prime Focus 150 plus Grand Masti 1,025 Pixion Studios 500
Ek Villain 1,055 Prime Focus 200 plus Race 2 1,020 Prime Focus 1,000 plus
2 States 1,040 Reliance Mediaworks 250 Aashiqui 2 854 Prime Focus 107
Humpty Sharma Ki Dulhania 768 NA NA Special Chabbis 700 Imagzing Labs NA

Source: FICCI-KPMG Indian Media and Entertainment industry report 2015
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The appetite and demand for 3D content is escalating in India. With increasing numbers of 3D screens being launched, as well as the rise in 3D television 
sets, demand for conversion from 2D to 3D is expected to rise steadily. Compared to shooting original content in 3D, conversion is a more economical 
proposition. Some of the biggest fi lms of all-time, like Star Wars: The Phantom Menace, Marvel’s The Avengers and Titanic, have been converted from 2D to 
3D. Four of the top fi ve worldwide grossing movies of 2014 were released in 3D, and recent successes like Avengers: Age of Ultron and Jurassic World have 
re-kindled the prospects for 3D cinema.

2014 was an exciting year for the Indian Animation sector with major successes like Char Sahibzaade, which grossed ` 332 million. The year also saw the 
release of India’s costliest animation fi lm and the fi rst fi lm shot with photorealistic performance capture technology, Kochadaiiyaan. India continues to 
showcase its animation and VFX strength and capabilities across all segments – fi lms, television and advertisement. There has been a steady rise in demand 
for animation content in India, as evidenced by the success of international animation fi lms released in India. In 2014, two international animation movies 
crossed ` 100 million in gross collections – How to Train Your Dragon 2 and Rio 2.

Digital transformation continues to change consumers’ content consumption patt erns with the gap between mobile screen and TV screen gett ing narrower. 
Whether traditional or digital, at the heart of this digital transformation is still content, and content enterprise will thus have to reinvent their business 
models keeping disruptive technologies like Cloud at the centre to meet the emerging demand both in terms of volumes as well as platforms like OTT, whose 
impact is being felt across the supply chain, from infl uencing content packaging aff ecting the bott om line. If M&E enterprises need to batt le losses or low 
margins and build operational effi  ciencies, they need to digitally transform to build connected enterprises. They need to become hyper digital to cater to 
the hyper digital consumer. PFT, with its dominating presence in cloud based media ERP Suite, CLEAR™, is ideally poised to reinvent the way M&E industry 
functions.

Section 4

Company/Business Overview

Prime Focus Limited (PFL) is the world’s largest integrated media services powerhouse providing end-to-end creative services (visual eff ects, stereo 3D 
conversion, animation), technology products & services (Media ERP Suite and Cloud-enabled media services), production services (equipment rental) and 
post production services (Digital Intermediate, picture post) to Studios, Broadcast and Advertising industries. The Company is headquartered in Mumbai, 
India. The Company was founded in 1997 in Mumbai by Mr Namit Malhotra to provide post production services. Over the years, the Company has acquired 
access to global markets through strategic acquisitions as well as established state-of-the-art capabilities of its own. The Company has joined hands with 
top-tier studio customers to deliver quality franchise movies. Prime Focus has been able to leverage its global business model and continues to expand into 
new markets. In FY15, over 80% of PFL’s revenues came from outside India. The Company’s global clientele is serviced from 16 cities across the globe. Prime 
Focus has a highly diff erentiated business model which seamlessly blends creativity, technology and fi nance to provide a holistic solution to its clients.
During the year, Reliance MediaWorks announced the merging of their global fi lm and media services business with PFL.

Prime Focus World, the creative services business arm of Prime Focus, is the world’s largest independent creative services provider. Prime Focus World, the 
creative services arm of PFL, merged with Double Negative (Dneg), one of the world’s foremost providers of visual eff ects.

PFT owns the path-breaking and industry leading technology solution - CLEAR™ (Hybrid Cloud enabled Media ERP Suite). The Company also owns Primetime 
Emmy® award-winning DAX Digital Dailies® and View-D™ (stereoscopic 2D to 3D conversion process). It leverages its Global Digital Pipeline and pioneering 
delivery model WorldSourcing® and partners with content creators at every stage of the process ensuring creative enablement, work fl ow effi  ciencies and 
cost optimization. In mid-2014 Prime Focus Technologies acquired DAX, a leading provider in cloud-based production workfl ow solutions.

PFL is listed on the BSE and NSE of India, and has operations in Los Angeles, New York, Vancouver, Toronto, London, Johannesburg, Cape Town, Singapore, 
Beijing, Mumbai, Delhi, Goa, Hyderabad, Bangalore, Kolkata and Chandigarh. The Company’s clients include all the biggest studios like Warner Bros, Marvel, 
Universal Studios, Paramount, Lucasfi lm, Sony, Twentieth Century Fox, Legendary Pictures, and DreamWorks, broadcast networks like Bloomberg, Disney, 
Star, Associated Press and Zee, and advertising agencies like JWT and Lowe, amongst others.
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More than 6,000 personnel’s are working for PFL across 21 facilities in 4 continents across 7 time zones. This global presence is a strong diff erentiator, as 
well as key to profi tability, optimizing local advantages. With its JV operational in China, the Company is now present in all key content markets globally.

World Sourcing Model®

Marquee investors have constantly backed PFL over the years further validating its robust business model and overall performance. In November 2012, 
Prime Focus successfully raised ~US$70 million from Standard Chartered Group. AID Partners Capital Limited, a private equity fi rm focused on buyout 
opportunities and expansion capital primarily in media and entertainment sector, invested US$10 million in PFW valuing it at US$250 million. Macquarie 
Capital, the principal investing arm of the Macquarie Group, further invested US$38 million into PFW, valuing it at an Enterprise Value ofUS$300 million. In 
April 2015, Reliance MediaWorks has invested ` 1.2 billion in PFL. 

Key Business Segments

Creative Services

VFX

In the last fi nancial year, Prime Focus has delivered VFX services for 27 Bollywood movies. Following the merger with Double Negative, PFW was catapulted 
into the top tier of independent VFX service providers worldwide. This augments PFW’s 3D conversion leadership, now making it the “house of choice” for 
VFX & 3D services for Hollywood studios. Some of the major VFX projects completed last year include:

Mission Impossible: Rogue Nation
Ant-Man
Terminator: Genisys
Avengers: Age of Ultron
Interstellar
Ex Machina
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The Gunman
Insurgen
Kingsman: The Secret Service
Jupiter Ascending
Paddington
Exodus: Gods and Kings
The Hunger Games: Mockingjay Part 1
Sin City: A Dame To Kill For

Stereo Conversion

Prime Focus is a market leader with less than 30% market share in 
Hollywood 3D Conversion. With its proprietary View-D™ technology, global 
scale and presence, short time-to-market, global delivery capabilities and 
artist driven conversions, Prime Focus off ers competitive advantages and 
execution capabilities.

Major 3D projects completed last year by PFW include:

Ant-Man
Terminator: Genisys
Avengers: Age of Ultron
Seventh Son
Teenage Mutant Ninja Turtles
Guardians of the Galaxy
Sin City: A Dame To Kill For
Transformers: Age of Extinction

Post-Production Services

Post-production constitutes an integral part of the Prime Focus off ering. 
The business has been built on the strength of a diff erentiated post-
production off ering, aimed at meeting the exacting and evolving demands 
of the advertising, broadcast and fi lm industries. The RMW (fi lm and media 
services business) - PFL merger rounds out the Prime Focus off ering in the 
fast growing Indian M&E market.

The Indian VFX team delivered over 8,000 VFX shots over the course of the 
year for some of Bollywood’s biggest movies. VFX delivered in the last year 
for Bollywood Movies includes:

• Humshakals 
• Ek Villian
• Lekar Hum Deewana DIl
• Kick
• Mary Kom

• Khoobsurat
• Bang Bang
• Happy New Year
• Happy Ending
• The Shaukeens
• Action Jackson
• Tevar
• Hey Bro
• Gabbar is Back
• Tanu weds Manu 2
• Dil Dhakne Do
• Hamari Aduri Kahani
• Bajrangi Bhaijaan
Commercials completed in the last year by the Company include:

• Big Bazaar (Crazy Weekend)
• 99Acres.com
• Cadbury ‘5 Star’
• iBall Andi – 5K Panther and 4U Frisbee
• Google GOSF
• Blenders Pride Fashion
• Big Rock
• Mumbai Mirror
• HelpAge India
• BMW
• Panasonic
• Asian Paints

And TV Shows that Prime Focus worked on last year included:

• Dance India Dance
• Gangs of Hasseepur
• Zee Risthey Awards, IFFA Awards, Apsara Awards & GIMA Awards
• Master Chef – Junior
• M-TV Rodies
• YUDH
• Miss Malini
• SMJ-2 AKPL
• HarGhar (2013 & 2014)
• Jhalak Dikhlaja – Bangla
• Comedy with Kapil (2014)
• The Anupam Kher show
• Cover shot (2013 & 14)
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Technology Products and Services

The Technology business off ers customers transformational solutions that 
help to manage their business of content bett er. CLEAR™ is the world’s fi rst 
and most proven hybrid cloud-enabled Media ERP Suite that virtualizes 
the content supply chain. Customers can bundle them all as a Cloud Media 
ERP Suite or pick from the below 5 power-packed modules of CLEAR™ to 
address their specifi c business challenge.

Modules of CLEAR™

• Cloud MAM - ONE enterprise MAM on Cloud for the company across 
geographies, departments & businesses

• Operations Cloud - Scalable Content Operations on Cloud (Transcode, 
Auto QC, Storage, Package & Deliver) with workfl ow orchestration 
built-in

• Broadcast Cloud – Media ERP suite for workfl ow orchestration across 
broadcast enterprise, supply chain and partner ecosystem

• Production Cloud – MPAA® audited and Emmy® award winning DAX 
Digital Dailies®, the de facto industry standard

• Secure Screener – Industry’s fi rst fully secure screener application 
with DRM protected download capability

Numbers that speak for themselves:

• Over 1.2 million hours of Content Under Management
• Powered over 1.6 million concurrent streams for OTT platform
• 168 Hybrid Cloud locations
• Annually digitised 100,000 hours of content
• Managing 100K new TV episodes a year
• 10 Million fi les of Syndication & VoD fulfi lment a year
• Patented Product(US Patent No: 7,660,416/8,218,764/12,976,929)
• 35,000 hours of Subtitling and Closed Captioning every year
• Over 85% of Prime Time shows in Hollywood use PFT’s product

Business Arms

Prime Focus World

Prime Focus World (PFW), the creative services business arm of Prime 
Focus, is the world’s largest independent creative services provider.
PFW,along with VFX company Double Negative,employs over 4,000 
professionals in 16 cities across 3 continents and 5 time zones. 

PFW provides visual eff ects, stereo 3D conversion and animation 
services to the Film, Broadcast, Advertising and Media industries. PFW 

has developed View-D™, a proprietary stereoscopic 2D to 3D conversion 
process that has been used in the stereo conversion of a large number of 
Hollywood blockbusters. The Company also holds a U.S. Patent that covers 
its stereo conversion process.

Leveraging its global digital pipeline and pioneering delivery model – 
WorldSourcing® - PFW partners content creators at every stage of the 
production process, ensuring workfl ow effi  ciencies, cost optimization and 
creative enablement. PFW is a leader in the 2D to 3D conversion space with 
approximately 29% market share.

PFW’s merger with Double Negative (Dneg) has positioned the Company 
as a tier 1 VFX service provider. The market is dominated by four to fi ve 
key players that control up to US$800 million of annual revenue. Double 
Negative works closely with leading Hollywood studios including Marvel, 
Universal, Warner Bros, Paramount, Twentieth Century Fox, Sony, Disney 
and Lionsgate. Some of Hollywood’s most prominent fi lmmakers such as 
Christopher Nolan, Ridley Scott , Ron Howard, Sam Mendes and Steven 
Spielberg have recently worked with Dneg.

Dneg’s predominance in the VFX market augments PFW’s 3D conversion 
leadership,making PFW the “house of choice” for VFX and 3D services for 
the Hollywood studios.

PFW / Dneg titles with over US$500 million in Box Offi  ce Collections this 
year included:

• Avengers: Age of Ultron (US$1.4billion) -VFX (Dneg) and 3D conversion 
services (PFW)

• Guardians of the Galaxy (US$774 million) – 3D conversion services by 
PFW

• Malefi cent (US$758 million) – 3D conversion services by PFW

• The Hunger Games: Mockingjay Part 1 (US$752 million) – VFX services 
by Dneg

• Mission Impossible: Rogue Nation (US$679 million) – VFX services by 
Dneg

• Interstellar (US$672 million) – VFX services by Dneg

The upcoming pipeline of work for PFW and Dneg is strong, with new 
additions such as:

• Batman v Superman: Dawn of Justice
• Inferno
• Bridge of Spies
• Spectre 
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• The Hunger Games: Mockingjay Part 2 
• In The Heart of The Sea 
• Miss Peregrine’s Home For Peculiar Children 
• The Huntsman 
• Captain America: Civil War 
• Alice Through The Looking Glass 
• Warcraft  
• Tarzan 
• Star Trek Beyond 
• Doctor Strange 
• Geostorm 

PFW is also active in the Animation space, with three broadcast seasons of 
an animated television series for a major toy manufacturer under its belt 
and more work in production.

FY15 Highlights:

• Dneg opened new VFX facility in Vancouver, to gain from labor tax 
benefi ts and maximize labor cost arbitrage across geographies. New 
contracts are added in Vancouver, in addition to the strong existing 
pipeline, which is expected to further boost margins going forward 

• Announced the creation of a brand-new, world-class VFX facility in 
Mumbai, to be called VFX Campus located in Film City; movies slated 
for the facility include The Huntsman & Inferno

• Cost Consolidation post-merger by closing PFW’s London and 
Vancouver VFX operations & pruned operations in India as well as 
elimination of duplicated overheads 

• Cross-selling opportunities already started to materialize with 
combined VFX and 3D services for Avengers: Age of Ultron, Terminator: 
Genisys& Ant-Man

• Strategic partnership with Canada’s Gener8, a global leader in 3D 
conversion technology, to expand 3D services

• Received U.S. Patent for its View-D™ stereo conversion technology

• Gaining traction in China with pipeline of projects like The Taking 
of Tiger Mountain, Sisters Over Flowers, The Journey of Flower, 
Chronicles of the Ghostly Tribe and The Legend of Sword

• Completed backend sale from PFL to PFW to improve effi  ciencies and 
retire high cost bank debt in India

Awards & Accolades

• “A-Level” Pedigree in Hollywood with Dneg’s win of Academy Award for 
Best VFX for Interstellar, 2nd aft er Inception

• Dneg also won BAFTA & VES Award for Interstellar

• PFW won Advanced Imaging Society Lumiere™ Technology Award for 
its‘Hybrid Stereo Pipeline’

• PFW won the Best Stereography Award from the Advanced Imaging 
Society for its work on ‘Sin City: A Dame To Kill For’, which also won24 
FPS and Apollo Asia Awards 2015 

• PFW won the Best VFX Award for Kick at IIFA Awards 2015&Screen 
Awards 2015

Prime Focus Technologies

Prime Focus Technologies (PFT) is the technology arm of Prime Focus. 
PFT brings together a unique blend of Media and IT skills backed by a deep 
understanding of the global media and entertainment industry. At the heart 
of PFT is CLEAR™, the world’s fi rst Media ERP Suite, which manages content 
and enterprise workfl ows for the business of content. The world’s biggest 
brands run their revenue critical media/content operations on CLEAR™. 

The technology business of Prime Focus further strengthened its presence 
in North America in 2014 when PFT acquired DAX, a leading provider 
of production workfl ow solutions to the entertainment industry. This 
acquisition was in line with the Company’s growth strategy to expand in 
North America. Designed to maximize effi  ciencies throughout the content 
creation lifecycle, DAX enables secure exchange, collaboration, approvals 
and distribution of work-in-progress materials from concept development 
through fi nal delivery. PFT nowhas customers like Legendary Pictures, 20th 
Century Fox, Lionsgate and Warner Brothers, to name a few.

PFT also off ers an SLA-based suite of media processing and monetization 
services like Metadata, Archiving, Bulk Digitization, Mastering, Delivery, 
Multi platform Content Preparation, Editorial and Packaging, Localization 
(Subtitling, Closed Captioning, and Dubbing), Cataloguing, SEO & Analytics, 
On Air Promo Creation and Contextual Advertising.

Out of PFT’s 1,500 people around the world, over 225 expert engineers 
work at its R&D center in Bangalore dedicated to CLEAR™ building tailored 
solutions for Broadcast Networks, Studios/ Production Houses, Brands, 
Sports and Digital businesses.
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PFT works with major content owners like Disney, Warner Bros., Legendary 
Pictures, Fox, Relativity, 20th Century Fox, Showtime, Lionsgate, Eros 
International, STAR TV, Star Sports, Discovery Channel, Bloomberg, 
National Geographic Channel, CNBC Africa, Volkswagen, HBO, BBC, Google, 
Unilever, Sony Entertainment, MTV, Colors, Hindustan Unilever Limited, 
JWT, Starz Entertainment, CBS Television Studio, Nestle and many more.

FY15 Highlights:

• DAX integration on track with new client wins, increased market share, 
post-acquisition fi rst year revenue exceeding the target

• Opened a SEZ facility in Bengaluru, which will cater to major 
international client engagements, which currently includes MNET, 
Warner Bros., IFC, A&E TV Network, Lionsgate, Fox, Legendary 
amongst other

• Launched ‘Digital Next’ Go to Market campaign at NAB Show; off ering 
a compelling suite of Cloud solutions for M&E enterprises 

• Continued to expand sales and marketing footprint globally

• Leverages its 4K capabilities to partner Tru Entertainment to deliver 
“Too Cute” a 4K reality series at 60p

• PFT and deltatre announce End to End Live Sports OTT Platform

• PFT partners with RSG Media, the combination guarantees seamless 
integration between Business & Operations in Digital Distribution with 
digitization of the entire content supply chain

• Clients Update

o Added new Global clients like FX Networks, Crown Media Holdings 
and Tru Entertainment

o Signed deal with Hooq – Joint venture between SingTel, Warner 
Brothers & Sony Pictures for over the top services in Asia

o BARC project for play out monitoring services goes live- already 
streaming ~415 live channels across India 

o BCCI extended its service contract to manage entire BCCI asset 
library with CLEAR™ Cloud MAM and providing managed services

o Entered into a 5-year engagement with Lionsgate, including 
CLEAR™ Operations Cloud

o PFT helps deliver 35,000 hours of content to launch Hotstar, Star 
TV’s entertainment OTT platform

o Warner Brothers renews contracts for Closed Captioning services

o DAX – renewed all contracts, some of them multi-year

o Brand Services had big push in the year, aggressively winning new 
clients & expanding portfolio, added 15 new clients taking the 
total to ~160 clients

• Product & other updates:

o Production Cloud Module - enhancement of DAX functionality to 
its Production Cloud module & transition of DAX clients to new 
modules by end of year 

o Secure Screener –CLEAR™ Secure Screener gaining signifi cant 
traction in US and European markets

o Operations Cloud –Delivered over 4,000 hours to HOOQ 

o Received the 3rd Patent in Digital Dailies

o Received ISO 27001 certifi cation, one of the most widely 
recognized, internationally accepted, independent security 
standards

o Secured SOC2 certifi cation, fi rst M&E services company in the 
world to receive it

o Received iTunes certifi cation for direct content delivery

o Won Global Excellence award from Frost & Sullivan, for Media 
Resources & Workfl ow Management

o CLEAR™ positioned as an ‘Exemplar’ on the NASSCOM Product 
Excellence Matrix

o PFT powered Star Sports app was selected as App Store Best of 
2014 in India by Apple

o Joins Advisory Board for Media & Entertainment Services 
Alliance

o Becomes IABM member, continues EIDR membership

o Won Marcom Awards for ‘Digital Next’ Campaign 

Financial Performance

PFL recorded Income from Operations for the year FY15 of ` 16,076 million, 
depicting a signifi cant surge on the back of Dneg and Technology business. 
On the post production front, the India business continues to deliver strong 
performance. Margins were adversely impacted due to certain non-cash and 
extraordinary expenses. There was sequential improvement in operating 
performance in December, March and June quarters due to signifi cantly 
higher revenue visibility and integration eff orts across PFW-Dneg.
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Financial Highlights of the Year:

• Income from Operations of the Company for fi nancial year ended June 30, 2015 is at ` 16,076 million compared to ` 10,814 million for the 15 month 
period ended June 30, 2014

• EBIDTA for the year at ` 2,785 million against EBITDA of ` 2,363 million for the previous 15 month period ended June 30, 2014. Though operating 
performance improved sequentially on account of signifi cantly higher revenue visibility and integration eff orts across PFW-Dneg, margins were 
impacted negatively transiently due to:

o Signifi cant duplication of costs in the creative services business in the fi rst quarter post-merger

o Unrealized Intra group non-cash forex charge of ` 240 million

o Dneg Rent-free period straight lining amounting ` 240 million

• FY15 Exceptional costs which impacted the Net margin are now fully behind as the Company embark on the next phase of growth as a group.

o Write-off  on account of sale of Prime Focus London PLC forms the largest chunk of exceptional costs for the year

o PFW incurred ~ US$10million in redundancy & integration initiatives post the merger with Double Negative

• Through strategic combination, the Company has added global Film and Media Services business (‘FMS business’) of Reliance MediaWorks Limited 
(‘RMW’) with eff ect from April 7, 2015. RMW and promoters have invested ̀  2,400 million through preferential allotment to support growth aspirations 
of the Company. Double Negative, a large UK based VFX business house that was added early in this fi nancial year, has given thrust to the business 
and the Company’s planned integration eff orts will improve profi tability. The Company has entered into a licensing and 3D conversion partnership with 
Canada’s Gener8 Media Corp with eff ect from March 23, 2015 to further strengthen 3D conversion business foot-hold.

• Debt maintenance: The Company continues to focus on streamlining the debt across its various subsidiaries to maintain debt at reasonable levels 
as well as rationalize the interest costs through the appropriate mix of domestic and lower cost foreign currency debt commensurate to the foreign 
currency denominated business in the Group. The Double Negative transaction was fi nanced via equity dilution by the promoters along with the 
assumption of low cost foreign currency debt. Similarly, most of the technical equipment capital expenditure across the Group is being fi nanced either 
through lower cost capital leases facilitated by vendors themselves, or through Buyers’ Credit fi nancing which, again, is at lower interest costs. The 
Company continues to actively pursue opportunities to monetize non-core assets and use proceeds to retire higher cost debts.
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Section 5

Strategy& Outlook

Business Strategy- Nearing Phase 1 completion; operating performance ahead of plan

EBITDA Margin at 15% EBITDA Margin up by 2-4% EBITDA Margin up by 4-5%

▪  Phase 1

• Bundled off ering of VFX & 3D
conversion services in movies like
Avengers: Age of Ultron, Terminator
and many more in ongoing projects

• Cost Consolidation post merger by 
closing its London and Vancouver 
VFX operations & pruned 
operations in India as well as 
elimination of duplicated overheads

• Double Negative Vancouver facility 
is Operational, Mumbai facility will 
be fully operational in coming 2 
quarters; revenue synergies will 
further enhance in coming quarters

• Divestiture of non-core UK post
production business to remove the 
drag on consolidated results

• Increase revenue pipeline of PP
services and low-hanging cost
synergies
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▪  Phase 2

• Leverage strength of 
WorldSourcing model with 
enhanced execution from tax 
advantaged and lower cost centres

• Bundled off ering of VFX & 3D 
conversion services

• Increase profi tability of Indian post
production and visual eff ects
business with consolidation
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▪  Phase 3

• Partner of choice for M&E services 
across Hollywood, Bollywood & 
other major markets like China

• Global scalability of PFT’s 
enhanced Cloud based Media 
ERP platform for content 
production, broadcast and 
exhibition segments

• Optimize capacity utilization and 
maximize delivery from tax 
advantaged & low-cost facilities

Section 6

Outlook

FY16 marks the beginning of a new chapter for PFL, one focussed on increased scale and sustainability across all businesses. In Creative Services, the 
revenue synergies in terms of bundled off ering of VFX & 3D conversion and cross-selling opportunities which have started to accrue in FY15 are expected 
to bear fruits in the coming year. All the cost consolidation initiatives taken in last year, along with cost advantages from Dneg’snewly established Vancouver 
& Mumbai facilities will help in reaching the long term profi tability target of 20%. 

According to Pricewaterhouse Coopers’ Global Entertainment and Media Outlook 2015-19, gradually improving global economic growth will drive revenues 
for fi lmed entertainment. Global fi lmed entertainment revenue is forecast to rise at a CAGR of 4.1% to 2019 and reach US$104.2 billion. China will dominate 
this surge in growth with a 14.5% CAGR, while the US, the world’s leading market, will see a CAGR of 4.6% for the period 2015-19. The report also estimates 
that the global box offi  ce will be driven by a combination of Hollywood as well as local fi lms, with local fi lms increasing their share of country box offi  ces. 
Global box offi  ce revenues are predicted to grow at a CAGR of 5.7% to US$48.5 billion, compared to US$36.7 billion in 2014. 

With the economy back on a high-growth track and the return of confi dence amongst investors and consumers alike, the outlook for the Indian media and 
entertainment industry is positive and optimistic. According to the FICCI-KPMG Indian Media and Entertainment Industry Report 2015, the Indian Media 
and Entertainment industry is forecasted to grow at a CAGR of 13.9% between 2014 and 2019. Digitization will continue to drive growth and open up new 
avenues as widespread reach of internet through a plethora of cheap and smart devices and falling data rates democratize choices, making growth more 
secular across categories, particularly digital advertising. As fi lm makers keep discovering the amazing impact of animation and VFX and the spectacular 
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diff erence it makes to their story-telling, this segment along with post-
production, is expected to continue growing at a handsome rate till 2019. 
PFL being one of the leading players in the fast growing Indian M&E Industry 
is all poised to grow and monetize the opportunity.

With the growth of digital content comes higher resolution formats, 
multiple versions, custom edits, devices, and global service providers. 
These increased volume, transcoding and distribution requirements seem 
to cry out for a more cost-eff ective, scalable solution. The growth of digital 
content is causing an exponential growth in physical hardware resulting in 
increased data center space and power. PFT’s global expansion is expected 
to gather higher pace post the Company’s investment in a global sales 
team, marketing spend &product development in FY15 which is expected 
to continue in FY16.

In summary, Prime Focus Limited (PFL)- the world’s largest integrated 
media services powerhouse post the last three landmark transactions and 
their successful integration, is all set for profi table growth.

Section 7

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Digital transformation and continued disruption are the overriding concerns 
as well as the greatest opportunities facing the media and entertainment 
industry of the future. There is a tectonic shift  in the online and mobile 
distribution of content. The problem faced by the industry is that this shift  
is extremely swift  which does not allow the industry to adjust and adapt 
to the new ways of distribution and consumption. There continues to be a 
greater union of digitalization with various forms of media content. This 
greatly emphasizes companies to focus more on technology improvements 
and innovations in order to provide astounding customer experiences.
Domestically, there is a remarkable shift  in the industry starting with 
digitalization of television by implementation of DTH to conversion from 
2D viewing to 3D viewing of content. Internationally, there is a steady 
transformation in the distribution technology from 3G to 4G which demands 
for greater speed and bett er technology for content distribution.

Innovation in technological solutions adopted by market participants 
throughout the industry will be crucial in their survival in this fast changing 
industry landscape. 4K UHDTV has generated a lot of excitement and 
press att ention since the start of 2013. At the 2013 Consumer Electronics 
Show (CES), all the major display vendors announced and demonstrated 
4K UHDTV consumer displays. In parallel, global broadcasters and media 
organizations have been testing 4K UHDTV production including Sky, 

Netfl ix, and RAI, with transmission tests supported by SIS Live, Ericsson 
and others. RMW merger will add Lowry digital in Prime Focus’s portfolio 
which is equipped with 2K to 4K conversion and hence is in a bett er position 
to monetize on the upcoming opportunity.

Section 8

RISK AND CONCERNS

Risks are an integral part of any business. Successful companies have a 
robust risk-management policy that regularly identifi es any foreseen risk, 
evaluates its impact and takes suitable action to mitigate or minimize the 
eff ect of such risks.

At PFL, we foresee the following risks:

Macro-economic trends: 

With the advent of globalization, economic turbulence in one part of the 
world aff ects everyone. Since early 2009, the global economy has faced 
a marked slowdown which has aff ected fresh investments and impacted 
overall consumption. Although, the global economic outlook seems to 
have stabilized, it will still take considerable time for the economy to 
completely recover.

Geographical risks:

Prime Focus is present in multiple markets which makes it fallible to 
regional pressures. Hence, the risk of being largely aff ected by events 
which unfold in a particular geography is redundant. The Company further 
diversifi es its operations in regional markets like Tamil, Telugu and 
Kannada to further mitigate its risk. 

Currency fl uctuation:

The Company accrues income from various parts of the world as it has 
operations and dealings with customers all across the globe. This results 
in a huge risk of currency fl uctuation. To combat this situation the 
Company has in place an effi  cient foreign exchange management team 
that continuously monitors the currency markets.

Competition:

Where there is opportunity, there will be competition. With the growth 
in demand for animation and VFX there is an infl ux of new market 
participants as everyone tries to take their share of this lucrative 
opportunity. Super specialization has become the norm of the industry 
and with the growing demand for quality content there is a huge gap to 
be fi lled. Prime Focus realizes the signifi cance of this threat and is making 
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conscious eff orts in this direction. The Company has a strong brand recall, 
a portfolio of off erings and is also expanding this space to be competitive. 
Moreover, the Company has delivered award winning work and established 
relationships with major studios around the globe.

Rising Costs

Though not a direct risk, the rising cost of talent and marketing/promotion 
in fi lms had an eff ect on the amount available for creative services like 
animation, VFX and post-production services. However, the success 
of recent fi lms like Bang Bang and Singham Returns have more than 
adequately showcased that investment made in quality creative services 
add to the fi lms’ overall appeal, increasing the entertainment quotient of 
the fi lm signifi cantly. PFL works with top global studios where the value 
addition brought in by creative services have already been proven. In these 
international projects, it is not the cost, but the quality of creative services 
and timely delivery that is important. PFL has an enviable track-record of 
working on some of the biggest international blockbusters, and therefore, 
the risk of managing costs is particular to Indian fi lms, which is largely 
mitigated by PFL’s global project portfolio as well as increasing awareness 
amongst Indian producers about the power of creative services. 

Talent Retention

PFL’s creative business is highly skill and talent oriented. Specialized skills 
like computer graphics are always sought aft er by rivals in the industry, and 
therefore, retaining talent is one of the key focus areas of the Company. 
The Company off ers the best working conditions, remuneration and growth 
prospects to its employees. Employee satisfaction is always at the core of 
all HR policies of the Company. Moreover, the Company has a huge talent 
pool spread across the globe which also encourages employees to be part 
of a global organization, as well as mitigating the risk of att rition. 

Section 9

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company is constantly endeavouring to improve the standards 
of internal control in various areas and taking steps to strengthen the 
internal control system to make it commensurate with the size of the 
respective entities and the nature of their business. The Internal Controls 
in the Company operates through well-documented standard operating 
procedures, policies and process guidelines. The Company’s accounting and 
reporting guidelines ensure that transactions are recorded and reported in 
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.  The Company 
also has a Code of Business Conduct which lays down the ethical standards 

expected of each of its employees and business associates in their everyday 
actions. The Company has a robust internal audit programme which is 
conducted by a professional fi rm appointed by the Company. They conduct 
a risk based audit with a view to test the adherence to laid down policies and 
procedures and suggest improvements in processes and systems. Internal 
Audit observations and recommendations are reported to the Audit 
Committ ee, which monitors the implementation of such recommendations.

Section 10

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company believes employees are the most valuable resource for any 
organization. The Company has laid down stringent measures to make sure 
that the safety and health of its employees are secured. The Company has a 
professional and healthy work culture built around strong corporate values. 
It also encourages and supports its employees to upgrade their skills 
on a continual basis through organizing skill development programmes. 
Employees are also encouraged to participate in professional skills and 
training development courses. 

The total number of personnel’s as on June 30, 2015 was over 6,000.

Section 11

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This report contains statements that may be “forward looking” including, but 
without limitation, statements relating to the implementation of strategic 
initiatives, and other statements relating to Company’s future business 
developments and economic performance. While these forward looking 
statements indicate our assessment and future expectations concerning 
the development of our business, a number of risks, uncertainties and 
other unknown factors could cause actual developments and results to 
diff er materially from our expectations. These factors include, but are not 
limited to, general market, macroeconomic, governmental and regulatory 
trends, movements in currency exchange and interest rates, competitive 
pressures, technological developments, changes in the fi nancial conditions 
of third parties dealing with us, legislative developments, and other key 
factors that could aff ect our business and fi nancial performance. Company 
undertakes no obligation to publicly revise any forward looking statements 
to refl ect future / likely events or circumstances.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

 The Company’s corporate governance philosophy rests on the pillars of integrity, accountability, equity, transparency and environmental responsibility 

that confi rm fully with laws, regulations and guidelines. The company’s philosophy on corporate governance is to achieve business excellence and 

maximizing shareholder value through ethical business conduct. The Company’s philosophy also includes building partnerships with all stakeholders, 

employees, customers, vendors, service providers, local communities and government. The Company has always set high targets for the growth, 

profi tability, customer satisfaction, safety and environmental performance and continues its commitment to high standards of corporate governance 

practices. During the year under review, the Board continued its pursuit of achieving its objectives through the adoption and monitoring of corporate 

strategies and prudent business plans.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 The Board of Directors of the Company has a combination of 3 Executive and 2 Non-Executive Directors and 4 Independent Non-Executive Directors. 

With the appointment of Mr. Amit Bapna as Non-Executive Director with eff ect from September 16, 2015, in terms of Clause 49 (I) (A) of the Listing 

Agreement, the number of Independent Directors required on the Board has increased to 5. The Company has initiated necessary steps to comply 

with this requirement at the earliest. Except Mr. Naresh Malhotra and Mr Namit Malhotra who are related to each other by way of father and son 

relationship, none of the other Directors are related to each other. 

 None of the Directors on the Company’s Board is a Member of more than ten Committ ees and Chairman of more than fi ve Committ ees [Committ ees 

being, Audit Committ ee and Stakeholder Relationship Committ ee] across all the Indian public limited companies in which he/she is a Director. All the 

Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding Committ ee positions held by them in other companies and do not hold the offi  ce of Director in 

more than twenty companies, including ten public companies. The appointment of the Managing Director and Executive Directors including the tenure 

and terms of remuneration are also approved by the members at the fi rst meeting aft er the said appointment.

 The required information, including information as enumerated in Annexure X to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is made available to the Board 

of Directors for discussions and consideration at Board Meetings. The Executive Director and the Chief Financial Offi  cer (CFO) have certifi ed to the 

Board upon inter alia, the accuracy of the fi nancial statements and adequacy of internal controls for the fi nancial reporting, in accordance with Clause 

49 (IX) of the Listing Agreement, pertaining to CEO and CFO certifi cation for the Financial Year ended June 30, 2015

 During the year under review fourteen Board meetings were held on July 02, 2014, August 01, 2014, August 28, 2014, November 14, 2014, December 29, 

2014, January 28, 2015, February 14, 2015, February 20, 2015, March 04, 2015, April 07, 2015, April 17, 2015, May 05, 2015, May 08, 2015 and May 15, 

2015. The maximum time-gap between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.
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 The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The names and categories of the 
Directors on the Board, the number of directorships and committ ee positions held by them in other Public Limited Companies as on the date of signing 
this report are as under:

Sr. 
No

Name of Director Category of Director No.of 
Directorship 
held in other 
Companies

#1

Membership held 
in Committ ees of
other Companies

#2

Chairperson in 
Committ ees of 

other Companies
#2

No. of 
meetings 
att ended 

during the 
year #6

Att endance 
at last 
Annual 
General 
Meeting

Shareholding 
in the 

Company

1.  Mr. Namit Malhotra
DIN: 00004049

Chairman & Executive 
Director (Promoter)

Nil Nil Nil 2 Present 1,49,00,000

2.  Mr. Naresh Malhotra
DIN: 00004597

Whole-Time 
Director(Promoter)

3 Nil Nil 14 Present 6,22,01,546

3.  Mr. Ramakrishnan 
Sankaranarayanan 
DIN: 02696897

Managing Director 5 Nil Nil 5 Present 50

4. Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh #3

DIN: 00061014 
Non - Executive Director 2 Nil Nil 1 - Nil

5. Mr. Vibhav Parikh #3

DIN: 00848207 
Non-Executive Director
(Alternate to Mr. Nainesh 
Jaisingh)

Nil Nil Nil 13 Present Nil

6. Mr. Amit Bapna #5

DIN: 00008443
Additional Director 
(Non-Executive)

5 2 Nil N.A. N.A. Nil

7.  Mr. Kodi Raghavan 
Srinivasan
DIN: 00012449

Non- Executive Director
(Independent)

Nil Nil Nil 6 Absent Nil

8.  Mr. Padmanabha 
Gopal Aiyar
DIN: 02722981

Non- Executive Director
(Independent)

Nil Nil Nil 9 Absent Nil

9.  Mr. Rivkaran Chadha
DIN: 00308288

Non- Executive Director
(Independent)

5 Nil 3 14 Absent Nil

10. Dr. (Mrs.) Hemalatha 
Thiagarajan  #4

DIN: 07144803

Additional Director (Non-
Executive Independent)

Nil Nil Nil 2 N.A. Nil

Notes:

#1 Excludes directorship held in Private Companies, Foreign Companies, Companies formed under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
and Alternate Directorships.

#2 Includes Memberships/Chairmanships of only Audit Committ ees and Stakeholder Relationship Committ ees (excluding Prime Focus Limited) 

#3  Mr. Vibhav Parikh was appointed as alternate to Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh (Nominee of Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) III Limited and 
Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) Limited) with eff ect from November 5, 2012. 

#4  Dr. (Mrs.) Hemalatha Thiagarajan was appointed on the Board of the Company with eff ect from March 31, 2015. 

#5 Mr. Amit Bapna was appointed on the Board of the Company as a Nominee  of Reliance MediaWorks Ltd.  with eff ect from September 16, 2015.

#6 Includes meetings att ended via video conference facility.
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 Annual Independent Directors Meeting: In accordance with the provisions of schedule IV of the Act, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors 
was held during the year on April 07, 2015, to review the performance of the Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors including the Chairman of the 
Board and performance of the Board as a whole. The Non-Independent Directors did not take part in the meeting.

 Board Eff ectiveness Evaluation: Pursuant to the provisions of Clause 49 and the Act, Board evaluation involving evaluation of the Board of Directors, 
its Committ ees and individual Directors, including the role of the Board Chairman, was conducted during the year. For details kindly refer the Directors’ 
Report.

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

 The Board Committ ees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been constituted to deal with specifi c areas / activities 
which concern the Company and need a closer review. The Board Committ ees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly 
defi ned roles which are considered to be performed by members of the Board, as a part of good governance practice. The Board supervises the 
execution of its responsibilities by the Committ ees and is responsible for their action. The minutes of the meetings of all Committ ees are placed 
before the Board for review. The Board Committ ees can request special invitees to join the meeting, as appropriate. 

 The Board has currently established the following statutory and non-statutory Committ ees:

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The Audit Committ ee of the Company functions in accordance with the requirement of Section 177 of the Act and Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement. The composition of the Audit Committ ee is in compliance of Clause 49(III) (A) of the Listing Agreement. The Audit Committ ee 
comprises of fi ve Directors, out of which three are Independent Director and two are Non-Executive Directors. The Members of the Audit 
Committ ee possesses fi nancial/accounting expertise/exposure.

 The meetings of the Audit Committ ee are also att ended by the Chief Financial Offi  cer, Representatives of the Statutory Auditors and other 
Senior Offi  cials of the Company as special invitees. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committ ee. The 
minutes of each Audit Committ ee meeting are noted in the next meeting of the Board. The quorum of Committ ee is two members or one-third 
of its members, whichever is higher. During the year under review, fi ve Audit Committ ee meetings were held on August 01, 2014, August 28, 2014, 
November 14, 2014, February 14, 2015 and May 15, 2015.

 As on the date of signing this report, the Audit Committ ee comprises of the following members of the Board:

Name of the Member Category Positions Meeting att ended 
during the year

Mr. Rivkaran Chadha Independent & Non-Executive Director Chairman 5
Mr. Kodi Raghavan Srinivasan Independent & Non-Executive Director Member 4
Mr. Padmanabha Gopal Aiyar#1 Independent & Non-Executive Director Member 1
Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh#2

Non-Executive Director Member
1

Mr. Vibhav Parikh #2 4
Mr. Amit Bapna#3 Non-Executive Director Member N.A.

 #1 Mr. Padmanabha Gopal Aiyar was appointed as a member with eff ect from November 14, 2014. 

 #2 Mr. Vibhav Parikh was appointed as alternate to Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh with eff ect from November 5, 2012.

 #3 Mr. Amit Bapna was appointed as a member with eff ect from September 16, 2015.
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 Terms of Reference:

 The broad terms of reference includes the following as is mandated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and Section 177 of the Act:

a. Oversight of the Company’s fi nancial reporting process and the disclosure of its fi nancial information to ensure that the fi nancial statement 
is correct, suffi  cient and credible.

b. Recommend to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, terms of appointment, remuneration and, if required, replacement or removal 
of Statutory Auditors and fi xation of Audit fees.

c. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them.

d. Reviewing, with the management the annual fi nancial statements and auditors’ report thereon before submission to the Board for approval 
with particular reference to the matt ers stated under sub clause (a) to (g) of Clause 49(II)(D)(4)

e. Reviewing, with the management the quarterly fi nancial statements before submission to the Board for approval.

f. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential 
issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the off er document/prospectus/ notice and the 
report submitt ed by the monitoring agency, monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matt er.

g. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and eff ectiveness of audit process.

h. Approval or any subsequent modifi cation of transactions of the Company with related parties.

i. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

j. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.

k. Evaluation of internal fi nancial controls and risk management systems.

l. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal control systems.

m. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffi  ng and seniority of 
the offi  cial heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.

n. Discussion with internal auditors of any signifi cant fi ndings and follow up there on.

o. Reviewing the fi ndings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matt ers where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a 
failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matt er to the Board.

p. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to 
ascertain any area of concern.

q. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non- payment 
of declared dividends) and creditors.

r. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

s. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the fi nance function or discharging that 
function) aft er assessing the qualifi cations, experience & background, etc. of the candidate.

t. examination of the fi nancial statement and the auditors’ report thereon 
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u.  Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committ ee.

 Deloitt e Haskins & Sells, Mumbai (ICAI Firm Registration No. 117364W), the Company’s Statutory Auditor, is responsible for performing an 
independent audit of the Financial Statements and expressing an opinion on the conformity of those fi nancial statements with accounting 
principles generally accepted in India.

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committ ee (NRC) of the Company functions in accordance with the Act and Listing Requirements, which are 
reviewed from time to time. The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committ ee are as follows:

a. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifi cations, positive att ributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a 
policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

b. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

c. Identify persons who are qualifi ed to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid 
down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. 

d. Recommend to the Board appointment or re-appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) as defi ned by the Act.

e. Carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance and support the Board and Independent Director in evaluation of the performance 
of the Board, its committ ees and individual Directors. This shall include ‘formulation of criteria of evaluation of Independent Director and 
Board’.

f. Recommend the Remuneration policy for Directors, KMP, executive team and other employees.

 During the year under review, three meetings of the Committ ee were held on August 01, 2014, August 28, 2014 and November 14, 2014 The 
decisions are taken by the Committ ee, at meetings or by passing circular resolutions.

 As on the date of signing this report, the Nomination and Remuneration Committ ee comprises of 4 Directors, all of them being Non-
Executive Directors with half the composition being Independent Directors. The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committ ee 
and att endance at its meeting is as follows:

Composition Category Positions Meeting att ended 
during the year

Mr. Rivkaran Chadha Independent & Non-Executive Director Chairman 3
Mr. Kodi Raghavan Srinivasan Independent & Non-Executive Director Member 1
Mr. Padmanabha Gopal Aiyar Independent & Non-Executive Director Member 3
Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh

Non-Executive Director Member
1

Mr. Vibhav Parikh  (alternate to Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh) 2

 The NRC recommended the following policies and criteria pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing Agreement, which were 
adopted and implemented by the Board:
1. Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees;

2. Process on evaluation of the Board of Directors, Committ ee thereof and individual directors;

3. Policy on Board Diversity;

4. Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors, available on the website of the Company; and

5. Defi nitive criteria for selection and appointment of Independent Directors.
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 Remuneration Policy

 The Company adopted a Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act and the Listing Agreement. For details on the Remuneration Policy, kindly refer to the ‘Annexure-C’ of the Directors’ 
Report.

 Remuneration to Directors:

 Non-Executive Director:

 The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are paid sitt ing fees of ` 20,000/- per meeting for att ending the meeting of the Board of 
Directors. No sitt ing fees is paid to the Directors for att ending the Meeting of the Committ ees of the Board. 

 Details of the Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors for the year ended June 30, 2015 is as follows:

Name of Director Remuneration Paid 
(in `)

Sitt ing Fees
(in `)

Total
(in `)

Mr. Padmanabha Gopal Aiyar - 1,80,000 1,80,000

Mr. Rivkaran Chadha - 2,80,000                2,80,000 

Mr. Kodi Raghavan Srinivasan - 1,20,000 1,20,000 

Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh -        20,000   20,000

Mr. Vibhav Parikh 
(Alternate to Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh)

- 2,60,000 2,60,000

Dr. (Mrs.) Hemalatha Thiagarajan - 40,000 40,000

 Executive Director:

 The remuneration paid to the Executive Directors is commensurate with industry standards and Board level positions held in similar 
sized companies, taking into consideration the individual responsibilities shouldered by them and is in consonance with the terms of 
appointment approved by the Members, at the time of their appointment.

 Details of Managerial Remuneration paid to the Executive Chairman, Managing Director and Whole time Director for the Financial year 
ended June 30, 2015 during  FY 14-15 and the terms of their appointment, is given below:

 Pursuant to Schedule V of the Act, breakup of Remuneration paid per annum to the Executive/Whole-time Directors is given below:

Name of the Director Naresh Malhotra
Whole Time Director

Namit Malhotra
Executive Chairman

Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan
Managing Director

Remuneration (in `) 60,00,000 p.a. 50,00,000 p.a. 50,00,000 p.a.

Stock Options Nil Nil Nil 

Service Contracts 5 years 3 years 3 years

Performance linked Incentives Nil Nil Nil 

Notice period N.A. N.A. N.A.

Severance fees N.A. N.A. N.A.
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C.  STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

 The Stakeholders Relationship Committ ee functions with the objective of looking into the redressal of Shareholders’/Investors’ grievances. The 
Stakeholders Relationship Committ ee is primarily responsible to:

a. Review statutory compliance relating to all securities holders.

b. Consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer of securities, non-receipt of 
annual report/declared dividends/ notices/ balance sheet.

c. Oversee compliances in respect of dividend payments and transfer of unclaimed amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

d. Approve issue of duplicate certifi cates of the Company.

e. Recommend measures for overall improvement of the quality of investor services.

 The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committ ee’s composition and the terms of reference meets with the requirements of the Listing Agreement 
and provisions of the Act. During the year under review, four meetings were held on the August 28, 2014, November 14, 2014, February 14, 
2015 and May 15, 2015.

 As on the date of signing this report, the Committ ee comprises of 4 Directors. The Composition of Committ ee and att endance at the meeting 
is as follows:

Composition Positions Meetings att ended 
during the year

Mr. Rivkaran Chadha Chairman 4

Mr. Kodi Raghavan Srinivasan Member 2

Mr. Naresh Malhotra Member 4

Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh 
Member

1

Mr. Vibhav Parikh (alternate to Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh) 3

 Compliance Offi  cer

 Ms. Parina Shah, Company Secretary is also designated as the Compliance Offi  cer of the Company as per the requirements of the Listing 
Agreement. In terms of Clause 47(f) of the Listing Agreement, the designated e-mail address for investor complaints is ir.india@primefocus.
com.

 Complaints from Investors

 During the fi nancial year 2014-15, the Company had not received any complaints from the investors. There were no complaints pending as at 
the end of the fi nancial year. Complaints or queries relating to the shares and/or Debentures can be forwarded to the Company’s Registrar 
and Transfer Agent-Link Intime India Private Limited at C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compoumd, L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (W), Mumbai - 400078.

D. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

 The CSR committ ee has been constituted in accordance with the Act to:

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Com[any as specifi ed in 
Schedule VII;

b) Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (a); and
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c) Monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time. 

 During the year under review, one meeting of the Committ ee was held on November 14, 2014. The composition of the CSR Committ ee and 
att endance at its meeting is given hereunder:

Composition Position Att endance at Meeting held on 
November 14, 2014

Mr. Rivkaran Chadha Chairman Present

Mr. Naresh Malhotra Member Present 

Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh 
Member

Present

Mr. Vibhav Parikh (alternate to Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh) --

E. ESOP COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

 Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefi ts) Regulations, 2014 and provisions of the Act, the Board 
of Directors in its meeting held on July 02, 2014 constituted ESOP Compensation Committ ee comprising of the following members:

Composition Position

Mr. Rivkaran Chadha Chairman

Mr. Nainesh Jaisingh or his Alternate viz. Mr. Vibhav Parikh, during his absence Member

Mr. K. R. Srinivasan Member

 The terms of reference of ESOP Compensation Committ ee include, inter-alia, granting of Stock Options to the eligible employees, ascertaining 
the detailed terms and conditions for such grants, administering the Employee Stock Option Schemes of the Company and exercising the powers 
and performing the duties as prescribed under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefi ts) Regulations, 2014 and/
or any amendment or repealment thereto.

F. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ COMMITTEE (IDC)

 The Committ ee of Independent Directors was constituted pursuant to the requirement of Clause 26 (6) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (“Takeover Regulations”) as amended, upon receipt of the detailed public statement, to provide reasoned 
recommendations on the open off er made by Reliance MediaWorks Limited (“Acquirer”) along with Reliance Land Private Limited (“PAC 1”), Mr. Namit 
Malhotra (“PAC 2”), Mr. Naresh Malhotra (“PAC 3”) and Monsoon Studio Private Limited (“PAC 4”) acting as persons acting in concert (collectively 
“PACs”) so that the target Company i.e. Prime Focus Limited can publish such recommendations.

 As per Clause 26 (7) of SEBI Takeover Regulations, IDC provided a writt en reasoned recommendations on the open off er (“Off er”) made by the 
Acquirer and PAC’s to the public Shareholders of the Company and such recommendations was published before the commencement of the 
tendering period, in the same newspapers where the public announcement of the open off er was published.

G. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

 Risk Management Committ ee was constituted by the Board at its meeting held on November 14, 2014 pursuant to the provisions of the Listing 
Agreement, comprising of three directors namely Mr. Naresh Malhotra, as Chairman, Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan, Nainesh Jaisingh (or his 
alternate Mr. Vibhav Parikh during his absence) and Mr. Vikas Rathee as Members.

 The Risk Management Committ ee shall be responsible to monitor and review the risk management plan of the Company.
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4.  GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

 i. Annual General Meeting:

  Location and time, where last three Annual General Meetings were held is given below:

Financial year Date Location Time

2011-2012 September 29, 2012 Prime Focus Offi  ce, Main Frame IT Park,
Building – H, Royal Palms, Near Aarey Colony, Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400 065

11.30 a.m.

2012-2013 September 30, 2013 Prime Focus Offi  ce, Main Frame IT Park,
Building – H, Royal Palms, Near Aarey Colony, Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400 065

10.00 a.m.

2013-2014 December 24, 2014 Prime Focus Offi  ce, Main Frame IT Park,
Building – H, Royal Palms, Near Aarey Colony, Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400 065

10.00 a.m.

 ii. Special Resolutions:

a.  Details of special resolutions passed in the Annual General Meetings during the last three fi nancial years are as follows:

Date of General 
Meeting

Number of Special 
resolutions passed

Details of Special Resolutions

September 29, 2012 2 1.  Appointment of Mr. Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan as Managing Director of the 
Company

2.  Raising of funds by issue via Placement to Qualifi ed Institutional Buyers (QIB) / ADR / 
GDR / FCCB and / or any other Convertible instrument(s) and also preferential allotment 
of shares or warrants or other convertible instruments to the extent of $ 100 million

September 30, 2013 1 1.  Alteration to the Articles of Association of the Company
December 24, 2014 4 1.  Reappointment of Mr. Naresh Malhotra (DIN: 00004597) as Whole-time Director for a 

period of 5 (fi ve) years with eff ect from April 01, 2015

2.  Adoption of new Articles of Association of the Company containing regulations in 
conformity with the Companies Act, 2013

3.  Approval of transactions with related party as per Companies Act, 2013

4.  Approval of transactions with related party as per applicable provisions of the Listing 
Agreement

b. Details of special resolutions passed in the Extra-Ordinary General Meetings during the last three fi nancial years are as follows:

Date of Extra-
Ordinary General 
Meeting

Number of Special 
Resolutions 

passed

Details of Special Resolutions

November 3, 2012 1 1. Preferential Allotment of equity Shares

December 20, 2012 2 1. Alteration of Articles of Association by inserting Part III and Part IV in the existing Articles

2. Variation of terms of contract mentioned in the Prospectus/ utilization of IPO proceeds.
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August 1, 2014 6 1. Increase in the Authorised Share Capital from ` 25,00,00,000/- to ` 35,00,00,000/- and 
alteration of  the Capital Clause in the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

2. Preferential Issue of Equity Shares of 113,461,538 equity shares of Re. 1/- each to Reliance 
MediaWorks Limited (RMW) and Monsoon Studio Private Limited

3. Authorization for ESOP Scheme of the Company

4. Approval of extension of the benefi ts of the PFL-ESOP Scheme 2014 to the eligible 
employees of the holding company, subsidiary and, associate companies, if any, of the 
Company as per applicable laws

5. Appointment of Mr. Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan as a Managing Director for a period 
of 3 (three) years with eff ect from June 25, 2014

6. Appointment of Mr. Namit Malhotra as a Chairman and Executive Director for a period of 
3 (three) years with eff ect from June 25, 2014.

January 28, 2015 1 1. Preferential Issue of Equity Shares

 iii. Details of Resolution passed through postal ballot, the persons who conducted the postal ballot exercise and details of the voting patt ern

  During the year under review, the following resolution was passed through Postal Ballot:

Date of passing 
of postal ballot 
resolution

Number of Special 
Resolutions passed

Details of Special Resolutions passed through Postal 
ballot

% of votes in 
favour on votes 

polled

% of votes 
against on votes 

polled

September 10, 
2014

3 1. Authorization to the Board of Directors to borrow 
moneys on behalf of the Company

2. Authorization to the Board of Directors to create 
mortgage/pledge/hypothecation/charge on all or any 
of the movable/immovable properties of the Company 
for securing the borrowings of the Company

3. Ratifi cation of agreement to sell off /transfer or 
otherwise dispose off  the “Backend” Business and 
Undertaking of the Company to Prime Focus World 
Creative Services Pvt. Ltd.

99.99

99.99

100

0.001

0.001

0.00

 The Company successfully completed the process of obtaining approval of its Members on the aforesaid special resolutions during the 
F.Y. 2014-15.

Procedure for Postal Ballot:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on August 01, 2014, had appointed Ms. Shilpa Ray, Practicing Company Secretary, 
as Scrutinizer for conducting Postal Ballot process in accordance with the law and in a fair and transparent manner.

2. The Company had completed the dispatch of the Postal Ballot Notice dated August 01, 2014 together with the explanatory Statement on 
August 07, 2014, along with forms and postage prepaid business reply envelopes to all the shareholders whose name(s) appeared on the 
Register of Members/list of benefi ciaries as on July 25, 2014.

3. The voting(including e-voting) under postal ballot was kept open from Tuesday, August 08, 2014 to Saturday, September 06, 2014 (either 
physically or through electronic mode).
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4. Particulars of postal ballot forms received from the Members using the electronic platform of CDSL were entered in a register separately 
maintained for the purpose.

5. The postal ballot forms were kept under his safe custody in sealed and tamper proof ballot boxes before commencing the scrutiny of such 
postal ballot forms.

6. All postal ballot forms received/receivable up to the close of working hours on September 06, 2014 the last date and time fi xed by the 
Company for receipt of the forms, were considered for the scrutiny.

7. Envelopes containing postal ballot forms received aft er close of business hours on September 06, 2014 were not considered for the scrutiny.

8. On 10th September, 2014, Mr. Naresh Malhotra, Whole-time Director of the Company announced the results of the postal ballot as per the 
Scrutinizer’s Report. The results of the postal ballot are also available on the website on the Company viz www.primefocus.com.

5. DISCLOSURES:

a.  Related Party Transactions

 Details of the relevant related party transactions entered into by the Company are set out in the Notes to Accounts. During the year under review, 
materially signifi cant transactions with related parties were on an arm’s length basis and did not have potential confl icts with the interests of the 
Company at large. Suitable disclosures as required by the Accounting Standard (AS18) have been made in the Annual Report. All transactions with 
related parties entered into by the Company were on an arm’s length basis and were approved by the Audit Committ ee.

 Pursuant to the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 28, 2014 had adopted the ‘Related 
Party Transaction Policy’. The said policy is available on the Company’s website. (Weblink: htt p://www.primefocus.com/sites/default/fi les/pdf/
policy_on_related_parties.pdf)

b.  Compliances by the Company

 The Company has complied with various rules and regulations prescribed by the Stock Exchanges, Securities Exchange Board of India or any 
other statutory authority relating to the capital markets during the last three years. No penalties or structures have been imposed by them on the 
Company during the last three years.

c.  Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism

 Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and the provisions of Section 177 of the Act, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 
12, 2014 has adopted a ‘Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism’, which provided a formal mechanism for all Directors and employees of the 
Company to approach the Management of the Company and make protective disclosure to the Management about unethical behavior, actual or 
suspected fraud. A copy of the policy is available on the website of the Company (Weblink:htt p://www.primefocus.com/sites/default/fi les/pdf/
Vigil_Mechanism_Policy.pdf). The Company affi  rms that no director or employee of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committ ee.

 No complaint has been received as at the Financial Year ended June 30, 2015 and no employee of the Company was denied access to meet the 
Chairman of the Audit Committ ee in this regard.

d.  CEO/CFO certifi cation

 In terms of requirements of Clause 49 (IX) of the Listing agreement, the CEO and CFO of the Company has certifi ed to the Board in the prescribed 
format for the year under review and the same has been reviewed by the Audit Committ ee and taken on record by the Board.
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e.  Compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory requirements

 The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The details of these compliances have 
been given in the relevant sections of this report. The Company also incorporates certain non-mandatory recommendations and among the non-
mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Company has complied with the following: 

 Reporting of Internal Auditor - The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committ ee. 

f.  Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

 A Company Secretary in Practice carries out audit of Reconciliation of Share Capital on quarterly basis to reconcile the total admitt ed equity 
share capital with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total 
issued and listed equity share capital. The audit report confi rms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of 
shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL. This Report is also placed before the Board for 
its noting.

6. CODE OF CONDUCT

 The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all its Board Members and Senior Management Personnel for avoidance of confl icts of interest 
and ensuring the highest standard of honesty, dedication and professionalism in carrying out their functional responsibilities. The Code of Conduct is 
in consonance with the requirements of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement. The Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s website (weblink: htt p://
www.primefocus.com/sites/default/fi les/pdf/pfl _code_of_conduct.pdf). The Code has been circulated to all the members of the Board and the Senior 
Management. The Directors and the Senior Management have affi  rmed compliance of the Code. 

 The Annual Report of the Company contains a declaration to this eff ect duly signed by the CEO of the Company. 

7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a. The Board of Directors of the Company approves and takes on record the quarterly, half yearly and yearly fi nancial results in the format prescribed 
by Clause 41 of the Listing Agreement within prescribed time limits. Quarterly results are submitt ed to the Stock Exchanges in terms of the 
requirements of Clause 41 of the Listing Agreement.

b. The quarterly/half yearly and annual fi nancial results are regularly submitt ed to Stock Exchanges in accordance with the Listing Agreement 
and published in one English daily i.e. Economic Times or The Free Press Journal and one Marathi daily newspapers i.e. Maharashtra Times or 
Navshakti.

 The Company’s website www.primefocus.com contains a separate dedicated section “investors” where shareholders information is available. Full 
Annual Reports are also available on the website in a user- friendly and downloadable format.

 The Company posts its Quarterly / Half Yearly/Annual Results, Annual Report, offi  cial news releases, presentations made to investors and 
transcripts of the meetings with institutional investors / analysts on its website i.e. www.primefocus.com. This website contains the basic 
information about the Company, e.g., details of its business, fi nancial information, shareholding patt ern, compliance with corporate governance, 
contact information of the designated offi  cials of the Company who is responsible for assisting and handling investor grievances and such other 
details as may be required under Clause 54 of the Listing Agreement. The Company ensures that the contents of this website are updated at all 
times.
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8. UNCLAIMED SHARES/AMOUNTS

a. Unclaimed shares issued pursuant to Initial Public Off er (IPO):

 Clause 5A I of the Listing Agreement stipulates a uniform procedure for dealing with unclaimed shares lying in the escrow account. Under the 
regulation, the said unclaimed shares are to be credited to a separate dematerialized suspense account. Accordingly, all the corporate benefi ts 
accruing on these shares will also be credited to such account. All the voting rights shall remain frozen till the rightful owner claims the shares. All 
such rightful owners may approach the Company for re-transfer of such shares to their account which will be eff ected on proper verifi cation of 
the identity of such owner.

 Accordingly, as on June 30, 2015, the unclaimed shares lying in ‘Prime Focus Limited-Unclaimed Securities Suspense Account’ held with Centrum 
Broking Limited are as tabled below:

Particulars No. of cases No. of Shares

Number of Shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at the beginning of the 
Year 2014-15 i.e. as on July 1, 2014.

15 3960

Number of Shareholders who approached for Issuer/ Registrar for transfer of shares from suspense account 
during the year 2014-15.

- -

Number of shareholders whom shares were transferred from suspense account during the year 2014-15. - -

Number of Shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at the end of the year i.e. 
as on June 30, 2015

15 3960

b.  Status of Unclaimed dividend:

 During the year under review, the Company transferred unclaimed dividend for the F.Y. 2007-2008 remaining unclaimed for seven years to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund established by the Central Government (IEPF) pursuant to Section 205C of the erstwhile Companies Act, 
1956 on September 20, 2014.

9. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

 The Company has adopted a Policy for Determining Material Subsidiaries of the Company, pursuant to the provisions of Clause 49 (V) (D) of the Listing 
Agreement., states the following:

i. meaning of ‘Material’ Subsidiary
ii. Requirement of Independent Director in certain Material Non Listed Indian Subsidiaries
iii. Restriction on disposal of Shares of a Material Subsidiary by the Company
iv. Restriction on transfer of Assets of a Material Subsidiary and
v. Disclosure requirements, based on revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and any other laws and regulations as may be applicable to the 

Company.

 This policy is available on the website of the Company (weblink: htt p://www.primefocus.com/sites/default/fi les/pdf/Policy_on_Material_Subsidiaries.
pdf)

 In terms of the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the minutes of the board meetings of subsidiary companies are placed before the 
Board of Directors of the Company and the att ention of the Directors is drawn to signifi cant transactions and arrangements entered into by the 
subsidiary companies. The performance and summary of key decisions of the subsidiaries is also reviewed by the Board periodically.
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10. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

 The Company has instituted mechanism to avoid Insider Trading. In accordance with the SEBI Regulations as amended, the Company has established 
systems and procedures to restrict insider trading activity and has framed a Code of Fair Disclosure and Conduct to prevent misuse of any unpublished 
price sensitive information and prohibit any insider trading activity, in order to protect the interest of the shareholders at large. The said Code of Fair 
Disclosure and Conduct is available on the Company’s website.

a.  GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

1. Annual General Meeting Date: December 24, 2015
Time: 10.00 a.m.
Venue:  9th Floor, ‘True North’, Plot no. 63, Road no. 13, Opp. Hotel Tunga Paradise, 
MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400093

Date, Time and Venue

2. Financial Year June 30, 2015
3. Dates of Book Closure Monday, December 14, 2015 to Thursday, December 24, 2015 (Both days inclusive)

4. Dividend In view of Losses in fi nancial year 2014 -15, no Dividend has been declared 

5. Listing on Stock Exchanges The equity shares of your Company are listed on:
BSE Limited (BSE)
Add:- P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001; &
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
Add:- Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra,Mumbai - 400 051.
The Zero Coupon Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) issued by the Company 
under Series A and Series B are listed on Wholesale Debt Market Segment of the BSE Limited (BSE).
Your Company has paid Annual Listing Fees to all the exchanges for the fi nancial year 2015-16 within the 
prescribed time limit.

6. Stock Code For Equity Shares
BSE Limited (BSE):- “532748”
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE):- “PFOCUS”
ISIN Code : INE367G01038
For NCDs (Listed on BSE - Wholesale Debt Market segment)
SERIES A-ISIN Code : INE367G08017 
SERIES B-ISIN Code : INE367G08025
Unlisted NCDs:
ISIN Code: INE367G07019
ISIN Code: INE367G07027

7. Registrar & Transfer Agents Link Intime India Private Limited

Add.:-C-13 Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup, Mumbai - 400078
Phone no:022- 25946970 Fax no.:022-25946969

Website: www.linkintime.co.in; email: mt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

8. Share Transfer System The Board of Directors has delegated the authority to transfer the shares to M/s Link Intime India Private 
Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. The Share Transfer Agent att ends to share 
transfer formalities, if any, once in a fortnight.
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9. Plant Location The Company is not a manufacturing unit and thus not having any Plant. Following are the Offi  ces where 
the business of the Company is being conducted:

Santacruz Offi  ce
Anand Kunj, Linking Road, Santacruz (West),  Mumba-400054 

Goregaon -  Mainframe Offi  ce

Building-H, Mainframe, Royal Palms, Aarey Milk Colony, Goregaon (East), Mumbai-400065

Goregaon-Film City Offi  ce 

Dadasaheb Phalke Film City, Goregaon (East), Mumbai-400065.

Khar Offi  ce
Prime Focus House, Linking Road, Opposite Citibank, Khar (West), Mumbai-400052.

Hyderabad Offi  ce
Rama Naidu Studios Complex,  79, Film Nagar, Jubilee Hills,  Hyderabad - 500033, India.

10. Address for Correspondence Ms. Parina Shah, Company Secretary and Compliance Offi  cer
Prime Focus Limited 
Registered Offi  ce:
Prime Focus House, Linking Road, Opposite Citbank, Khar (West), Mumbai-400052, India. 
Phone: +91-22-67155000; Fax: +91-22-67155001
Website: www.primefocus.com; email: ir.india@primefocus.com

11. Dematerialization of Shares 
and liquidity

As on June 30, 2015; 29,88,78,954 equity shares of the Company constituting 99.99% of the equity 
share capital are held in Dematerialized form. The equity shares of the Company are traded only in 
dematerialized form in the stock exchanges.

12. Electronic Clearing Services 
(ECS)

Members are requested to update their bank account details with their respective Depository 
Participants for shares held in the electronic form or write to the Company’ s Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent M/s Link Intime India Private Limited for the shares held in physical form.

13. Investor Complaints to be 
addressed to

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent - M/s Link Intime India Private Limited at helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 
or to Ms. Parina Shah, Company Secretary at ir.india@primefocus.com.

14. Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ 
Warrants or any convertible 
instruments, conversion date 
and likely impact on equity 
impact on equity.

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants.

There are no outstanding convertible instruments as on June 30, 2015.
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b.  Market Price Data

 The price of the Company’s Share-High, Low during each month in the last fi nancial year 2014-15 on the Stock Exchanges is given below in a tabular 
form:

Month BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited

High Price Low Price Volume
(No. of shares)

High Price Low Price Volume
(No. of shares)

July 2014 58.35 48.50 95,37,012 58.20 48.40 1649539

August 2014 50.70 48.80 55,65,789 50.80 48.75 797808

September 2014 49.55 48.05 23,27,794 49.40 48.00 373722

October 2014 51.05 47.75 13,03,682 50.90 47.70 317340

November 2014 49.80 48.20 16,29,642 50.00 48.15 185716

December 2014 51.50 48.00 38,77,661 51.50 48.50 567495

January 2015 59.40 43.05 30,69,613 59.50 42.70 335687

February 2015 52.75 41.65 8,32,020 52.70 41.80 105924

March 2015 44.00 35.85 7,52,224 44.20 35.60 98523

April 2015 43.00 37.30 4,84,245 43.50 37.00 64391

May 2015 43.70 36.00 3,89,061 43.70 36.10 71157

June 2015 48.75 37.25 2,98,111 48.60 37.00 53511
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 c.  Performance of share price of the Company in comparison with the broad based indices

  Prime Focus Share Price compared with BSE Sensex & NSE Nift y (Month-end closing):

Month BSE Share Price (Rupees) Sensex NSE Share Price (Rupees) NSE Nift y

July 2014 49.90 25895 49.85 11718

August 2014 49.00 26638 49.00 10417

September 2014 48.85 26631 48.95 7468

October 2014 48.75 27866 48.80 9451

November 2014 48.60 28694 48.60 10053

December 2014 51.30 27499 51.25 4221

January 2015 48.65 29183 48.85 12385

February 2015 42.35 29362 42.50 10064

March 2015 41.35 27957 40.55 8108

April 2015 37.50 27011 37.80 14755

May 2015 38.10 27828 38.10 20736

June 2015 46.10 27781 46.05 8426
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d.  Distribution of Shareholding as on June 30, 2015

 The broad shareholding distribution of the Company as on June 30, 2015 with respect to categories of investors was as follows:

Sr.No. Category No. of Equity Shares Percentage%

1. Promoter & Promoter Group 104607641 35.0000

2. Clearing Member   340370 0.1139

3. Bodies Corporate** 143342338 47.96

4. Foreign Company 36549990 12.230

5. Financial Institutions 21666 0.0072

6. Foreign Institutional Investors(FIIs) 1174041 0.3928

7. Non-Nationalized Banks 27870 0.0093

8. Non Resident Indians 811912 0.2717

9. Non Resident Indians (Non Repatriable) 159086 0.0532

10. Public 11829364 3.9579

11. Foreign Portfolio Investors (Corporate) 14696 0.0049

Total 29,88,78,974 100.0000

**  As set out in the Lett er of Off er dated December 08, 2014 issued by Reliance MediaWorks Limited alongwith Reliance Land Private Limited 
(Person Acting in Concert 1), Mr. Namit Malhotra (Person Acting in Concert 2), Mr. Naresh Malhotra (Person Acting in Concert 3), Monsoon 
Studio Private Limited (PAC 4), this includes 13,40,80,061 shares held by Reliance MediaWorks Limited, a person acting in concert with the 
Promoters.

Pro mo ter & 
P romoter Group

Clearing M emb er

Bodies C orp orate**

Foreign  C ompany

Fin an cial Institu tions

Foreign  In stitu tio nal In vestors(FIIs)
Non-Natio nalized Ban ks

Non Residen t In dian s Non Residen t In dian s (Non Rep atr iable)
Pu blic
Foreign  P ortfolio Investor s (Cor porate)
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c. The broad shareholding distribution of the Company as on June 30, 2015 with respect to/ holdings was as follows:

Range No. of Holders Percentage % No. of Shares Percentage %

1- 500 9109 75.6813 1652779 0.5530

501-1000 1400 11.6318 1189100 0.3979

1001-2000 653 5.4254 1044160 0.3494

2001-3000 233 1.9359 617228 0.2065

3001-4000 106 0.8807 398700 0.1334

4001-5000 133 1.1050 641442 0.2146

5001-10000 198 1.6451 1524114 0.5099

10001 and above 204 1.6948 291811451 97.6353

Total 12036 100.0000 298878974 100.0000

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Naresh Malhotra
Whole-Time Director

DIN: 00004597

Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan
Managing Director

DIN:02696897
    

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 16, 2015

ANNUAL DECLARATION BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO THE LISTING AGREEMENT

As per the requirements of Clause 49(II)(E)(2) of the Listing Agreement, I, Namit Malhotra, Chief Executive Offi  cer, hereby declare that all the Board 
Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affi  rmed compliance with the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for the 
Financial Year ended June 30, 2015.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Namit Malhotra
Chief Executive Offi  cer

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 16, 2015
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To,
The Members,
Prime Focus Limited, 
Opp Citi Bank, 
Linking Road,
Khar (West).
Mumbai- 400052

We have examined all relevant records of Prime Focus Limited (the “Company”) for the purpose of certifying compliance of the conditions of Corporate 

Governance under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange Limited for the fi nancial year 

ended 30th June 2015. We have obtained all the information and explanations to the best of our knowledge and belief as were necessary for the purpose of 

this certifi cation.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the procedure and 

implementation thereof. This certifi cate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the effi  cacy or eff ectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the aff airs of the Company.

On the basis of our examination of the records produced, explanations and information furnished, we certify that:

a. the Company has complied with all the mandatory conditions of the said Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

For S. N. ANANTHASUBRAMANIAN & CO.
Company Secretaries

Firm Registration No. P1991MH040400

S. N. ANANTHASUBRAMANIAN
PARTNER

C. P. No.:1774
Date: 16th September, 2015
Place: Thane

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
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TO THE MEMBERS OF PRIME FOCUS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone fi nancial statements of Prime Focus Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at June 
30, 2015, the Statement of Profi t and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of signifi cant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matt ers stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) with respect to the preparation 
of these standalone fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view of the fi nancial position, fi nancial performance and cash fl ows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specifi ed under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal fi nancial controls, that were operating eff ectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone fi nancial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the 
Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matt ers which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specifi ed under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the fi nancial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal fi nancial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the fi nancial 
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal fi nancial controls system over fi nancial reporting and the operating eff ectiveness of 
such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone fi nancial 
statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone fi nancial statements give the 
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of aff airs of the Company as at June 30, 2015, and its loss and its cash fl ows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (the Order) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we 
give in the Annexure a statement on the matt ers specifi ed in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes 
of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profi t and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone fi nancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specifi ed under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the writt en representations received from the directors as on June 30, 2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualifi ed as on June 30, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the other matt ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its fi nancial position in its fi nancial statements – Refer Note 30 (i) to the 
fi nancial statements;

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 117364W)

Abhijit A. Damle
(Partner)

Mumbai, dated: September 16, 2015   Membership No. 102912
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report of even date)

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities/ result during the year,clauses (ii), (v), and (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. In respect of other clauses, we report as under: 

i. In respect of its fi xed assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fi xed assets.

b) The Company has a program of verifi cation of fi xed assets to cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of three years which, in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. However, the fi xed assets have not been physically 
verifi ed by the management during the year, in the absence thereof, we are unable to comment on the discrepancies, if any.

ii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, fi rms or other parties 
covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of such loans:

(a) The receipts of principal amounts and interest have been as per stipulations.

(b) There is no overdue amount in excess of ` 1 lakh remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the explanations that some of the items purchased are 
of special nature and suitable alternative sources are not readily available for obtaining comparable quotations, the Company needs to strengthen the 
internal control system to make it commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchases of fi xed assets and sale 
of services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to correct major weakness in such internal control system.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with 
the appropriate authorities, except for payment of Service Tax and Tax Deducted at Source, where signifi cant delays have been noted.

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service 
Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at June 30, 2015 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable.

c) There are no cases of non- deposit with the appropriate authorities of disputed dues of Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Value 
Added Tax, and Cess. Details of dues of Income Tax which have not been deposited as on June 30, 2015 on account of disputes are given below:

Statute Nature of Dues Amount involved (`) Period to which the amount relates Forum where dispute is 
pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 68,756,958

653,294

Assessment year
2007-2008, 2009-2010 and 2010-2011
Assessment year2008-2009

Commissioner of Income Tax 
(Appeals)
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal

Total 69,410,252

d) There are no amounts that are due to be transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.
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v. The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the fi nancial year, and the Company has incurred cash losses during the current fi nancial year 
but has not incurred any cash loss during the immediately preceding fi nancial period.

vi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to fi nancial 
institutions, banks and debenture holders.

vii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the guarantees given by the Company for 
loans taken by Others from banks or fi nancial institutions are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the 
purposes for which they were obtained.

ix. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 117364W)

Abhijit A. Damle
(Partner)

Membership No. 102912

Mumbai, dated: September 16, 2015
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BALANCE SHEET
as at June 30, 2015

 in ` 
Notes  As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014

Equity and Liabilities 
Shareholders' funds 
Share Capital 3  298,878,974  185,417,436 
Reserves and Surplus 4  10,131,127,297  4,325,231,206 

 10,430,006,271  4,510,648,642 
Non-current liabilities 
Long-term borrowings 5  3,642,137,017  2,626,346,543 
Other long-term liabilities 7  635,675,550  3,970,260 
Long-term provisions 8  22,471,308  6,998,021 

 4,300,283,875  2,637,314,824 
Current liabilities 
Short-term borrowings 9  712,706,617  857,187,662 
Trade payables 
Total outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprise 32  -  - 
Total outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprise  188,609,840  278,759,163 
Other current liabilities 10  621,392,904  575,835,200 
Short-term provisions 8  13,235,197  443,185,585 

 1,535,944,558  2,154,967,610 
 16,266,234,704  9,302,931,076 

Assets 
Non-current assets 
Fixed assets 
Tangible assets 11  2,694,293,801  1,700,457,079 
Intangible assets 12  23,535,360  32,177,922 
Capital work-in-progress  3,056,615  3,200,365 
Non-current investments 13  8,642,817,704  2,384,595,576 
Deferred tax assets (net) 6  584,413,947  1,129,343,192 
Long-term loans and advances 15  946,919,138  621,123,932 

 12,895,036,565  5,870,898,066 
Current assets 
Trade receivables 14  461,542,999  1,392,181,531 
Cash and bank balances 16  56,209,753  65,429,798 
Short-term loans and advances 15  2,689,685,732  214,615,588 
Other current assets 17  163,759,655  1,759,806,093 

 3,371,198,139  3,432,033,010 
 16,266,234,704  9,302,931,076 

 Notes to accounts 1-39

As per our report of even date
For Deloitt e Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants 

Abhijit A. Damle Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Ramakrishnan  Sankaranarayanan
Partner Whole-time Director Chairman (Executive Director) Managing Director
 DIN: 00004597 and Chief Executive Offi  cer DIN: 02696897
  DIN: 00004049

Place : Mumbai Vikas Rathee Parina Shah
Date   :  September 16, 2015 Chief Financial Offi  cer Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended June 30, 2015

 in ` 

Notes  For the Year ended 
June 30, 2015

 For the period ended 
June 30, 2014

 Income 
 Revenue from operations-sale of services (net)  1,134,935,721  2,735,478,868 

 Other operating income 25  101,013,837  17,539,573 

 Other income 18  110,258,912  369,382,517 

 1,346,208,470  3,122,400,958 
 Expenses 
 Employee benefi ts expense 19  225,928,422  693,500,509 

 Technician fees  158,317,521  641,147,739 

 Finance costs 20  246,678,684  281,083,490 

 Depreciation and amortization expense 11 & 12  235,662,689  439,856,043 

 Other expenses 21  369,292,411  490,387,478 

 1,235,879,727  2,545,975,259 
 Profi t before exceptional items and tax  110,328,743  576,425,699 
 Exceptional Items 22  157,032,446  (17,151,087)

 (Loss) / Profi t before tax  (46,703,703)  593,576,786 
 Tax expense 
 Current tax  (424,230,682)  444,159,935 

 MAT credit entitlement  -  (1,763,157)

  (424,230,682)  442,396,778 
 Deferred tax  658,628,931  (487,046,457)

 Total tax expense  234,398,249  (44,649,679)
 (Loss) / Profi t for the year / period  (281,101,952)  638,226,465 
 Earnings per equity share of face value of ` 1 each (before exceptional items) (Refer Note 23) 
 Basic  (0.67)  3.37 

 Diluted  (0.67)  3.37 

 Earnings per equity share of face value of ` 1 each (aft er exceptional items) (Refer Note 23) 
 Basic  (1.33)  3.44 

 Diluted  (1.33)  3.44 

 Notes to accounts 1-39

As per our report of even date
For Deloitt e Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants 

Abhijit A. Damle Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Ramakrishnan  Sankaranarayanan
Partner Whole-time Director Chairman (Executive Director) Managing Director
 DIN: 00004597 and Chief Executive Offi  cer DIN: 02696897
  DIN: 00004049

Place : Mumbai Vikas Rathee Parina Shah
Date   :  September 16, 2015 Chief Financial Offi  cer Company Secretary
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 in ` 
 For the Year ended June 

30, 2015
 For the period ended 

June 30, 2014
Cash fl ow from operating activities 
(Loss) / Profi t before tax  (46,703,703)  593,576,786 
Adjusted for
Depreciation and amortization expense  235,662,689  439,856,043 
(Profi t) / Loss on sale of fi xed assets (net)  (1,469,559)  3,010,210 
Loss on sale of subsidiary (net of provision ` 514,636,483, previous period ` Nil)  106,971,970  - 
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) (net)  (31,473,393)  (122,731,948)
Gain on sale of assets on slump sale  -  (1,972,058,739)
Bad debts writt en off  (net of provision doubtful debts of `  57,703,641, previous period `  149,144,891)  10,694,690  7,157,852 
Provision for doubful debts/ advances (net)  48,972,535  87,021,380 
Loans and advances writt en off  (Net of provision for doubtful loans and advances of ` 1,399,495,838, previous 
period ` Nil)

- -

Provision for doubtful loans and advances to a subsidiary  -  1,353,249,789 
Provision for diminution in the value of investment in a subsidiary  -  514,636,483 
Sundry credit balance writt en back  (31,097,330)  (5,527,359)
Interest income  (52,890,824)  (132,993,023)
Dividend income  (24,000)  (12,000)
Finance Costs  246,678,684  281,083,490 
Operating profi t before working capital changes  485,321,759  1,046,268,964 
Movements in working capital :
(Decrease) in trade payables  (93,132,410)  (11,480,042)
(Decrease) in provisions  (1,073,792)  (1,668,669)
(Decrease) / increase in other current liabilities  (473,491)  2,381,783 
Increase / (decrease) in other long-term liabilities  631,705,290  (6,909,840)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables  884,235,893  (59,759,432)
(Increase) in long-term loans and advances  (1,778,222)  (3,734,573)
(Increase) / decrease in short-term loans and advances (72,607,342)  30,805,901 
(Increase) in other current assets (60,315,359)  (33,227,419)
Cash generated from operations  1,771,882,326  962,676,673 
Direct taxes (paid) (net)  (79,680,889)  (63,928,626)
Net cash fl ow generated from operating activities (A)  1,692,201,437  898,748,047 
Cash fl ow from investing activities
Purchase of fi xed assets  (162,310,806)  (213,197,807)
Proceeds from sale of fi xed assets  7,649,958  5,966,833 
Consideration received towards backend sale  1,675,800,000  621,249,000 
Purchase of investment in subsidiaries  (6,137,268,791)  (392,521,002)
Proceeds from sale of investment in subsidiary  17,087,534  100,000 
Loans given to subsidiaries  (2,699,947,462)  (901,136,977)
Loans repaid by subsidiaries  3,103,272,223  884,795,007 
Inter-corporate deposits given  (26,000,000)  (10,000,000)
Inter-corporate deposits received back  50,500,000  5,000,000 
Margin money and fi xed deposits under lien  15,492,148  29,534,723 
Interest received  22,301,880  32,043,234 
Dividend received  24,000  12,000 
Net cash fl ow (used in) / generated from investing activities (B)  (4,133,399,316)  61,845,011 
Cash fl ow from fi nancing activities

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended June 30, 2015
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30th June, 2015

 in ` 
 For the Year ended June 

30, 2015
 For the period ended 

June 30, 2014
Proceeds from long term borrowings (net of expenses)  1,011,732,985  96,088,589 
Repayment of long term borrowings  (469,212,808)  (518,959,806)
Proceeds from short term borrowings (net)  (144,481,045)  (264,311,692)
Proceeds from issuance of shares (including share premium and net of issue expenses)  2,394,099,992  - 
Finance costs paid  (344,669,142)  (283,615,950)
Net Cash generated / (used in) from fi nancing activities (C)  2,447,469,982  (970,798,859)

Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  6,272,103  (10,205,801)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year / period  5,531,414  15,737,215 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / period 
(Refer Note below)

 11,803,517  5,531,414 

Note:
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Bank balances
As per Balance Sheet (Refer Note 16)  56,209,753  65,429,798 
less: Other bank balances (Refer Note 16)  44,406,236  59,898,384 
As per Cash Flow Statement  11,803,517  5,531,414 

Notes:

1. 67,307,692 equity shares were issued to Reliance MediaWorks Limited (“RMW”) as consideration other than cash towards the transfer of its fi lm and media services 
business to the Company in accordance with the Business Transfer Agreement dated November 19, 2014 between the Company, RMW and Reliance Land Private Limited. 
(Refer Note 28)

2. Receivable from N2M Realty Private Limited of Rs. 265,000,000 was transferred to GVS Soft ware Private Limited in consideration for 265,000 Redeemable Convertible 
Preference Shares of equivalent value. (Refer Note 27)

As per our report of even date
For Deloitt e Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants 

Abhijit A. Damle Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Ramakrishnan  Sankaranarayanan
Partner Whole-time Director Chairman (Executive Director) Managing Director
 DIN: 00004597 and Chief Executive Offi  cer DIN: 02696897
  DIN: 00004049

Place : Mumbai Vikas Rathee Parina Shah
Date   :  September 16, 2015 Chief Financial Offi  cer Company Secretary
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1. Corporate information

 Prime Focus Limited (the Company) is a public listed company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. 
The Company is engaged in the business of post-production including digital intermediate, visual eff ects, 2D to 3D conversion and other technical and 
creative services to the Media and Entertainment industry.

2. Statement of signifi cant accounting policies:

a. Basis of preparation

 The fi nancial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian 
GAAP), including the Accounting Standards specifi ed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The fi nancial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and 
under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of fi nancial statements are consistent with those of 
previous period, unless otherwise specifi ed.

b. Use of estimates

 The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that aff ect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the fi nancial 
statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end. Accounting estimates change from period to period. Actual results 
could diff er from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the management becomes aware of changes in circumstances 
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are refl ected in the fi nancial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, 
their eff ects are disclosed in the notes to the fi nancial statements.

c. Tangible fi xed assets

 Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction. They are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
loss, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and any directly att ributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended 
use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

 Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fi xed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefi ts from the existing 
asset beyond its previously assessed standards of performance. All other expenses on existing fi xed assets, including day-to-day repair and 
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profi t and Loss for the period during which such expenses 
are incurred.

 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fi xed assets are measured as the diff erence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

d. Depreciation

 Depreciation on tangible fi xed assets is provided using the Straight Line Method (SLM) as per the useful lives of the assets estimated by the 
management, which are similar to useful life prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

 Cost of Leasehold improvement and Leasehold building is amortised over a period of lease.

 Depreciation is provided at 100% on items of fi xed assets costing less than ` 5000/- in the year of purchase.

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
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e. Intangible assets

 Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line 
basis over the estimated useful economic life. 

 Soft ware

 Soft ware is amortized on straight line basis over the estimate of useful life being six years.

f. Impairment

 The carrying values of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for impairment. If any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable 
amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of the net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash fl ows to 
their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier 
accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profi t and Loss, 
except in case of revalued assets. 

g. Leases

 Finance leases, which eff ectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefi ts incidental to ownership of the leased item, are 
capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. 
Lease payments are apportioned between the fi nance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on 
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as fi nance costs in the Statement of Profi t and Loss. Lease management 
fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are capitalized.

 Leases where the lessor eff ectively retains substantially all the risks and benefi ts of ownership of the leased item are classifi ed as operating 
leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profi t and Loss on a straight line basis over the leased term.

h.  Borrowing cost

 Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowing and exchange 
diff erences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.  

 Borrowing costs relating to acquisition or construction of qualifying assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended 
use are capitalised to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the 
period in which they occur.

i. Investments

 Long-term investments are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary, in the value of such investments. 
Current investments are carried individually, at the lower of cost and fair value. Cost of investments include acquisition charges such as 
brokerage, fees and duties. 

j. Revenue recognition

 Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration for the sale of services and products in the ordinary course of the Company’s activities. 
Revenue is shown net of applicable taxes.

 The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefi ts will fl ow to 
the Company and no signifi cant uncertainty exists as to its determination or realisation. The Company bases its estimates on empirical evidence 
of the past taking into consideration the type of transaction, the type of customer and the specifi cs of each arrangement.
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i. The Company provides a variety of post-production services including digital intermediate, visual special eff ects (VFX), two dimension to 
three dimension (2D to 3D) conversion and other technical services to its subsidiaries and to clients in the fi lm, broadcast and commercial 
sectors.

 Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and the revenues from the end of the last 
billing to the balance sheet date are recognized as unbilled revenues. Revenue from services provided under fi xed price contracts, where the 
outcome can be estimated reliably, is recognized following the percentage of completion method, where revenue is recognized in proportion 
to the progress of the contract activity. The progress of the contract activity is usually determined as a proportion of hours spent up to the 
balance sheet date, which bears to the total hours estimated for the contract. If losses are expected on contracts these are recognized when 
such loses become evident.

 Unbilled revenue is included within ‘other current assets’ and billing in advance is included as deferred revenue in ‘other current liabilities’.

ii. Others

 Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

 Dividends are recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the Balance Sheet date. Dividend from 
subsidiaries is recognized even if same are declared aft er the balance sheet date but pertains to period on or before the date of balance 
sheet.

k. Foreign currency transactions

 Initial recognition

 Foreign Currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the 
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

 Conversion

 At the period end, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing exchange rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms 
of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

 Exchange diff erences

 Exchange diff erences are recognised as income or expenses in the period in which they arise except in case of exchange diff erences arising on 
long term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of fi xed assets which are capitalised and depreciated over the remianing useful 
life of assets.

l. Income taxes

 Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in 
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. Deferred income taxes refl ects the impact of current year timing diff erences between 
taxable income and accounting income for the period and reversal of timing diff erences of earlier year.

 Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off  current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred 
tax assets can be realised. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, deferred tax assets are 
recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profi ts.
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 At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognised deferred tax assets to the 
extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available against 
which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred 
tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that suffi  cient future taxable income will be 
available against which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or 
virtually certain, as the case may be, that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available.

 Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will 
pay normal income tax during the specifi ed period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance 
with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by 
way of a credit to the Statement of Profi t and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet 
date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the eff ect that the 
Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specifi ed period. 

m. Earnings per share

 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profi t or loss for the period att ributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profi t or loss for the 
period att ributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the eff ects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

n. Provisions and contingencies

 A provision is recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that cash 
outfl ow will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company 
has a possible or present obligation where it is not probable that an outfl ow of resources will be required to sett le it. Contingent assets are neither 
recognized nor disclosed.

o. Retirement and other employee benefi ts

 Defi ned Contribution Plan

 Provident Fund:

 The Company contributes towards Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund. Liability in respect thereof is determined on the basis of contribution 
as required under the Statute / Rules.

 Defi ned Benefi t Plan

 Gratuity:

 Provision for gratuity is made based upon the actuarial valuation done at the end of every fi nancial year using “Projected Unit Credit Method” 
Major drivers in actuarial assumptions, typically, are years of services and employees compensation. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial 
assumptions are accounted for in the Statement of Profi t and Loss.

p. Cash fl ow statement

 Cash fl ows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profi t / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the eff ects of 
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash fl ows from operating, investing 
and fi nancing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.
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 3.  Share capital

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014

Authorised shares:

350,000,000 (Previous Year : 250,000,000) 
Equity shares of ` 1/- each 

 350,000,000  250,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-Up:

298,878,974 (Previous Year: 185,417,436) 
Equity shares of ` 1/- each 

 298,878,974  185,417,436 

 298,878,974  185,417,436 

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year / period

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014

No.  Amount No.  Amount 

At the beginning of the year / period  185,417,436  185,417,436  185,417,436  185,417,436 

Issued during the year / period (Refer Note 28)  113,461,538  113,461,538  -  - 

 At the end of the year / period  298,878,974  298,878,974  185,417,436  185,417,436 

b. Rights, preferences and restrictions att ached to shares

 The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1 each. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend 
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim 
dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company aft er distribution of all 
liabilities, in proportion to their shareholding. 

c. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of fi ve 
years immediately preceding the reporting date:

As at June 30,  2015 As at June 30, 2014

 No.  No. 

Equity shares allott ed as fully paid up pursuant to business transfer agreement for consideration 
other than cash (Refer Note 28)

 67,307,692  - 

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014

 No.  % of holding  No.  % of holding 

Naresh Malhotra  62,201,546  20.81  62,201,546  33.55 

Reliance MediaWorks Limited  134,080,061  44.86  -  - 

Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) III Limited  36,549,990  12.23  36,549,990  19.71 

Monsoon Studio Private Limited  27,506,095  9.20  -  - 

Namit Malhotra  14,900,000  4.99  14,900,000  8.04 
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e. In the Board of Directors meeting held on July 02, 2014 approval was granted to introduce and implement Employee Stock Option Scheme 
titled ‘PFL-ESOP Scheme 2014’ whereby stock options upto 6% of the paid up capital of the Company (post preferential allotment) aggregating 
17,932,738 stock options would be issued to eligible employees of the Company, its subsidiaries and associates. The said scheme was approved 
by the shareholders in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on August 01, 2014.

4. Reserves and surplus

 in ` 

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014

Securities Premium Account

As per last balance sheet  2,825,090,697  3,051,621,190 

Add : Premium on issue of equity shares (Refer Note 28)  5,786,538,438  - 

Less : Expenses on issue of equity shares  5,900,000  - 

Less : Premium on redemption of debentures (net of tax)  210,549,462  226,530,493 

 8,395,179,673  2,825,090,697 

Capital Reserve 

On acquisition of business (Refer Note 28)  517,690,352  - 

 517,690,352  - 

General Reserve 

As per last balance sheet  13,400,000  13,400,000 

 13,400,000  13,400,000 

Debenture Redemption Reserve

As per last balance sheet  586,655,965  - 

Add: Transferred from Surplus in the Statement of Profi t and Loss  -  586,655,965 

 586,655,965  586,655,965 

Surplus in the Statement of Profi t and Loss

As per last balance sheet  900,084,544  848,514,044 

Add: (Loss) / Profi t for the year / period  (281,101,952)  638,226,465 

Less: Transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve  -  586,655,965 

Less: Depreciation on account of transitional provisions of 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 (net of tax) (Refer Note 37)

 10,260,080  - 

 608,722,512  900,084,544 

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Eff ect of foreign exchange rate variations during the year  9,478,795  - 

 9,478,795  - 

 10,131,127,297  4,325,231,206 
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5. Long-term borrowings

 in ` 

Non-current portion Current maturities

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014

Debentures (unsecured)

Non-convertible debentures - series A  1,010,000,000  1,010,000,000  -  - 

Non-convertible debentures - series B  891,000,000  891,000,000  -  - 

Premium on aforesaid debentures  761,781,859  445,623,858  -  - 

(Refer Note (a) below)

Debentures (secured)

Non-convertible debentures  489,100,000  -  -  - 

Premium on aforesaid debentures  2,808,006  -  -  - 

(Refer Note (b) below)

Term loans (secured)

from a bank  -  198,000,000  -  132,000,000 

(Refer Note (c) below)

from others  406,196,930  -  26,540,141  - 

(Refer Note (d) below)

Other loans and advances (secured)

Finance lease obligations  15,425,781  19,380,399  11,990,813  10,196,125 

(Refer Note (e) below)

Foreign currency loans - buyers credit  65,824,441  62,342,286  96,167,847  146,500,830 

(Refer Note (f) below)

 3,642,137,017  2,626,346,543  134,698,801  288,696,955 

The above amount includes

Secured borrowings  979,355,158  279,722,685  134,698,801  288,696,955 

Unsecured borrowings  2,662,781,859  2,346,623,858  -  - 

Amount disclosed under the head "other current 
liabilities" (Refer Note 10)

 -  -  (134,698,801)  (288,696,955)

Net amount  3,642,137,017  2,626,346,543  -  - 

a. On November 05, 2012, the Company issued 1,901 Zero Coupon Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of ` 1,000,000 each, 
of the aggregate nominal value of ̀  1,901,000,000 to Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) III Limited. The Debentures were issued in two 
series being the Series A NCDs and the Series B NCDs. The Series A NCDs comprised of 1,010 Debentures aggregating ̀ 1,010,000,000 redeemable 
aft er 5 years and the Series B NCDs comprised of 891 Debentures aggregating ` 891,000,000 redeemable aft er 6 years.
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 The amounts payable on redemption on Debentures are as follows: 

i. With respect to the Series A NCDs, an amount equal to 188.17% of the Principal amount of Series A NCDs. 

ii. With respect to the Series B NCDs, an amount equal to 213.41% of the Principal amount of Series B NCDs 

 In the event that either the Company or the Debenture Holders are desirous of redeeming the Debentures prior to its scheduled maturity 
other than upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Company and the Debenture Holders shall mutually agree on the amounts 
payable to the Debenture Holders upon such early redemption and the other terms of such redemption.

b. On February 20, 2015 the Company made an off er for the issuance of upto 4,000 unlisted, unrated, redeemable debentures not convertible into 
Equity Shares of the Company of face value of ` 100,000 each (“Debentures”) aggregating upto ` 270,000,000 with a Green Shoe Option of upto 
` 130,000,000 on a private placement basis. On March 04, 2015, 2,891 Debentures aggregating ` 289,100,000 were allott ed. On April 07, 2015 the 
Company made an additional off er for the issuance of upto 2,000 unlisted, unrated, redeemable debentures not convertible into Equity Shares 
of the Company of face value of ` 100,000 each (“Debentures”) aggregating upto ` 200,000,000. On May 05, 2015, the Company allott ed 1,580 
debentures under Tranche - 1, aggregating ` 158,000,000 and on May 08, 2015 the Company further allott ed 420 debentures under Tranche – 2, 
aggregating ` 42,000,000. In aggregate, the company allott ed 4,891 debentures amounting to ` 489,100,000 at 14% interest payable quarterly 
and a redemption premium payable on maturity of the debenture to make the IRR of 17%. Of these Debentures ` 289,100,000 matures in August 
2017 and ` 200,000,000 matures in November 2017.

c. On November 06, 2012, the Company entered into a term loan agreement with a bank to borrow ` 495,000,000 to fund the redemption of FCCB 
at an interest rate of base rate + margin (as may be agreed with the bank from time to time) for a tenor up to a maximum of 4 years. The base rate 
and margin were 14.75% during the previous period. The term loan was to be repaid in 45 monthly installments starting from the end of 4th month 
from the date of disbursement. The outstanding balance as at June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014 is ` Nil and ` 330,000,000 respectively. The term 
loan was secured by a specifi c charge on immovable assets of the Company, personal guarantees of the promoters and pledge of shares of the 
company held by the promoter.

d. On August 13, 2014, the Company entered into a long term loan agreement with others to borrow ` 450,000,000 at an interest rate of 12.50% p.a., 
to repay the existing term loan and for general corporate purpose which includes working capital and advance payment for capital expenditure. 
The term loan is to be repayable in 120 equated monthly installment starting from October 01, 2014 for loan availed on August 29, 2014 and from 
November 01, 2014 for loan availed on September 05, 2014. Further, the term loan is secured by a specifi c charge on immovable properties of the 
Company. At the year end, outstanding balance of the term loan is ` 432,737,071.

e.  Lease obligations towards assets acquired under fi nance leases:
in `

Total minimum lease 
payments outstanding 

Future Interest on 
outstanding 

lease payments

Present Value of minimum 
lease payments

As at
 June 30, 2015 

As at
 June 30, 2014 

As at
 June 30, 2015 

As at
 June 30, 2014 

As at
 June 30, 2015 

As at
 June 30, 2014 

Within one year      14,615,619        13,031,371          2,624,806          2,835,246       11,990,813        10,196,125 
Later than one year and not later fi ve years      17,501,620        22,024,841          2,075,839          2,644,442       15,425,781        19,380,399 
Later than fi ve years                   -                       -                       -                       -                      -                       -   

     32,117,239       35,056,212         4,700,645         5,479,688       27,416,594      29,576,524 

  Finance lease obligations are secured by hypothecation of plant and equipment, offi  ce equipment and vehicles taken on lease.

f. Foreign currency loans – buyer’s credit are secured by pari passu charge on the immoveable assets of the Company, both present and future 
(except building in Royal Palms, Goregaon, Mumbai), pari passu charge on the Company’s current assets both present and future and personal 
guarantees of the promoter director.
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6. Deferred tax (assets) (net)

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014

 Deferred tax liability 

 Diff erence between tax and books writt en-down values of fi xed  assets  168,829,692  166,197,107 

 168,829,692  166,197,107 

 Deferred tax assets 

 Unabsorbed Loss Carried forward  488,889,179  488,889,179 

 Premium on redemption of NCD  225,062,076  116,645,530 

 Provision for doubtful loan  -  459,969,603 

 Provision for diminution in the value of investment  -  174,924,941 

 Provision for doubtful debts / advances  34,464,139  52,321,698 

 Provision for gratuity  4,828,245  2,789,348 

 753,243,639  1,295,540,299 

 Net deferred tax (assets)  (584,413,947)  (1,129,343,192)

 The Company had recognized a deferred tax asset on the carry forward losses in the earlier years. Although the Company has incurred taxable losses 
in the current year, based on the agreements entered into by the Company for lease/ sub-lease of its premises and to render outsourcing service to 
its subsidiaries coupled with the revenue from existing business activities, the management is confi dent that suffi  cient taxable income to off set carry 
forward losses would be generated.

7.  Other long-term liabilities

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014

Security deposits  35,675,550  3,970,260 

Other payables  600,000,000  - 

 635,675,550  3,970,260 

8. Provisions

 in ` 

Long-term Short-term

As at
June 30, 2015 

As at
June 30, 2014

As at 
June 30, 2015 

As at 
June 30, 2014

Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 24)  11,866,341  6,998,021  2,338,557  1,208,361 

Provision for leave encashment  10,604,967  -  -  - 

Provision for income tax (net of advance tax)  -  -  10,896,640  441,977,224 

 22,471,308  6,998,021  13,235,197  443,185,585 

 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision was required for any foreseeable losses.



115

9.  Short-term borrowings (Secured)

  in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014

From Banks / Others

Cash credit/ overdraft  330,306,617  305,287,662 

Short-term demand loans  382,400,000  551,900,000 

 712,706,617  857,187,662 

a.  In February 2011, the Company entered into an agreement for a working capital demand loan of ` 250,000,000 from a bank for a term of six 
months at an interest rate of 13% Per Annum. This is renewed periodically and is secured by fi rst pari passu charge on the Company’s current 
assets both present and future, personal guarantees and pledge of shares by the promoter director. As at June 30, 2015, ` 100,000,000 and as at 
June 30, 2014, ` 250,000,000 is outstanding and is included in short-term demand loans.

b.  On November 06, 2012, the Company entered in to an agreement for pre-shipment fi nancing under export orders (“Facility”) of ` 385,000,000 
for funding against confi rmed orders up to 100% of export sales. The interest rate for the facility drawn in Indian rupees is base rate plus margin 
and for facility drawn in currency other than Indian rupees is LIBOR plus margin. There are sub-limits under the facility for fi nancial guarantees / 
standby lett er of credit for payment undertaking for buyer’s credit, pre-shipment fi nancing under export lett er of credit, export bills discounting, 
export invoice fi nancing, import invoice fi nancing, overdraft , short-term loans and bonds/ guarantees. The Facility is secured by fi rst pari-passu 
charge on stock and book debts of the Company, personal guarantee of the promoters, fi rst pari-passu charge on movable fi xed assets of the 
Company, fi rst pari-passu charge on immovable fi xed assets located at Royal Palms-Mastermind, Goregoan, Mumbai and Raghuvanshi Mills, 
Mumbai and pledge of shares of the Company. As at June 30, 2015 ` 146,718,825 and June 30, 2014 ` 292,267,856 is outstanding under the 
Facility. As at June 30, 2015 ` nil and June 30, 2014 ` 166,900,000 is included in short-term demand loans and as at June 30, 2015 ̀  146,718,825 and 
June 30, 2014 ` 125,367,856 is included in cash credit / overdraft .

c. On October 28, 2014, the Company borrowed ` 5,000,000 as working capital demand loan from a bank for a term of ten months at an interest rate 
of 13.75%. The short-term demand loan is secured by fi rst pari passu charge on the Company’s current assets both present and future, personal 
guarantees and pledge of shares by the promoter director. As at June 30, 2015, ` 5,000,000 is outstanding and is included in short-term demand 
loans.

d. On November 05, 2014, the Company raised ̀  50,000,000 from a fi nancial institution at an interest rate of 15.5% Per Annum for a term of 6 months 
from date of disbursement. This loan is renewed and is secured by pledge of shares by a promoter director. As at June 30, 2015 ` 50,000,000 was 
outstanding and is included under short-term demand loan.

e. On February 18, 2015, the Company raised ` 50,000,000 from a fi nancial institution at an interest rate of 17% Per Annum for a term of 363 
days from the date of disbursement. The short-term demand loan is secured by pledge of shares by a promoter director. As at June 30, 2015 ` 
50,000,000 was outstanding and is included under short-term demand loan.

f. Cash credits/ overdraft  from banks are secured against fi rst pari passu charge on the Company’s current assets both present and future, personal 
guarantees and pledge of shares by the promoter director. The cash credit is repayable on demand and carries interest at the rate of 14.50% 
to 14.75% Per Annum. As at June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, the cash credits/ overdraft  outstanding were ` 183,587,792 and ` 179,919,806, 
respectively.

g. On January 31, 2013, the Company entered into an agreement for a working capital loan of ` 150,000,000 from others at an interest rate of 16% 
Per Annum for a term of 12 months from the date of disbursement. This loan is renewed periodically and is secured by personal guarantee and 
pledge of shares by a promoter director. On February 01, 2015, the Company rolled over the said loan at an interest rate of 15.50% Per Annum for a 
term of 12 months from the date of renewal. On January 21, 2015, the Company additionally borrowed ̀  50,000,000 for general corporate purpose 
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at an interest rate of 15.50% Per Annum for a term of 12 months from the date of disbursement. The general corporate purpose loan is secured 
by personal guarantee and pledge of shares by a promoter director. As at June 30, 2015 ` 177,400,000 and as at June 30, 2014 ` 135,000,000 was 
outstanding and is included under short-term demand loan.

h. On November 27, 2014, the Company raised ` 50,000,000 through inter corporate borrowing for working capital at an interest rate of 18% Per 
Annum for a term of 60 days from the date of disbursement. The working capital loan was secured by pledge of shares by a promoter director. The 
loan was repaid during the year. 

i. On July 01, 2014, the Company raised working capital term loan of ` 3,000,000,000 from others at an interest rate of 13.5% Per Annum. The loan 
was repaid on March 31, 2015. This loan was secured by pledge of the Company’s shares in PF World Ltd. (Mauritius).

10.  Other current liabilities

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 5)  134,698,801  288,696,955 

Accrued salaries and benefi ts  26,627,720  55,423,007 

Advances received from clients  43,549,349  11,359,091 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  8,572,545  5,893,588 

Security deposits  35,506,271  32,074,100 

Capital creditors  162,060,195  137,232,112 

Bank book overdraft 151,879,992  2,028,765 

Deferred revenue  13,774,228  20,000 

Unclaimed dividends  -  14,835 

Other payables 44,723,803  43,092,747 

 621,392,904  575,835,200 

Other payables include withholding taxes, service tax payable and employer and employee contribution to provident and other funds.
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11.  Tangible assets

 Building  Plant and 
equipment 

 Furniture and 
fi xtures 

 Lease Hold 
Improvement 

 Offi  ce 
equipments 

 Vehicles  Total 

 Gross block 
 As at April 01, 2013  500,004,038  2,908,432,341  186,832,985  28,909,070  72,728,278  35,344,519  3,732,251,231 
 Additions  -  314,171,627  938,919  2,759,766  1,751,162  88,000  319,709,474 
 Deduction  -  (6,393,833)  -  -  (120,883)  (9,890,161)  (16,404,877)
 Slump sale 
(Refer Note 36) 

 -  (594,179,475)  -  -  (16,381,178)  (2,446,707)  (613,007,360)

 As at June 30, 2014  500,004,038  2,622,030,660  187,771,904  31,668,836  57,977,379  23,095,651  3,422,548,468 

 Depreciation 
 As at April 01, 2013  28,572,984  1,393,187,960  74,535,662  14,778,205  37,119,481  8,794,263  1,556,988,555 
 For the period  10,182,008  349,580,528  22,474,163  6,742,904  12,685,573  2,994,027  404,659,203 
 Deduction  -  (2,249,909)  -  -  (112,281)  (5,065,644)  (7,427,834)
 Slump sale 
(Refer Note 36) 

 -  (222,015,181)  -  -  (9,489,135)  (624,219)  (232,128,535)

 As at June 30, 2014  38,754,992  1,518,503,398  97,009,825  21,521,109  40,203,638  6,098,427  1,722,091,389 
 Net block 
 As at June 30, 2014  461,249,046  1,103,527,262  90,762,079  10,147,727  17,773,741  16,997,224  1,700,457,079 
 As at April 01, 2013  471,431,054  1,515,244,381  112,297,323  14,130,865  35,608,797  26,550,256  2,175,262,676 

 in ` 
 Building  Plant and 

equipment 
 Furniture and 

fi xtures 
 Lease Hold 

Improvement 
 Offi  ce 

equipments 
 Vehicles  Total 

 Gross block 
 As at July O1, 2014  500,004,038  2,622,030,660  187,771,904  31,668,836  57,977,379  23,095,651  3,422,548,468 
 Acquisitions 
(Refer Note 28) 

 651,900,000  304,392,585  10,723,744  -  46,452,015  3,800,535  1,017,268,879 

 Additions  -  213,966,608  26,689  1,797,840  107,175  5,898,277  221,796,589 
 Deduction  -  (11,716,426)  (1,449,602)  -  -  (800,496)  (13,966,524)
 As at June 30, 2015  1,151,904,038  3,128,673,427  197,072,735  33,466,676  104,536,569  31,993,967  4,647,647,412 

 Depreciation 
 As at July 01, 2014  38,754,992  1,518,503,398  97,009,825  21,521,109  40,203,638  6,098,427  1,722,091,389 
 For the year  12,951,699  172,487,097  16,513,633  4,339,148  13,156,835  4,056,715  223,505,127 
 Adjusted against 
reserve (Refer Note 37) 

 -  14,377,129  12,297  -  987,199  166,595  15,543,220 

 Deduction  -  (5,849,990)  (1,175,664)  -  -  (760,471)  (7,786,125)
 As at June 30, 2015  51,706,691  1,699,517,634  112,360,091  25,860,257  54,347,672  9,561,266  1,953,353,611 
 Net block 
 As at June 30, 2015  1,100,197,347  1,429,155,793  84,712,644  7,606,419  50,188,897  22,432,701  2,694,293,801 

a. Additions to plant and equipment includes ` 2,635,642 (net loss) [Previous period: ` 43,383,656 (net loss)] on account of exchange diff erence 
during the year / period.
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b. Plant and equipment and vehicles include assets taken on fi nance lease as under:
 Gross block: ` 41,233,601 (Previous period: ` 50,899,305)
 Depreciation charge for the year: ` 7,171,487 (Previous period: ` 5,281,414)
 Accumulated depreciation: ` 13,906,109 (Previous period: ` 14,775,579)
 Net block: ` 27,327,492 (Previous period: ` 36,123,726)

 c. Building includes leasehold premises of ` 651,900,000 and its accumulated depreciation of ` 5,055,351 (Previous Year: ` Nil)

12.  Intangible assets
 in ` 

 Goodwill  Film Rights  Soft ware  Total 
 Gross block 

 As at April 01, 2013  5,320,000  30,000,000  138,851,806  174,171,806 
 Additions  -  -  4,571,873  4,571,873 
 Slump sale 
(Refer Note 36) 

 -  -  (82,648,282)  (82,648,282)

 As at June 30, 2014  5,320,000  30,000,000  60,775,397  96,095,397 
 Depreciation 
 As at April 01, 2013  5,320,000  12,000,001  62,505,422  79,825,423 
 For the period  -  7,495,890  27,700,950  35,196,840 
 Slump sale 
(Refer Note 36) 

 -  -  (51,104,788)  (51,104,788)

 As at June 30, 2014  5,320,000  19,495,891  39,101,584  63,917,475 
 Net block 
 As at June 30, 2014  -  10,504,109  21,673,813  32,177,922 
 As at April 01, 2013  -  17,999,999  76,346,384  94,346,383 

 in ` 
 Goodwill  Film Rights  Soft ware  Total 

 Gross block 
 As at July 01, 2014  5,320,000  30,000,000  60,775,397  96,095,397 
 Additions  -  -  3,515,000  3,515,000 
 As at June 30, 2015  5,320,000  30,000,000  64,290,397  99,610,397 
 Depreciation 
 As at July 01, 2014  5,320,000  19,495,891  39,101,584  63,917,475 
 For the year  -  5,145,206  7,012,356  12,157,562 
 As at June 30, 2015  5,320,000  24,641,097  46,113,940  76,075,037 
 Net block 
 As at June 30, 2015  -  5,358,903  18,176,457  23,535,360 

a. Soft ware includes assets taken on fi nance lease as under:
 Gross block: ` Nil (Previous period: ` 1,550,000)
 Depreciation charge for the period: ` Nil (Previous period: ` 313,726)
 Accumulated depreciation: ` Nil (Previous period: ` 1,061,295)
 Net block: ` Nil (Previous period: ` 488,705)
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 13. Non-current investments

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

 Trade investments (at cost) 

 In subsidiary companies 

 Unquoted, fully paid up 

 Prime Focus London Plc, UK  -  144,046,663 

 Nil (previous period: 21,492,003 equity shares of 5 pence each. (Net of provision for diminution of Rs. 
514,636,483) (Refer Note b)) 

 Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  75,500  75,500 

 1,517,550 equity shares of ` 10/- each 

 Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  150,000,000  150,000,000 

 15,000,000 preference shares of `10/- each 

 Prime Focus Visual Eff ects Private Limited  99,990  99,990 

 9,999 equity shares of `10/- each 

 Prime Focus International Limited  2,082,178,346  2,082,178,346 

 21,748,973 equity share of $ 1/- each 

 Prime Focus Motion Pictures Limited  500,000  500,000 

 50,000 equity shares of `10/- each 

 GVS Soft ware Private Limited  100,000  100,000 

 10,000 equity shares of `10/- each 

 GVS Soft ware Private Limited  265,000,000  - 

 265,000 (previous period: Nil) Redeemable Convertible 
 Preference Shares of `10/- each 

 PF Investments Limited  2,199,580  2,199,580 

 43,000 equity shares of $ 1/- each 

 PF World Limited  4,786,060  4,786,060 

 106,000 equity shares of $ 1/- each 

 PF World Limited  6,137,268,791  - 

 101,532,500 (previous period: Nil) 12% Non-convertible 
 reedeemable preference shares 

 Prime Focus 3D India Private Limited  500,000  500,000 

 50,000 equity shares of `10/- each 

 PF Overseas Limited  5,937  5,937 

 100 equity shares of $ 1/- each 

 Gener8 India Media Services Limited  -  - 

 (formerly known as Prime Focus Entertainment Services
 Limited / Reliance MediaWorks Entertainment Services 
 Limited) 
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 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

 850,000 (previous period: Nil) equity shares of `10/- each 
 (Refer Note 28) 

 1,200,000 (previous period: Nil) Redeemable non-
 convertible preference shares of `1/- each (Refer Note 28) 

 Reliance MediaWorks (Mauritius) Limited  -  - 

 1,000 (previous period: Nil) ordinary shares of MUR 1/- each (Refer Note 28) 

 Reliance Lowry Digital Imaging Services Inc  -  - 

 100 (previous period: Nil) equity shares of $ 1/- each 
 (Refer Note 28)   

 8,642,714,204  2,384,492,076 

Non-trade 

Unquoted - fully paid up 

The Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank  100,000  100,000 

4,000 equity shares of Rs 25/- each 

Mainframe Premises Co-Operative Society  3,500  3,500 

350 equity shares of Rs 10/- each    

 103,500  103,500 

 8,642,817,704  2,384,595,576 

a. Aggregate amount of quoted Investments  -  - 

 Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments  8,642,817,704  2,384,595,576 

 b. On March 31, 2015 the Company sold its entire holdings of 21,492,003 ordinary shares of Prime Focus London Plc., a subsidiary company 
incorporated in the U.K. for a consideration of ` 37,074,693. Aft er the reversal of provision of ` 514,636,483 made in respect of this investment 
in the past, the Company incurred a loss of ` 106,971,970, which has been disclosed as an exceptional item (Refer Note 22). Of total consideration, 
` 19,987,159 is outstanding as at June 30, 2015.
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14. Trade receivables (unsecured)

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months

 Considered good  226,683,003  361,121,882 

 Considered doubtful  51,394,937  58,586,821 

Other debts

 Considered good  234,859,996  1,031,059,649 

 Considered doubtful  -  1,539,222 

 512,937,936  1,452,307,574 

Less: Provision  51,394,937  60,126,043 

 461,542,999  1,392,181,531 

15. Loans and advances

 in ` 

Long-term Short-term

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014 
Unsecured - considered good
Capital advances  38,392,331  342,738,851  -  - 
Deposits  75,428,759  69,900,537  3,883,904  12,834,100 
Inter-company deposits (including interest)  -  -  59,118,952  89,830,941 
Loans to subsidiaries (Refer Note 27)  551,782,517  - 2,188,014,209  16,341,970 
Other receivables from subsidiaries (Refer Note 27)  -  - 366,317,635  46,902,467 
MAT credit entitlement  68,524,051  68,524,051  -  - 
Advance payment of taxes  212,791,480  139,960,493  -  - 
(Net of provision for tax)
Other loans and advances  -  -  72,351,032  48,706,110 

 946,919,138  621,123,932  2,689,685,732  214,615,588 
Unsecured - considered doubtful
Capital advances  -  11,000,000  -  - 
Inter-company deposits (including interest)  -  -  -  31,946,577 
Loans to subsidiary (including interest) (Refer Note 27)  -  -  -  1,338,831,689 
Other receivables from subsidiary (Refer Note 27)  -  -  -  14,418,100 
Other loans and advances  -  -  50,000,000  53,299,472 

 -  11,000,000  50,000,000  1,438,495,838 
Less: Provision  -  11,000,000  50,000,000  1,438,495,838 

 -  -  -  - 
 946,919,138  621,123,932  2,689,685,732  214,615,588 
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a. Other loans and advances includes prepaid expenses, loans and advances to employees and others, advances to suppliers and service taxes receivable.

b. Loans and advances include amount due from private companies in which directors is a member / director.

in `
 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

Prime Focus Visual Eff ects Private Limited              23,731                  7,864 
GVS Soft ware Private Limited               2,936                     305 
Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited       26,446,966          21,939,984 
Prime Focus 3D India Private Limited               9,019                  5,886 
Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited      172,556,246            9,810,980 

     199,038,898          31,765,019 

c. i. Loans given to subsidiaries

in `

 Name of the Company  As at June 30, 2015 Maximum 
outstanding 

balance during the 
year

As at June 30, 2014 Maximum 
outstanding 

balance during the 
period

Prime Focus London Plc, UK  - 1,239,978,500  1,239,978,500  1,239,978,500 

Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  -  113,262,638  6,530,990  255,021,968 

Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited 126,507,493  349,668,779  9,810,980  19,704,540 

Gener8 India Media Services Limited  1,027,523,149  2,047,700,000  -  - 

Reliance MediaWorks (Mauritius) Limited  1,033,983,567  1,033,983,567  -  - 

Prime Focus International Limited  551,782,517  551,782,517  -  - 

a. Loans given to subsidiaries except for Prime Focus International Limited is considered under “Short-Term Loans and Advances” and are repayable 
on demand and management intends to receive the loan within an operating cycle. Prime Focus International Limited loan is without planned 
maturity nor is repayable on demand.

b. All the above loans are with interest of 10% - 15% except for loan of ` 909,785,248 given to Gener8 India Media Services Limited (acquired in 
business combination) which is interest free.

c. All loans are given for general corporate purpose of the subsidiaries.
d. There are no advances in the nature of loans.
ii. Investment by loanee in the shares of the subsidiaries.
Investment by Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited in subsidiaries.

in `

 Name of the Company Amount of investment

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited  1  1 

Prime Focus Technologies, Inc  92,133,810  92,133,810 
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in `

 Name of the Company Amount of investment

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

DAX PFT LLC * *

‘* SPV created but no investment was made

in `

 Name of the Company Amount of investment

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

Prime Post (Eurpoe) Limited 9,775 -

16. Cash and bank balances

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  231,281  185,039 

Balances with banks:

 On Current Accounts  11,572,236  5,346,375 

 11,803,517  5,531,414 

Other bank balances:

 Margin money deposits  44,406,236  59,898,384 

 44,406,236  59,898,384 

 56,209,753  65,429,798 

a. Margin money deposits aggregating ` 23,448,636 (previous period: ` 59,898,384) are subject to fi rst charge to secure the foreign currency loans 
– buyer’s credit and bank guarantees.

b. Margin money deposits aggregating ` 20,957,600 (previous period: ` Nil) are subject to fi rst charge to secure the interest of non-convertible 
debenture holders.
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17. Other Current Assets

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

Unbilled revenue  143,517,551  83,202,192 

Receivable towards transfer of backend business  -  1,675,800,000 

(Refer Note 36)

Receivable towards sale of subsidiary  19,987,159  - 

(Refer Note 13b)

Interest accrued on fi xed deposits  254,945  803,901 

 163,759,655  1,759,806,093 

18. Other income in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

 Dividend 

 Long-term investments - non trade  24,000  12,000 

 Interest Income 

 Bank deposits  2,875,721  8,236,922 

 On Income Tax refunds  5,404,191  - 

 Others (including loan to subsidiaries)  50,015,103  124,756,101 

 Profi t on sale of fi xed assets (net)  1,469,559  - 

 Exchange gain (net)  16,812,983  210,564,510 

 Excess provision for doubtful debts writt en back  1,087,941  - 

 Sundry credit balances writt en back  31,097,330  5,527,359 

 Insurance claim received  423,694  8,871,816 

 Bad debts recovered  72,937  6,000 

 Recovery of excess remuneration paid to KMP (Refer Note 27)  -  3,600,000 

 Miscellaneous income  975,453  7,807,809 

 110,258,912  369,382,517 

19. Employee benefi ts expense in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

 Salaries and wages  209,756,456  679,822,711 

 Contribution to provident and other funds  3,802,196  7,932,490 

 Gratuity (Refer Note 24)  (868,420)  (1,668,669)

 Staff  welfare  13,238,190  7,413,977 

 225,928,422  693,500,509 
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20. Finance costs in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

 Interest on working capital fi nance  151,791,306  155,951,388 

 Interest on term loan  56,979,105  92,125,534 

 Interest on buyer's credit  5,234,174  9,803,768 

 Interest on non convertible debenture  8,351,800  - 

 Interest on others  10,342,461  6,292,499 

 Bank charges  13,979,838  16,910,301 

 246,678,684  281,083,490 

21. Other Expenses in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

 Technical service cost  68,890,824  34,560,578 

 Communication cost  6,086,894  23,601,056 
 Consumable stores  122,659  667,255 
 Director's sitt ing Fees  900,000  440,000 
 Electricity charges  41,133,494  102,192,236 
 Insurance cost  10,626,278  10,783,664 
 Legal and professional fees  26,326,158  26,305,755 
 Loss on sale of fi xed assets (net)  -  3,010,210 
 Rates and taxes  87,226  2,720,553 
 Rebates and discount  17,892,388  17,297,565 
 Rent (Refer Note 25)  92,094,204  76,795,116 
Travelling and conveyance  14,379,971  51,388,056 
 Repairs and maintenance-equipment  21,076,321  34,607,679 
 Repairs and maintenance-building  14,396,797  26,044,460 
 Bad debts writt en off   10,694,690  7,157,852 
 (Net of provision for doubtful debt of `. 57,703,641 
previous period `. 149,144,891) 
 Sundry balances writt en off   2,979,984  - 
 Auditor's remuneration 
 As auditor 
Audit fees *  2,875,000  2,775,000 
In other matt ers (certifi cation, limited reviews, etc.) #  1,802,500  737,500 
 Miscellaneous expenses  36,927,023  69,302,943 

 369,292,411  490,387,478 
 * Includes Nil (previous period `. 300,000) paid to MZSK & Associates, the erstwhile auditors 
 # Includes Nil (previous period `.12,500) paid to MZSK & Associates, the erstwhile auditors 
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22. Exceptional items in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Gain on sale of assets on slump sale 
(Refer Note 36)

 -  (1,972,058,739)

Provision for doubtful loans and advances to a subsidiary (net) (Refer Note 27)  -  1,353,249,789 

Provision for diminution in the value of investment in a subsidiary (Refer Note 13b)  -  514,636,483 

Loss on sale of subsidiary (Refer Note 13b)  106,971,970  - 

 (Net of provision of ` 514,636,483 
previous period: ` Nil) 

Provision for doubtful debts / advances (net)  50,060,476  87,021,380 

Loans and Advances Writt en Off  -  - 

(Net of provision for doubtful loans and advances of `1,399,495,838, previous period: ` Nil)   

 157,032,446  (17,151,087)

23. Earnings per share (EPS) in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Net (Loss) / Profi t atributable to equity shareholders  (281,101,952)  638,226,465 
Exceptional items (net of tax)  (140,016,890)  (13,556,047)
Net Profi t before exceptional items but aft er tax  (141,085,062)  624,670,418 

Number Number

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS 211,839,986 185,417,436
Earnings per share (before exceptional items)

Basic EPS  (0.67)  3.37 
Diluted EPS  (0.67)  3.37 
Earnings per share (aft er exceptional items)

Basic EPS  (1.33)  3.44 
Diluted EPS  (1.33)  3.44 
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24. The disclosures as required under Accounting Standard 15 “Employee Benefi ts” are as follows:

 a. Defi ned benefi t plan: 

  The Company has a defi ned benefi t gratuity plan (unfunded). This plan provides a lump sum payment to employees on retirement or termination 
of employment, an amount based on respective employee’s last drawn salary and tenure of employment with the Company.

  I. Reconciliation of asset/ liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

in `

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

Defi ned benefi t obligation  14,204,898  8,206,382 

Fair value of plan assets.  -  - 

Liability recognized  14,204,898  8,206,382 

  II. Expense recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss
in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Current service cost  1,939,888  5,265,745 

Interest cost  735,292  987,505 

Actuarial (gain)  (3,543,600)  (7,921,919)

Net expense  (868,420)  (1,668,669)

  III. Changes in the present value of the defi ned benefi t obligation are as follows:
in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Opening defi ned benefi t obligation  8,206,382  9,875,051 

Interest cost  735,292  987,505 

Current service cost  1,939,888  5,265,745 

Liability transferred on Acquisition (Refer Note 28)  6,866,936  - 

Actuarial (gain)  (3,543,600)  (7,921,919)

Closing defi ned benefi t obligation  14,204,898  8,206,382 

  Principal actuarial assumptions:

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

Discount rate 8.30% 8.96%

Rate of excalation in salary (Per Annum) 5.00% 5.00%

Employee turnover 2.00% 2.00%

Mortality Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2006-08) Ultimate
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  Major drivers in actuarial assumptions typically are years of service and employee compensation. The estimates of rate of escalation in salary, 
considered in actuarial valuation, take into account infl ation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, including supply and demand in the 
employment market. The above information is as certifi ed by the actuary. 

 b. Defi ned contribution plan: 

  The Company contributed ` 2,965,436 (Previous period: ` 5,200,609) to provident fund during the year and recognized the contribution as an 
expense, which is included in note 19 as contribution to provident fund and other funds.

25. Leases

 The Company has taken premises on non-cancellable operating lease basis. The tenure of leases ranges from 36 to 180 months with non-cancellable 
periods ranging from 12 to 60 months. Future lease rentals in respect of the premises taken on non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

in `

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30,  2014

Lease Payments due within one year  450,057  1,634,029 

Lease Payments due later than one but not later than fi ve years  842,428  - 

Lease Payments due later than fi ve years  -  - 

 1,292,485  1,634,029 

 Amount of lease rental charged to the Statement of Profi t and Loss in respect of non-cancellable operating leases is ` 1,736,056 (Previous period: ` 
10,834,829).

 The Company has taken certain premises on cancellable operating lease basis. The tenure of the lease ranges from 11 to 180 months. Amount of lease 
rental charged to the Statement of Profi t and Loss in respect of cancellable operating leases is ` 90,358,148 (Previous period: ` 65,960,287).

 The Company has sublet certain premises on cancellable operating lease basis with a lock in period of one year. The tenure of the lease is of 60 months. 
An amount of ` 80,773,094 (Previous period: ` 2,906,798) has been recognized as other operating income in respect of the sublease (Refer Note 27).

26. Segment information
 Business is the primary segment for the Company being post production activities. Since, the Company’s entire operations are governed by the same 

set of risks and returns, these have been considered as representing a single segment.
 Segment information for secondary segment reporting (by geographical segment based on location of customers) in `

Revenue from operations (net) Segment Assets Capital Expenditure
Year ended 

June 30, 2015
Period ended 
June 30, 2014

As at 
June 30, 2015

As at 
June 30, 2014

Year ended 
June 30, 2015

Period ended 
June 30, 2014

India 1,000,417,313 847,923,807  3,470,539,428 4,348,557,021  1,200,461,002  326,642,179 
United Kingdom 129,940,850 625,218,139  33,764,890  352,550,474  -  - 
British Virgin Island  - 393,834,578  -  171,293,405  -  - 
U.S.A 120,399 11,180,349  177,584  1,523,695  -  - 
Canada 20,502 848,808,449  -  478,900,456  -  - 
Other Countries 4,436,657 8,513,546  11,520,450  8,373,636  -  - 

 1,134,935,721 2,735,478,868  3,516,002,352  5,361,198,687  1,200,461,002  326,642,179 
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27. Related party disclosures

 a. List of Parties where control exists, irrespective of transactions:

  i) Subsidiary companies

   Prime Focus London Plc, UK (till March 31, 2015) (Refer Note 13(b))

   Prime Focus International Limited. 

   Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited 

   Prime Focus Visual Eff ects Private Limited

   GVS Soft ware Private Limited 

   Prime Focus Motion Pictures Limited 

   PF World Limited

   PF Investments Limited 

   Prime Focus 3D India Private Limited 

   Gener8 India Media Services Limited. (w.e.f. April 07, 2015) (formerly known as Prime Focus Entertainment Services Limited / Reliance 

   MediaWorks Entertainment Services Limited)

   Reliance MediaWorks (Mauritius) Limited (w.e.f. April 07, 2015)

   PF Overseas Limited (w.e.f. July 26, 2013)

  ii) Step-down subsidiary companies

   Subsidiary companies of PF World Limited

   Prime Focus Luxembourg S.a.r.l 

   Gener8 Digital Media Services Limited (w.e.f. December 24, 2014)

   Prime Focus 3D Cooperatief U.A. (Subsidiary of Prime Focus Luxembourg S.a.r.l) 

   Prime Focus World N.V. (Subsidiary of Prime Focus 3D Cooperatief U.A.) 

   Prime Focus International Services UK Limited (Subsidiary of Prime Focus World N.V.) 

   Prime Focus North America Inc. (Subsidiary of Prime Focus World N.V.) 

   1800 Vine Street LLC (Subsidiary of Prime Focus North America, Inc.) 

   Prime Focus Creative Services Canada Inc. (Subsidiary of Prime Focus World N.V.) 

   Prime Focus VFX Australia Pty Limited (Subsidiary of Prime Focus World N.V.) (Liquidated in FY 2014)

   Vegas II VFX Limited (w.e.f. May 30, 2013) (Subsidiary of Prime Focus Creative Services Canada Inc.)

   Prime Focus VFX USA, Inc. (Subsidiary of Prime Focus World N.V.)

   Prime Focus ME Holdings Limited (Subsidiary of Prime Focus World N.V.)

   Prime Focus China Limited (Subsidiary of Prime Focus World N.V.)

   Prime Focus (HK) Holdings Limited. (Subsidiary of Prime Focus China Limited)

   Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited (Subsidiary of Prime Focus World N.V.)

   Double Negative Holdings Limited (w.e.f. July 01, 2014) (Subsidiary of Prime Focus World N.V.)

   Double Negative Limited (w.e.f. July 01, 2014) (Subsidiary of Double Negative Holdings UK)

   Double Negative Singapore Pte Limited (w.e.f. July 01, 2014) (Subsidiary of Double Negative Holdings UK)

   Double Negative Canada Productions Limited (w.e.f. July 01, 2014) (Subsidiary of Double Negative Holdings UK)
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   Double Negative Films Limited (w.e.f. July 01, 2014) (Subsidiary of Double Negative Holdings UK)

   Subsidiary companies of Prime Focus London Plc, UK (till March 31, 2015)

   VTR Media Services Limited (formerly known as Prime Focus Visual Entertainment Services Limited) (Under Liquidation)

   VTR Media Investments Limited 

   PF Broadcast & Commercial Limited (Under Administration)

   Busy Buses Limited 

   Prime Focus Broadcast Limited (Liquidated in FY 2014)

   Clipstream Limited

   VTR Post Limited (formerly known as Prime Focus Post Limited/ Amazing Spectacles Limited) (Subsidiary of VTR Media Investments 
Limited) 

   Prime Post (Europe) Limited (formerly known as Prime Focus (MW) Limited) (Subsidiary of VTR Media Investments Limited till October 14, 
2014, Subsidiary of Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited w.e.f. October 15, 2014) 

   VTR Media Investments 2 Limited (formerly known as Prime Focus Productions 1 Limited) (Subsidiary of VTR Media Investments Limited) 

   Prime VFX Limited (formerly known as PF Television VFX Limited) (Subsidiary of VTR Media Investments Limited) 

   DMJM Film Limited (Subsidiary of VTR Media Investments Limited) (Liquidated in FY 2013)

   PF Broadcast VFX Limited (Under Administration) (Subsidiary of VTR Media Investments Limited)

   Prime Focus Productions 5 Limited (Dissolved on July 28, 2015) (Subsidiary of VTR Media Investments Limited) 

   PF Film UK Limited (Under Administration) (Subsidiary of VTR Media Investments Limited) 

   Subsidiary companies of Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited

   Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited

   Prime Focus Technologies, Inc.

   Prime Post Europe Ltd (Subsidiary of Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited w.e.f. October 15, 2014)

   DAX PFT LLC (Subsidiary of Prime Focus Technologies, Inc.)

   DAX Cloud ULC (Subsidiary of DAX PFT LLC)

   Subsidiary companies of Reliance Media Works (Mauritius) Limited (w.e.f. April 07, 2015)

   Reliance Lowry Digital Imaging Services Inc. 

 b. List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year / period

  i. Subsidiary companies

   Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited

   Prime Focus London Plc, UK

   Prime Focus Visual Eff ects Private Limited

   GVS Soft ware Private Limited

   Prime Focus 3D India Private Limited

   Prime Focus Motion Pictures Limited

   Prime Focus International Limited

   PF World Limited

   Gener8 India Media Services Limited

   Reliance MediaWorks (Mauritius) Limited
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  ii. Step down subsidiary companies

   Prime Focus North America, Inc

   Prime Focus Creative Services Canada Inc

   Prime Focus International Services UK Limited

   Prime Focus ME Holdings Limited

   Prime Focus World N.V.

   Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited

   Prime Focus Technologies, Inc

  iii. Key management personnel

   Mr. Namit Malhotra – CEO, Chairman and Executive Director (w.e.f June 25, 2014)

   Mr. Naresh Malhotra – Whole-time Director (Chairman till June 24, 2014)

   Mr. Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan – Managing Director (w.e.f June 25, 2014), CEO (till June 24, 2014)

   Mr. Vikas Rathee – CFO (w.e.f August 01, 2014)

   Mr. Nishant Fadia – CFO (till July 31, 2014)

   Ms. Kirti Desai – Company Secretary (resigned w.e.f. July 07, 2015)

  iv. Enterprises owned or signifi cantly infl uenced by Key Management Personnel or their relatives

   Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited

   N2M Reality Private Limited

   Monsoon Studio Private Limited

  v. Enterprises exercising signifi cant infl uence over the Company

   Reliance MediaWorks Limited (w.e.f. April 07, 2015)

   Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) III Limited

   Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) Limited

   Standard Chartered Bank

 c. Particulars of related party transaction

  (i) Subsidiary companies #

 in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Revenue 

Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  411,250  2,000,000 

Prime Focus London Plc, UK  149,262  - 

Prime Focus International Limited  116,637,704  - 

Other operating income

Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  5,076,874  3,626,827 

Technical service cost

Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited (nett ed off  from revenue in previous period)  81,501  34,818,733 
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 in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by:
Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  1,128,347  6,095,950 
Prime Focus International Limited  325,729  - 
Prime Focus London Plc, UK  163,575  - 
GVS Soft ware Private Limited  -  305 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of:
Prime Focus London Plc, UK  -  3,053,471 
Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  20,227,340  32,507,393 
PF World Limited, Mauritius  280,040,295  - 
Prime Focus Visual Eff ects Private Limited  2,631  - 
Prime Focus 3D India Private Limited  3,133  5,886 
Prime Focus Motion Pictures Limited  3,133  1,632 
GVS Soft ware Private Limited  2,631  - 
Investments
GVS Soft ware Private Limited 
(Refer Note below cash fl ow statement)

 265,000,000  - 

PF World Limited, Mauritius  6,137,268,791  - 
Prime Focus International Limited  -  391,828,500 
PF Overseas Limited  -  5,937 
Loan to subsidiary (on acquisition) (Refer note 28)
Gener8 India Media Services Limited  2,047,700,000  - 
Reliance Media Works (Mauritius) Limited  1,008,000,000  - 
Loans given 
Gener8 India Media Services Limited  34,087,793  - 
Prime Focus International Limited  706,491,075  - 
Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  345,650,000  874,202,742 
Loans repaid (including interest, where applicable)
Gener8 India Media Services Limited  1,057,303,929  - 
Prime Focus International Limited  194,083,659  - 
Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  352,602,747  890,158,190 
Interest on loans
Prime Focus London Plc, UK  -  93,286,355 
Gener8 India Media Services Limited  3,039,285  - 
Prime Focus International Limited  30,661,295  -   
Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  421,757  22,486,438 
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 in `

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

Balance outstanding ##

Trade receivables

Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  -  5,949,241 

Trade payables

Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  -  6,781,968 

Other payables

Prime Focus 3D India Private Limited  500,000  500,000 

Prime Focus International Limited  325,729  - 

Advances receivable

Prime Focus London Plc, UK  -  14,418,100 

Prime Focus Visual Eff ects Private Limited  23,731  7,864 

GVS Soft ware Private Limited  2,936  305 

Prime Focus Motion Pictures Limited  589,512  586,379 

Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  26,446,966  15,408,994 

Prime Focus 3D India Private Limited  9,019  5,886 

PF World Limited, Mauritius  285,637,246  - 

Loans receivable (including interest, where applicable)

Prime Focus London Plc, UK  -  1,338,831,689 

Prime Focus International Limited  551,782,517  - 

Gener8 India Media Services Limited  1,027,523,149  - 

Reliance Media Works (Mauritius) Limited  1,033,983,567  - 

Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  -  6,530,990 

  (ii) Step-down Subsidiaries #

 in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Revenue from operations
Prime Focus North America, Inc  -  11,180,349 
Prime Focus Creative Services Canada Inc  -  848,808,449 
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited  -  602,390,924 
Prime Focus ME Holdings Limited  -  393,834,578 
Other operating income - SFIS
Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  3,518  1,157,608 
Other operating income - Rent
Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  80,773,094  2,906,798 
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 in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Sale of backend business (Refer Note 36)
Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  -  2,297,049,000 
Sale of Investments
Prime Focus World N.V.  -  100,000 
Technical service cost
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited  -  202,346 
Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  34,526,590  - 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by:
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited  -  943,784 
Prime Focus North America, Inc  -  2,555,763 
Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  10,756,079  - 
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of:
Prime Focus North America, Inc  -  3,605,577 
Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  20,307,687  - 
Prime Focus Technologies Inc  7,423,817  - 
Prime Focus World N.V.  -  831,062 
Loans given 
Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  1,613,718,594  26,934,235 
Loans repaid (including interest)
Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  1,517,394,102  18,406,322 
Interest on loans
Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  20,372,021  1,283,067 
Security deposit received
Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  39,264,792  3,970,260 
Security deposit repaid
Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  3,970,260  - 

 in ` 

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

Balance outstanding

Trade receivables

PF Broadcast & Commercial Limited **  -  673,629 

Prime Focus Creative Services Canada Inc  -  478,900,456 

Prime Focus International Services UK Limited  -  327,551,297 

Prime Focus ME Holdings Limited  -  171,293,405 
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 in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Trade payables

Prime Focus North America, Inc  -  71,498,149 

Prime Focus Creative Services Canada Inc  -  26,068,126 

PF Broadcast & Commercial Limited **  -  61,239 

Prime Focus International Services UK Limited  -  8,605,267 

VTR Media Services Limited **  -  91,859 

Other receivable

Prime Focus International Services UK Limited  -  1,101,690 

Prime Focus North America, Inc  -  3,625,864 

Prime Focus Creative Services Canada Inc  -  25,333,430 

Prime Focus Technologies Inc.  7,559,472  - 

Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited 46,048,753 -

Prime Focus World N.V.  -  832,055 

Loans receivable

Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited 126,507,493  9,810,980 

BTA Consideration receivable (Refer Note 36)

Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  -  1,675,800,000 

Security deposit payable

Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  39,264,792  3,970,260 

  (iii) Key Management Personnel*
 in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Remuneration 
Mr.Naresh Malhotra  6,000,000  7,500,000 
Mr.Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan  5,000,004  7,068,333 
Mr.Namit Malhotra  5,000,004  83,333 
Mr. Vikas Rathee  13,750,000  - 

Mr. Nishant Fadia 1,000,000 6,000,000
Ms. Kirti Desai 1,565,112 -
Recovery of excess remuneration paid
Mr.Naresh Malhotra  -  3,600,000 
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 in ` 
 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

Balance Outstanding – Remuneration Payable 
Mr.Naresh Malhotra  500,000  371,790 
Mr.Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan  416,667  449,559 
Mr. Namit Malhotra  416,667  83,333 
Mr. Vikas Rathee  1,250,000  - 
Mr. Nishant Fadia - 4,000,000
Ms. Kirti Desai 130,426 -

  (vi) Enterprises owned or signifi cantly infl uenced by key management personnel or their relatives
 in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Rent expense
Blooming Bud Coaching Private Limited  33,600,000  39,300,000 
Deposit given
Blooming Bud Coaching Private Limited  -  5,000,000 
Capital advance repaid
N2M Realty Private Limited  65,000,000  - 
Capital advance transferred to subsidiary
N2M Realty Private Limited
(Refer Note below cash fl ow statement)

 265,000,000  - 

Shares issued on preferential basis (including share premium)
Monsoon Studio Private Limited  1,199,999,996  - 

 in ` 
 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

Balance outstanding
Rent paid in advance
Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited  -  3,327,540 
Deposit
Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited  53,000,000  53,000,000 
Capital advance
N2M Realty Private Limited  -  330,000,000 
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  (v) Enterprises exercising signifi cant infl uence over the Company
 in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Issue of equity shares (including share premium)
Reliance MediaWorks Private Limited  4,699,999,980  - 
Loan (repayments) / taken, net
Standard Chartered Bank  (470,549,031)  (225,804,703)
Finance costs
Standard Chartered Bank  29,303,040  133,742,944 
Premium on NCD
Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) Limited  316,158,001  343,176,024 
Interest income
Standard Chartered Bank  -  22,295 

 in ` 

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

Balance outstanding

Loan outstanding

Standard Chartered Bank  151,718,825  622,267,856 

Bank Balance in current account

Standard Chartered Bank  4,954  4,954 

Non-convertible debentures

Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) Limited  1,901,000,000  1,901,000,000 

Premium on NCD accrued

Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) Limited  761,781,859  445,623,858 

   # The Company has given guarantees on behalf of subsidiaries and step-down subsidiaries as described below 

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

Prime Focus London Plc, UK  ` -  ` 485,359,697 

 £ -  £ 4,755,398 

Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited  ` 2,463,700,000  ` 1,609,500,000 

Prime Focus North America, Inc  ` 342,106,767  ` 322,057,239 

 $ 5,372,904  $ 5,372,904 

PF World Limited, Mauritius  ` 2,842,981,590  ` 2,676,365,650 

 $ 44,650,000  $ 44,650,000 

Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited  ` 430,000,000  ` - 

   * Key management personnel have given personal guarantee and have pledged part of their shareholdings for borrowings obtained by the 
Company. (Refer Notes 5 and 9).



PRIME FOCUS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

138

   ** The balance outstanding as at June 30, 2015 have not been disclosed, since as at the year-end these companies were not related parties 
(Refer Note 13(b))

   ## There are no provisions for doubtful debts / amounts writt en off  / writt en back in respect of dues from / to related parties except in 
respect of the following:

   a. Provision for doubtful loans and advances of ` Nil (previous period: ` 1,353,249,789) (net) has been made in respect of for Prime Focus 
London Plc, UK. Of the total provision ` 1,353,249,789 (previous period: ` Nil) has been writt en off  during the year.

   b. Provision for diminution in the value of investments of ` Nil (previous period: ` 514,636,483) has been made in respect of investments 
made in Prime Focus London Plc, UK (Refer Note 13b).

28. On April 07, 2015, 23,076,923 and 90,384,615 equity shares were allott ed to Monsoon Studio Private Limited and Reliance MediaWorks Limited 
(“RMW”), respectively, on a preferential basis at Rs 52 per share. Of these 67,307,692 equity shares were issued to Reliance Media Works Limited as 
consideration other than cash towards the transfer of its fi lm and media services business to the Company in accordance with the Business Transfer 
Agreement dated November 19, 2014 between the Company, RMW and Reliance Land Private Limited. In accordance with the said Agreement, the 
transfer of BOT Agreement pertaining to the Studio including other business assets and liabilities related to the BOT Agreement (“Studios”) and debt 
facilities of `. 2,000,000,000 crore was to be eff ected post receipt of the necessary additional approvals. Upon receipt of the necessary statutory 
approvals, with eff ect from the closing date of April 07, 2015, net assets of fi lm and media services business were transferred to and recorded by the 
Company at the fair value of `. 4,017,690,352 as determined by the independent valuers. However, pending receipt of the additional approvals, the 
Studios’ and the debt facilities have not been transferred to and recorded by the Company. Presently, the Company has recorded a capital reserve 
of `. 517,690,352 being the diff erence between consideration for the transaction being `. 3,500,000,000 and fair value of the net assets transferred 
as detailed below. Post receipt of additional approvals, the Studios’ and the debt facilities will be recorded at fair value with the diff erential being 
adjusted against the capital reserve.

In `

Tangible Assets 1,017,268,879

Investments  in Subsidiaries (Refer Note 13) -

Lone of Subsidiaries 3,055,700,000

Net Current Assets (55,278,527)

Net assets acquired on slump sale basis 4,017,690,352

29. Capital and other commitments

in `

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

i Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 
for:

 27,335,411  5,466,453 

30. Contingent liabilities in respect of

in `

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

i Income Tax matt ers under dispute*
Relates to demands raised by the income tax authorities for various assessment years mainly 
on account of disallowances of depreciation on computer based assets, additions under the 
Transfer Pricing provisions and Tax deducted at source (TDS) amounts

 69,410,252  73,808,523 

* In the above matt er, the Company is hopeful of succeeding and as 

such does not expect any signifi cant liability to crystalize.

ii Guarantees given on behalf of subsidiary and step-down subsidiary companies  6,078,788,357  5,093,282,586 
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31. Unhedged foreign currency exposure

in `

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014 

Buyer’s Credit (Liability) ` 161,992,288 ` 208,843,116

$1,868,325 $3,313,749

€ 609,152 € 124,875

Trade Receivables (Assets) ` 42,119,406 ` 1,010,010,357

$140,124 $2,987,481

 - CAD 8,525,471

£325,146 £3,444,367

AED 29,791 AED 29,908

€ 2,000  - 

Loans and Advances (Assets) ` 1,901,598,546 ` 1,385,866,084

$20,884,976 $22,511,488

 - CAD 450,990

€ 1,757  - 

£5,713,393 £150,983

Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities ` 111,681,092 ` 219,712,574

 - CAD 153,402

€ 294,529 € 397,184

£12,815 £92,072

$1,407,085 $2,822,981

32. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defi ned under the MSMED Act, 2006
 The Company does not have suppliers who are registered as micro, small or medium enterprise under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 as at June 30, 2015. The information regarding micro, small and medium enterprises has been determined on the basis of 
information available with the management.

33. Value of imports calculated on CIF basis

in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Capital Goods  130,682,608 228,799,350
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34. Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)     

in `

 Year ended 
 June 30, 2015 

 Period ended 
 June 30, 2014 

Bank charges  87,236  155,676 

Interest on buyer's credit  1,966,025  7,034,817 

Legal and professional fees  25,622  1,021,245 

Repairs and maintenance  3,619,082  9,507,700 

Consumable stores  52,590  228,435 

Technical service cost  -  202,336 

Travelling and conveyance  -  208,989 

Freight and clearing  17,322  14,691 

Sales and promotion  -  11,801 

Membership & Subscription Charges  64,571  - 

35. Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)

in `

 Year ended 
 June 30, 2015 

 Period ended 
 June 30, 2014 

Revenue from operations  136,068,604  1,887,182,794 

Interest Income  30,661,295  93,286,304 

36. Eff ective June 30, 2014, the Company sold its ‘Backend Business’, which includes (a) business of providing the services of conversion of 2D audio visual/
moving images to stereo 3D audio visual/moving images provided by the Company to Prime Focus World N.V., a company incorporated and operating 
under the laws of Netherlands (“PFW”) (‘Conversion Business’); and (b) the business of providing the services of computer generated fi lm visual special 
eff ects by the Company to PFW (“VFX Business”), to Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited.’, a company incorporated in India and an 
indirect controlled subsidiary of the Company on a going concern basis by way of slump sale for a total consideration of ` 2,297,049,000. The gain 
recognized on the backend slump sale of `. 1,972,058,739 was recorded as exceptional item in previous period (Refer Note 22). Consequently, the 
fi gures for the current year exclude the ‘backend business’ and hence are not comparable with the fi gures of the previous period.

37. Pursuant to the enactment of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), eff ective 1st April, 2014, the Company has revised the estimated useful lives of its 
fi xed assets to ensure compliance with the stipulations of Schedule II to the Act. Accordingly, the unamortized depreciable amounts of the fi xed assets 
as at 1st July, 2014 have been charged over the revised remaining useful lives. This has the impact of decreasing depreciation charge for the year ended 
June 30, 2015 by ` 24,700,563. Further, in accordance with the stipulations of the said Schedule, writt en down values of fi xed assets, whose lives had 
expired as at 1st July, 2014 aggregating ` 10,260,080 (net of tax) have been adjusted against retained earnings.

38. The Board of Directors of the Company vide circular resolution passed on March 24, 2014 inter-alia, considered and approved the extension of the 
previous fi nancial year i.e. (April 01, 2013 to March 31, 2014) of the Company by a period of three (3) months in accordance with the provisions of Section 
210 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the Previous Year’s fi nancial year of the Company was for a period of fi ft een (15) months i.e. commencing 
from April 01, 2013 and ending on June 30, 2014 and therefore the fi nancial results of the last fi nancial period are not comparable with fi nancial results 
of the current year which are for twelve (12) months.
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39. Previous period’s fi gures have been regrouped where necessary to confi rm to current year’s classifi cation. 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Ramakrishnan  Sankaranarayanan
 Whole-time Director Chairman (Executive Director) Managing Director
 DIN: 00004597 and Chief Executive Offi  cer DIN: 02696897
  DIN: 00004049

Place : Mumbai Vikas Rathee Parina Shah
Date   :  September 16, 2015 Chief Financial Offi  cer Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PRIME FOCUS LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated fi nancial statements of PRIME FOCUS LIMITED (hereinaft er referred to as “the Holding Company”) and 
its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30th 

June, 2015, the Consolidated Statement of Profi t and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the signifi cant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinaft er referred to as “the consolidated fi nancial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated fi nancial statements in terms of the requirements 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinaft er referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated fi nancial position, consolidated 
fi nancial performance and consolidated cash fl ows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specifi ed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors 
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal fi nancial controls, that were operating eff ectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which 
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated fi nancial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated fi nancial statements based on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken 
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matt ers which are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specifi ed under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated fi nancial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated fi nancial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated fi nancial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal fi nancial control relevant to the Holding 
Company’s preparation of the consolidated fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company has an adequate internal fi nancial controls system 
over fi nancial reporting in place and the operating eff ectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph (1) 
of the Basis for Qualifi ed Opinion paragraph and the Other Matt ers paragraph below, is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualifi ed audit 
opinion on the consolidated fi nancial statements.
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Basis for Qualifi ed Opinion

1. The fi nancial statements / the consolidated fi nancial statements of certain subsidiaries whose fi nancial statements / consolidated fi nancial statements 
for the year ended 31st March, 2015 have been audited by us / other auditors refl ect total assets of ̀  2,893.31 crore as at 31st March, 2015, total revenues 
of ` 953.34 crore and net cash outfl ow amounting to ` 0.52 crore for the year ended on that date The fi nancial information of the said subsidiaries for 
the year ended 30th June, 2015, as considered in the consolidated fi nancial statements, has been derived by making appropriate adjustments, based 
on the management accounts approved by the board of directors of the Holding Company, to the fi nancial information as per the aforementioned 
audited fi nancial statements/consolidated fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2015. The fi nancial information so derived of the said 
subsidiaries refl ect total assets (net) of ` 73.63 crore as at 30th June, 2015, total revenues of ` 372.18 crore and net cash infl ows amounting to ` 19.98 
crore for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated fi nancial statements. Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included 
in respect of these subsidiaries, is based solely on our reports and that of the other auditors and the aforementioned management accounts.

2. The consolidated fi nancial statements include unaudited standalone fi nancial information in respect of certain subsidiaries which refl ect total assets 
of ` 45.70 crore as at 30th June, 2015, total revenue of ` Nil, cash infl ows amounting to ` 2.69 crore for the year then ended. These unaudited fi nancial 
information as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company have been furnished to us by the Management and our report in so far as it relates 
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiaries is based solely on such approved unaudited standalone fi nancial information.

Qualifi ed Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible eff ects of the matt er described in 
the Basis for Qualifi ed Opinion paragraph above, the aforesaid consolidated fi nancial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of aff airs of the 
Group, as at 30th June, 2015, and their consolidated loss and their consolidated cash fl ows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matt ers

We did not audit the fi nancial statements / consolidated fi nancial statements of 5 subsidiaries, whose fi nancial statements / consolidated fi nancial 
statements refl ect total assets of ` 615.13 crore as at 30th June, 2015, total revenues of ` 104.64 crore and net cash outfl ows amounting to ` 2.32 crore for 
the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated fi nancial statements. These fi nancial statements / consolidated fi nancial statements have 
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated fi nancial statements, in so 
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 
of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated fi nancial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modifi ed in respect of the 
above matt ers with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
Section 143 of the Act, based on the comments in the auditors’ reports of the Holding company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India, we give 
in the Annexure a statement on the matt ers specifi ed in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and, except for the possible eff ect of the matt ers described in the Basis for Qualifi ed Opinion paragraph above, obtained all 
the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated fi nancial statements.
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b. In our opinion, except for the possible eff ect of the matt ers described in the Basis for Qualifi ed Opinion paragraph above, proper books of 
account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated fi nancial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profi t and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated fi nancial statements.

d. In our opinion, except for the possible eff ect of the matt ers described in the Basis for Qualifi ed Opinion paragraph above, the aforesaid consolidated 
fi nancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specifi ed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

e. The matt ers described in the Basis for Qualifi ed Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse eff ect on the functioning of the 
Group.

f. On the basis of the writt en representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 30th June, 2015 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the other statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, 
none of the directors of the Group’s companies, is disqualifi ed as on 30th June, 2015 / 31st March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

g. With respect to the other matt ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. Except for the possible eff ect of the matt er described in the Basis of Qualifi ed Opinion above, the consolidated fi nancial statements 
disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated fi nancial position of the Group – Refer Note 30 (i) to the consolidated fi nancial 
statements.

ii. Except for the possible eff ect of the matt er described in the Basis of Qualifi ed Opinion above, provision has been made in the consolidated 
fi nancial statements, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts – Refer (a) Note 8 to the consolidated fi nancial statements in respect of such items as it relates to 
the Group 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding 
Company, and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 117364W)

 Abhijit A. Damle
(Partner)

Membership No. 102912

Mumbai, dated: September 16, 2015
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report of even date)

Our reporting on the CARO 2015 includes 5 subsidiary companies incorporated in India, to which CARO 2015 is applicable, which have been audited by other 
auditors and our report in respect of these entities is based solely on the reports of the other auditors, to the extent considered applicable for reporting 
under CARO 2015 in the case of the consolidated fi nancial statements.

In respect of 7 subsidiary companies incorporated in India, which have been audited by us / other auditors, in our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, reporting under the Order is applicable in respect of these entities. However, the fi nancial year end of the aforesaid components 
under the Act is not the same as that of the Holding Company and, consequently, reporting under CARO in respect of the aforesaid entities are as at their 
respective fi nancial year end under the Act. Accordingly, our reporting under the Order in the case of the consolidated fi nancial statements in respect of the 
aforesaid entities is based on the last audit report of each such component issued under the Act. 

i. In respect of the fi xed assets of the Holding Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India:

a) The respective entities have maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fi xed assets.

b) In respect of the Holding Company and 1 subsidiary company incorporated in India, the fi xed assets have not been physically verifi ed by the 
management during the year. In the absence thereof, we are unable to comment on the discrepancies, if any. In respect of other subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India, the fi xed assets were physically verifi ed during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular 
programme of verifi cation which, provides for physical verifi cation of all the fi xed assets at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verifi cation, except in respect of the 1 subsidiary company incorporated in India, where the process of reconciling the fi xed 
assets physically verifi ed with the books of account is currently in progress and hence discrepancies if any as at 31st March 2015, have not been 
ascertained.

ii. In respect of the inventories of the Holding Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India:

a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verifi ed during the year by the Management of 1 subsidiary company at reasonable intervals.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verifi cation of inventories followed by the 
Management were reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the 1 subsidiary company and the nature of its business.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 1 subsidiary company has maintained proper records of its inventories 
and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verifi cation.

d) In respect of another subsidiary company, the nature whose business is digital media services, given the specifi c nature of business involving 
digital media services, physical verifi cation would at most, involve verifi cation of tapes containing details of such services. In view of above, in 
respect of the subsidiary company is maintaining quantitative records of such tapes and no physical verifi cation is considered necessary by the 
Management.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Holding Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India have granted loans, 
to the extent included in the consolidated fi nancial statements, secured or unsecured, to companies, fi rms or other parties covered in the Register 
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of such loans: 

(a) The receipts of principal amounts and interest have been as per stipulations.

(b) There is no overdue amount in excess of ` 1 lakh remaining outstanding as at the year-end.
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iv. In our opinion and opinion of the other auditors and according to the information and explanations given to us and the other auditors, having regard 
to the explanations that some of the items purchased are of special nature and suitable alternative sources are not readily available for obtaining 
comparable quotations, the Holding Company and 2 subsidiary companies, need to strengthen the internal control system to make it commensurate 
with the size of the respective entities and the nature of their business for the purchases of inventory and / or fi xed assets and / or sale of services. 
During the course of our audit and the other auditor’s audit, no major weakness in such internal control system has been observed.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us and the other auditors, the Holding Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India 
have not accepted any deposit during the year, and accordingly, the provisions of the clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable. 

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us and the other auditors, in our opinion and the opinion of the other auditors, the Companies 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, specifi ed by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Holding Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India except in respect of 1 subsidiary company where the auditor of that subsidiary 
company has stated that the subsidiary company has, prima facie, made and maintained the prescribed cost records pursuant to the Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
However the other auditor has not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the other auditors, in respect of statutory dues of the Holding Company and subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India: 

a) The respective entities have generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to the respective entities with the appropriate authorities, except in case of Holding Company and 1 subsidiary company, for payment 
of Service Tax and / or Tax Deducted at Source, where signifi cant delays have been noted.

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable by the respective entities in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 
2015 / 30th June, 2015 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

c) There are no cases of non- deposit with the appropriate authorities of disputed dues of Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax and 
Customs Duty. Details of dues of Income Tax and Cess which have not been deposited as on 31st March 2015 / 30th June 2015 on account of disputes 
are given below:

Statute Nature of Dues Amount involved (`) Period to which the amount relates Forum where dispute is pending
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 68,756,958

 
653,294

Assessment year
2007-2008, 2009-2010 and 2010-2011
Assessment year 2008-2009

Commissioner of Income Tax 
(Appeals)
Income Tax Appellate Tribunal

B.P.M.C. (Cess on Entry 
of Goods) Rules, 1996

Cess Tax 53,688,655 2008-09 and 2009-10 Dy. Comm. NMMC, Cess Dept.

Total 123,098,907

d) There are no amounts that are due to be transferred by the respective entities to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

viii. The Group does not have consolidated accumulated losses at the end of the fi nancial year and the Group, has incurred cash losses on a consolidated 
basis during the current fi nancial year but had not incurred any cash loss in the immediately preceding fi nancial period.

ix. In our opinion and opinion of the other auditors, and according to the information and explanations given to us and the other auditors, the Holding 
Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India have not defaulted in the repayment of dues to fi nancial institutions, banks and debenture 
holders.
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x. In our opinion and opinion of the other auditors, and according to the information and explanations given to us and the other auditors, the Holding 
Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India have not provided guarantees for loans taken by Others outside of the Group from banks and 
/ or fi nancial institutions.

xi. In our opinion and the opinion of the other auditors and according to the information and explanations given to us and the other auditors, the term loans 
have been applied by the Holding Company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India, as applicable, during the year for the purposes for which 
they were obtained.

xii. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us and the other auditors, no fraud by the Holding Company 
and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and no material fraud on the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India 
has been noticed or reported during the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 117364W)

 Abhijit A. Damle
(Partner)

Membership No. 102912

Mumbai, dated: September 16, 2015
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at June 30, 2015  in ` 

Notes  As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014
 Equity and Liabilities 
 Shareholders' funds 
 Share Capital  3  298,878,974  185,417,436 
 Reserves and Surplus  4  10,819,409,832  7,190,046,208 

 11,118,288,806  7,375,463,644 
 Minority Interest  1,540,165,046  1,612,680,239 
 Non-current liabilities 
 Long-term borrowings  5  5,773,797,371  5,701,270,452 
 Deferred tax liability (net) 6  92,577,272  118,699,353 
 Other long-term liabilities  7  3,925,820,114  606,084,494 
 Long-term provisions  8  48,889,645  14,049,946 

 9,841,084,402  6,440,104,245 
 Current liabilities 
 Short-term borrowings  9  2,424,273,371  1,773,625,287 
 Trade payables 
 Total outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprise  37  -  - 
 Total outstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprise  2,504,791,966  1,325,169,869 
 Other current liabilities  10  6,349,727,284  1,710,086,149 
 Short-term provisions  8  101,538,604  471,620,990 

 11,380,331,225  5,280,502,295 
 TOTAL  33,879,869,479  20,708,750,423 
 Assets 
 Non-current assets 
 Fixed assets 
 Tangible assets  11  8,071,170,658  6,321,605,516 
 Intangible assets  12  5,276,377,957  3,330,226,841 
 Capital work-in-progress  3,423,779  40,903,388 
 Intangible assets under development  441,379,416  157,178,849 
 Goodwill on consolidation  8,029,711,933  1,270,616,282 
 Non-current investments  13  857,398,278  103,500 
 Deferred tax assets (net)  6  584,413,947  1,129,343,192 
 Long-term loans and advances  16  1,645,738,987  938,825,484 
 Other non-current assets  18  682,447  682,447 

 24,910,297,402  13,189,485,499 
 Current assets 
 Current investments  14  -  625,148 
 Inventories  5,644,678  315,789 
 Trade receivables  15  3,756,318,782  3,852,654,086 
 Cash and bank balances  17  616,232,865  224,924,109 
 Short-term loans and advances  16  2,646,561,931  1,734,627,340 
 Other current assets  18  1,944,813,821  1,706,118,452 

 8,969,572,077  7,519,264,924 
 TOTAL  33,879,869,479  20,708,750,423 
 Notes forming part of the consolidated fi nancial statements  1-38 

As per our report of even date
For Deloitt e Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants 

Abhijit A. Damle Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Ramakrishnan  Sankaranarayanan
Partner Whole-time Director Chairman (Executive Director) Managing Director
 DIN: 00004597 and Chief Executive Offi  cer DIN: 02696897
  DIN: 00004049

Place : Mumbai Vikas Rathee Parina Shah
Date   :  September 16, 2015 Chief Financial Offi  cer Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended June 30, 2015  in ` 

Notes  For the Year ended 
June 30, 2015

 For the period ended 
June 30, 2014

 Income 
 Revenue from operations - sale of services (net)  15,379,744,586  10,327,215,871 
 Other operating income  696,108,695  486,970,314 
 Other income 19  195,595,168  460,100,989 

 16,271,448,449  11,274,287,174 
 Expenses   
 Employee benefi ts expense 20  9,263,574,080  5,070,165,020 
 Technician fees  277,503,714  816,661,805 
 Finance costs 21  727,254,999  686,759,914 
 Depreciation and amortization expense 11 & 12  2,211,412,998  1,331,978,681 
 Other expenses 22  4,122,507,332  2,945,119,339 

 16,602,253,123  10,850,684,759 
  

 Profi t before exceptional items and tax  (330,804,674)  423,602,415 

 Exceptional Items 23  2,475,479,679  174,064,647 

 (Loss) / Profi t before tax  (2,806,284,353)  249,537,768 
 Tax expense 
 Current tax  (328,210,983)  520,474,308 
 MAT credit entitlement  -  (17,762,686)

 (328,210,983)  502,711,622 
 Deferred tax  653,461,917  (431,918,485)
 Total tax expense  325,250,934  70,793,137 
 (Loss) / Profi t aft er tax  (before adjustment of minority interest)  (3,131,535,287)  178,744,631 
 Minority interest  (209,306,984)  (63,869,247)
 (Loss) / Profi t for the year / period  (2,922,228,303)  242,613,878 
 Earnings per equity share of face value of ` 1 each (before exceptional items) (refer note 24) 
 Basic  (2.19)  2.05 
 Diluted  (2.19)  2.05 
 Earnings per equity share of face value of ` 1 each (aft er exceptional items) (refer note 24) 
 Basic  (13.79)  1.31 
 Diluted  (13.79)  1.31 
 Notes forming part of the consolidated fi nancial statements  1-38 

As per our report of even date
For Deloitt e Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants 

Abhijit A. Damle Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Ramakrishnan  Sankaranarayanan
Partner Whole-time Director Chairman (Executive Director) Managing Director
 DIN: 00004597 and Chief Executive Offi  cer DIN: 02696897
  DIN: 00004049

Place : Mumbai Vikas Rathee Parina Shah
Date   :  September 16, 2015 Chief Financial Offi  cer Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended June 30, 2015

 in ` 
 For the Year ended

 June 30, 2015
 For the period ended 

June 30, 2014
Cash fl ow from Operating activities 
(Loss) / Profi t before tax       (2,806,284,353)         249,537,768 
 Adjusted for:
 Depreciation and amortization expense        2,211,412,998      1,331,978,681 
 Assets writt en off                           -             77,987,782 
 (Profi t) / Loss on sale of fi xed assets (net)             (1,440,418)           60,826,631 
 Loss on sale of investment in subsidiary           453,022,758                        -   
 Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) (net)          (145,361,717)        (100,567,470)
 Loan to Prime Focus London Plc writt en off       1,353,249,789                        -   
 Bad debts writt en off  (net)             37,800,257           38,539,864 
 Provision for doubful debts/ advances, net            (75,470,474)           87,021,379 
 Sundry credit balance writt en back            (31,097,330)           (5,527,359)
 Stock option expense             67,584,889         108,249,496 
 Interest income            (20,545,221)          (26,865,884)
 Dividend income                  (24,000)                (12,000)
 Finance costs           668,473,381         624,123,480 
Operating profi t before working capital changes        1,711,320,559      2,445,292,368 
Movements in working capital
Increase in trade payables        4,349,985,800         687,401,378 
Increase in provisions             64,452,807            1,461,296 
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities           254,873,559        (208,416,723)
Increase in other long term liabilities           894,669,016           55,308,465 
(Increase) in trade receivables       (2,285,986,532)        (975,188,987)
(Increase) in long term loans and advacnes          (640,537,277)          (19,783,299)
(Increase) in short term loans and advances       (1,591,755,239)        (937,512,137)
(increase) / decrease in inventories             (1,620,503)            4,171,242 
(Increase) in other current assets          (341,810,664)        (673,122,233)
Cash generated from operations        2,413,591,526         379,611,370 
Direct taxes (paid) (net)          (286,718,685)        (120,817,300)
Net cash fl ow generated from operating activities (A)        2,126,872,841         258,794,070 
Cash fl ow from investing activities
Purchase of fi xed assets       (3,195,224,953)     (2,262,177,857)
Proceeds from sale of fi xed assets           169,784,123           25,607,917 
Purchase / acquisition of long-term investments / business:

Gener8 Digital Media Corp (Refer Note 35)          (171,478,914)                        -   
Double Negative Holdings Limited (Refer Note 34)       (1,918,698,846)                        -   
Sample Digital Holdings LLC (DAX) (Refer Note 32)                          -          (124,831,071)

Proceeds from sale of subsidiary - Prime Focus London Plc, (net of cash) (Refer note 23)             12,625,080                        -   
Purchase of non-current investments            (34,493,560)                        -   
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended June 30, 2015

 in ` 
 For the Year ended

 June 30, 2015
 For the period ended 

June 30, 2014
Inter-corporate deposits given            (26,000,000)        (159,852,500)
Inter-corporate deposits received back             50,500,000            5,000,000 
Margin money and fi xed deposits under lien          (178,150,882)           84,913,605 
Interest received              6,787,593           16,181,115 
Dividends received                   24,000                 12,000 
Net cash fl ow (used in) investing activities (B)       (5,284,326,359)     (2,415,146,791)
Cash fl ow from fi nancing activities 
Proceeds from long term borrowings (net)           304,098,114      1,787,568,691 
Proceeds / (Repayment) from short term borrowings (net)           494,047,149     (1,472,635,456)
Proceeds from issuance of shares (net of expenses)        2,394,099,992      2,091,186,728 
Finance costs paid          (649,692,138)        (623,314,300)
Net cash fl ow generated from fi nancing activities (C)        2,542,553,117      1,782,805,663 
Eff ect of exchange on cash and cash equivalents (D)              1,858,004           23,797,168 
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+D)          (613,042,397)        (349,749,890)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year / period           141,451,313         491,201,203 
Cash and bank balances on acquisition of subsidiaries during the year           826,200,271                        -   
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / period (Refer note below)           354,609,187         141,451,313 
Note:
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Bank balances
As per Balance Sheet (Refer note 17)           616,232,865         224,924,109 
less: Other bank balances (Refer note 17)           261,623,678           83,472,796 
As per Cash Flow Statement           354,609,187         141,451,313

Note:

67,307,692 equity shares were issued to Reliance MediaWorks Limited (“RMW”) as consideration other than cash towards the transfer of its fi lm and media services business 
to the Company in accordance with the Business Transfer Agreement dated November 19, 2014 between the Company, RMW and Reliance Land Private Limited. (Refer note 33)

As per our report of even date
For Deloitt e Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants 

Abhijit A. Damle Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Ramakrishnan  Sankaranarayanan
Partner Whole-time Director Chairman (Executive Director) Managing Director
 DIN: 00004597 and Chief Executive Offi  cer DIN: 02696897
  DIN: 00004049

Place : Mumbai Vikas Rathee Parina Shah
Date   :  September 16, 2015 Chief Financial Offi  cer Company Secretary
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
1. Corporate information

 Prime Focus Limited (the “Company” or the “Parent Company”) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provision of the 
Companies Act, 1956. The Company, its subsidiaries and an associate (collectively referred to as ‘the Group’) are engaged in the business of post-
production including digital intermediate, visual eff ects, 2D to 3D conversion and providing complete solutions in terms of other technical and creative 
services to the Media and Entertainment Industry.

2. Statement of signifi cant accounting policies:

a. Basis of preparation

 The consolidated fi nancial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian 
GAAP), to comply with the Accounting Standards specifi ed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’).The consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared on an accrual 
basis and under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of consolidated fi nancial statements are consistent 
with those of previous period.

b. Principles of consolidation

 The consolidated fi nancial statements include the fi nancial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as ‘the Group’), 
which are more than 50% owned or controlled and have been prepared, in accordance with the principles of consolidation laid down in Accounting 
Standard 21, Consolidated Financial Statements.

 The consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

i) The fi nancial statement, consolidated fi nancial statements of the subsidiary companies, used in the consolidation have been drawn upto March 31, 
2015. The fi nancial information of the said subsidiaries for the year ended June 30, 2015, as considered in the consolidated fi nancial statements, 
has been derived by making appropriate adjustments, based on the management accounts approved by the board of directors of the Parent 
Company, to the fi nancial information as per the aforementioned audited fi nancial statements/consolidated fi nancial statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2015. 

ii) The fi nancial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by line basis by adding together the book values of like 
items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses aft er eliminating intra-group balances / transactions and resulting profi ts in full. An unrealized 
loss resulting from intra-group transactions has also been eliminated to the extent that recoverable value of related assets is lower than their 
cost to the Group.

iii) The assets and liabilities of non-integral subsidiaries are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing as of the balance sheet 
date. Revenue and expenses are translated into Indian Rupees at an average rate. Any exchange diff erence arising on consolidation is recognised 
in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve.

iv) The consolidated fi nancial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies to the extent practicable across the Group. Where 
necessary, adjustments are made to the fi nancial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the 
Company, except in case of depreciation.

v) Goodwill arising on consolidation

 The excess of cost to the parent, of its investment in subsidiary over its portion of equity in the subsidiary at the respective dates on which 
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investment in the subsidiary was made, is recognized in the fi nancial statements as goodwill and in the case where equity exceeds the cost; the 
diff erence is accounted as capital reserve. The parent’s portion of equity in the subsidiary is determined on the basis of the value of assets and 
liabilities as per the fi nancial statements of the subsidiary as on the date of investment.

  However, for subsidiary companies, Prime Focus World N.V. (‘PFWNV’) and its subsidiaries (‘PFW Group’), goodwill arising on consolidation 
represents the excess of their respective cost of acquisition over the fair value of their respective share of the net assets / net liabilities of the 
acquired entity at the date of acquisition in earlier years.

 Goodwill arising on this count is ` 1,207,581,397 (Previous period : ` 1,207,581,397).

 Goodwill arising on consolidation is evaluated for impairment annually.

vi) List of subsidiaries which are more than 50% owned or controlled and included in the consolidated fi nancial statements:

Name of subsidiaries Principal activity Country of incorporation Current year
percentage of 

holding

Previous period 
percentage of 

holding
Prime Focus London Plc. UK * Post Production and VFX services England & Wales - 65.01%
Prime Focus International Limited (PFIL) Media and other Investments England & Wales 100% 100%
Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited (PFT) Digital Asset Management India 75.50% 75.50%
Prime Focus Visual Eff ects Private Limited Dormant India 100% 100%
GVS Soft ware Private Limited Dormant India 100% 100%
Prime Focus Motion Pictures Limited Dormant India 100% 100%
PF World Limited Investments Mauritius 100% 100%
PF Investments Limited Investments Mauritius 100% 100%
PF Overseas Limited 
(w.e.f. July 26, 2013)

Investments Mauritius 100% 100%

Prime Focus 3D India Private Limited Dormant India 100% 100%
Gener8 India Media Services Limited (formerly known 
as Prime Focus Entertainment Services Limited 
/ Reliance MediaWorks Entertainment Services 
Limited) (w.e.f. April 07, 2015)

Post Production Services India 100% -

Reliance MediaWorks (Mauritius) Limited (w.e.f. April 
07, 2015)

Investments Mauritius 100% -

Subsidiary company of Reliance MediaWorks 
(Mauritius) Limited
Reliance Lowry Digital Imaging Services Inc 
(w.e.f April 07, 2015)
# 10% is held by Prime Focus Limited directly

Restoration USA 100%# -

Subsidiary companies of Prime Focus London Plc. 
UK *
VTR Media Services Limited (formerly known as 
Prime Focus Visual Entertainment Services Limited) 
(Under Liquidation)

Broadcast Post Production England & Wales - 100%

VTR Media Investments Limited Media Investments England & Wales - 100%
Busy Buses Limited Dormant England & Wales - 100%
PF Broadcast & Commercial Limited (Under 
Liquidation)

Post Production Services England & Wales - 100%

Clipstream Limited Digital Content Management England & Wales - 100%
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Name of subsidiaries Principal activity Country of incorporation Current year
percentage of 

holding

Previous period 
percentage of 

holding
Prime Focus Broadcast Limited (Under 
Administration)

Post Production Services England & Wales - 100%

Subsidiary companies of VTR Media Investments 
Limited
VTR Post Limited (formerly known as Prime Focus 
Post Limited/ Amazing Spectacles Limited) (Under 
Liquidation)

Post Production Service England & Wales - 100%

Prime Post (Europe) Limited (formerly known as 
Prime Focus (MW) Limited) (w.e.f. October 01, 2014 
subsidiary of Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited) 

Post Production of Television 
Commercials

England & Wales - 100%

DMJM Film Limited (Liquidated in FY 2013) Dormant England & Wales - -
VTR Media Investments 2 Limited (formerly known as 
Prime Focus Productions 1 Limited)

Dormant England & Wales - 100%

Prime VFX Limited (formerly known as PF Television 
VFX Limited) (Under Liquidation)

Dormant England & Wales - 100%

PF Broadcast VFX Limited (Under Liquidation) Dormant England & Wales - 100%
Prime Focus Productions 5 Limited (Dissolved on July 
28, 2015)

Dormant England & Wales - 100%

PF Film UK Limited (Under Liquidation) Post Production Services England & Wales - 100%
Subsidiary company of PF World Limited
Prime Focus Luxembourg S.a.r.l Investments Luxembourg 100% 100%
Gener8 Digital Media Services Limited (w.e.f. 
December 24, 2014)

Post Production Services Canada 100% -

Subsidiary company of Prime Focus Luxembourg 
S.a.r.l

Prime Focus 3D Cooperatief U.A
# 0.01% is held by PF Investments Limited

Investments Netherlands 99.99%# 99.99%#

Subsidiary company of Prime Focus 3D Cooperatief 
U.A.

Prime Focus World N.V. Investments Netherlands 76.33% 81.59%

Subsidiary companies of Prime Focus World N.V.

Prime Focus Creative Services Canada Inc Post Production and VFX Services Canada 100% 100%

Prime Focus VFX USA Inc Dormant USA 100% 100%

Prime Focus North America Inc Post Production and VFX Services USA 100% 100%

Prime Focus International Services UK Limited Post Production and VFX Services England & Wales 100% 100%

Prime Focus ME Holdings Limited Post Production and VFX Services British Virgin Island 100% 100%

Prime Focus World Creative Services Private Limited Post Production and VFX services India 100% 100%

Prime Focus China Limited Post Production and VFX services British Virgin Island 70% 70%

Double Negative Holdings Limited (w.e.f. July 01, 2014) Investments England & Wales 100% -

Subsidiary companies of Double Negative Holdings 
Limited

Double Negative Limited (w.e.f. July 01, 2014) Post Production and VFX services England & Wales 100% -
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Name of subsidiaries Principal activity Country of incorporation Current year
percentage of 

holding

Previous period 
percentage of 

holding
Double Negative Singapore Pte Limited (w.e.f. July 01, 
2014)

Post Production and VFX services Singapore 100% -

Double Negative Films Limited (w.e.f. July 01, 2014) Dormant England & Wales 100% -

Double Negative Canada Productions Limited 
(w.e.f. July 01, 2014)

Post Production and VFX services Canada 100% -

Subsidiary company of Prime Focus Creative 
Services Canada Inc.

Vegas II VFX Limited (w.e.f. May 30, 2013) Post Production and VFX services Canada 100% 100%

Subsidiary company of Prime Focus North America 
Inc.

1800 Vine Street LLC Administrative USA 100% 100%

Subsidiary company of Prime Focus China Ltd.

Prime Focus (HK) Holdings Limited Post Production and VFX services Hong Kong 100% 100%

Subsidiary companies of Prime Focus Technologies 
Private Limited

Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited Digital Asset Management
England & Wales 100% 100%

Prime Focus Technologies, Inc. Post Production USA 100% 100%
Subsidiary company of Prime Focus Technologies, Inc.
DAX PFT LLC
(w.e.f. April 04, 2014)

Digital Asset Management USA 100% 100%

Subsidiary company of DAX PFT LLC
DAX Cloud ULC
(w.e.f. April 04, 2014)

Digital Asset 
Management

Canada 100% 100%

Subsidiary company of Prime Focus Technologies UK 
Limited
Prime Post (Europe) Limited Post Production England & Wales 100% -

 * On March 31, 2015, the Company sold its entire holdings of ordinary shares of Prime Focus London Plc UK

c. Use of estimates

 The preparation of consolidated fi nancial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that aff ect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the fi nancial 
statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Accounting estimates change from period to period. Actual results could diff er 
from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the 
estimates. Changes in estimates are refl ected in the consolidated fi nancial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their 
eff ects are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

d. Tangible fi xed assets

 Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition or construction. They are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss 
if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and any directly att ributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any 
trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
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 Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fi xed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefi ts from the existing asset 
beyond its previously assessed standards of performance. All other expenses on existing fi xed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance 
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profi t and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fi xed assets are measured as the diff erence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

e. Depreciation

 Depreciation on tangible fi xed assets of the Company and its India subsidiaries is provided using the Straight Line Method (SLM) as per the useful lives 
of the assets estimated by the management which is similar to the useful life prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

 Depreciation on tangible fi xed assets of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries other than Prime Focus London Plc and its subsidiaries (‘PF London Group’) 
and PFIL has been provided on SLM as per the estimated useful life of such assets as follows: 

Buildings Over 40 years
Equipment, fi xture & fi tt ings Over 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles Over 5 years
Leasehold improvements Over the period of the lease or useful economic life whichever is shorter

 In case of, PF London Group (upto March 31, 2015) and Prime Focus International Limited (PFIL), depreciation has been provided using Writt en Down 
Value (‘WDV’) Method, to write down the cost of fi xed assets to their residual values over the estimated useful economic lives at the following rates:

 Asset Group Rates (WDV)

Plant and equipment 13.91%

Fixtures and fi tt ings 18.10%

Vehicles 25.89%

 Cost of leasehold improvements and leasehold building is amortised on a straight line basis over the period of the lease or useful economic life 
whichever is shorter.

 Gross book value of assets of PF London Group is ` Nil (previous period ` 2,922,904,227). Net book value of assets of PF London Group is ` Nil 
(previous period `  1,184,573,303) and depreciation charge for the year is `  72,780,223 (previous period ` 197,612,694). The investment in PF London 
Group has been sold by the Company in the current year.

 Gross book value of assets of PFIL is ` 1,840,891,729 (previous period ` 2,037,057,045). Net book value of assets of PFIL is `  1,680,917,729 (previous 
period ` 1,920,137,922) and depreciation charge for the year is `  68,471,947 (previous period ` 71,147,375).

 Pursuant to the enactment of the 2013 Act, eff ective April 01, 2014, the Company and its Indian subsidiaries have revised the estimated useful lives 
of its fi xed assets to ensure compliance with the stipulations of Schedule II to the Act. Accordingly, the unamortized depreciable amounts of the fi xed 
assets as at July 01, 2014 / April 01, 2014 have been charged over the revised remaining useful lives. Further, in accordance with the stipulations of 
the said Schedule, writt en down value of fi xed assets, whose lives had expired as at July 01, 2014 / April 01, 2014 aggregating ` 15,176,987 (net of tax) 
(previous period ` 2,250,751 (net of tax)) have been adjusted against retained earnings.

f. Intangible assets

 Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis 
over the estimated useful economic lives. 
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 The Group amortizes the intangible asset pertaining to the 2D to 3D conversion business over 20 years as the Group believes the benefi ts from this 
intangible asset will accrue over 20 years.

 Film rights

 The Company amortizes fi lm costs using the individual-fi lm-forecast method. Under the individual-fi lm-forecast method, such costs are amortized 
for each fi lm in the ratio that current year revenue for such fi lms bears to management’s estimate of remaining unrecognized ultimate revenue as at 
the beginning of the fi nancial year. Management regularly reviews and revises, where necessary, its total estimates on a fi lm-by-fi lm basis, which may 
result in a change in the rate of amortization and/or a write down of the intangible asset to fair value. The period of amortization only starts at the point 
at which the asset starts to produce economic returns.

 Soft ware

 Soft ware is amortized on straight line basis over the estimated useful life of six years.

 Acquired intangible assets

 Externally acquired fi nite-lived intangible assets are initially recognized at cost and subsequently amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful 
economic lives. 

 Intangible assets are recognized in business combinations if they are separable from the acquired entity or give rise to other contractual/legal rights. 
The amounts ascribed to such intangibles are arrived at by using appropriate valuation techniques.

 Finite-lived intangible assets that were acquired in a business combination, such as trade names, developed technology, customer relationships/ 
contracts, non-compete, brands and intellectual property are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life of upto 8 years.

 The period of amortization only starts at the point at which the asset becomes available to produce economic returns. Amortization is classifi ed as an 
operating expense.

 Goodwill on acquisition is not amortized but is tested for impairment on an annual basis.

 Research and development costs

 Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development costs are expensed as incurred unless, technical and commercial feasibility of the project 
together with availability of required resource the intent to complete the project and ability to use or sell the asset, can be demonstrated. Additionally, 
the assets should be able to generate probable future economic benefi t and cost thereof should be measured reliably.

g. Impairment

 The carrying values of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for impairment. If any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount 
of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognized, if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of the net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash fl ows to their present value 
based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset in earlier accounting periods no 
longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profi t and Loss, except in case of revalued 
assets. 

h. Borrowing cost

 Borrowing costs include interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowing and exchange diff erences 
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.
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 Borrowing costs relating to acquisition or construction of qualifying assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use 
are capitalised to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they occur.

i. Leases

 Finance leases, which eff ectively transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefi ts incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized 
at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments 
are apportioned between the fi nance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance 
of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as fi nance costs in the Statement of Profi t and Loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other 
initial direct costs of lease are capitalized.

 Leases where the lessor eff ectively retains substantially all the risks and benefi ts of ownership of the leased item are classifi ed as operating leases. 
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profi t and Loss on a straight line basis over the leased term.

j. Inventory

 Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value less any provision for impairment.

k. Investments

 Long-term investments are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary, in the value of such investments. Current 
investments are carried individually, at the lower of cost and fair value. Cost of investments include acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and 
duties.

l. Revenue Recognition

 Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration for the sale of services and products in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is 
shown net of applicable taxes.

 The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefi ts will fl ow to the 
Group and no signifi cant uncertainty exists as to its determination or realisation. The Group bases its estimates on historical results of the past taking 
into consideration the type of transaction, the type of customer and the specifi cs of each arrangement.

i. The Group provides a variety of post-production services including digital intermediate, visual special eff ects (VFX), two dimension to three 
dimension (2D to 3D) conversion and other technical services to its clients in the fi lm, broadcast and commercial sectors.

 Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and the revenues from the end of the last billing to 
the balance sheet date are recognized as unbilled revenues. Revenue from services provided under fi xed price contracts, where the outcome can 
be estimated reliably, is recognized following the percentage of completion method, where revenue is recognized in proportion to the progress of 
the contract activity. The progress of the contract activity is usually determined as a proportion of hours spent up to the balance sheet date, which 
bears to the total hours estimated for the contract. If losses are expected on contracts these are recognized when such loses become evident.

 Unbilled revenue is included within ‘other current assets’ and billing in advance is included as deferred revenue in ‘other current liabilities’.

ii. Contract with contingent revenue terms

 Some customer contracts for the provision of services are structured so that the economic benefi ts that fl ow to the Group are contingent on a 
future event, such as the performance of the fi lm at the box offi  ce. In such cases management perform an assessment of the probability that the 
contingent event will occur. These assessments are generally based on available market information and revenue will only be recognised when 
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this assessment shows that it is probable the contingent event will occur and therefore it is probable the economic benefi ts will fl ow to the Group.  
When the determination to recognize revenue is reached, the Group calculates revenue in accordance with the fi xed price contract policy with 
regard to percentage of completion method, unbilled revenue, deferred revenue and change orders.

iii. Others

 Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

 Dividends are recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the Balance Sheet date.

m. Foreign currency transactions

 Initial recognition

 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the 
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

 Conversion

 At the year end, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing exchange rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of 
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

 Exchange diff erences

 Exchange diff erences are recognised as income or expenses in the period in which they arise except in case of exchange diff erences arising on long 
term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of fi xed assets which are capitalised and depreciated over the remaining useful life of 
assets.

 Translation of integral and non-integral foreign operation

 The Company classifi es all its foreign operations as either ‘‘integral foreign operation” or “non-integral foreign operation.” The fi nancial statements of 
an integral foreign operation are translated as if the transactions of the foreign operation have been those of the Company itself.

 The assets and liabilities of a non-integral foreign operation are translated into the reporting currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting 
date and items of Statement of Profi t and Loss are translated at average rate. The exchange diff erences arising on translation are accumulated in the 
foreign currency translation reserve. On disposal of a non-integral foreign operation, the accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating to 
that foreign operation is recognized in the statement of profi t and loss. When there is a change in classifi cation of a foreign operation, the translation 
procedures applicable to the revised classifi cation are applied from the date of the change in the classifi cation.

n. Income taxes

 Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed for 
each of the entities in the Group in accordance with the provisions of applicable tax laws of the respective jurisdiction where the entities are located. 
Deferred income taxes refl ects the impact of current year timing diff erences between taxable income and accounting income for the period and 
reversal of timing diff erences of earlier years.

 Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and 
deferred tax liabilities are off set, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off  current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the 
extent that there is reasonable certainty that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 
In situations where the Group has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, the corresponding deferred tax assets are recognized only if 
there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profi ts.
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 At each balance sheet date the Group re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent 
that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realized.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Group writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax 
asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available 
against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, 
as the case may be, that suffi  cient future taxable income will be available.

 Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay 
normal income tax during the specifi ed period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to 
the Statement of Profi t and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Group reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the 
carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the eff ect that the Group will pay normal income tax 
during the specifi ed period.

o. Earnings per share

 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profi t or loss for the period att ributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profi t or loss for the period 
att ributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the eff ects of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.

p. Provisions and contingencies

 A provision is recognized when the Group has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that cash outfl ow 
will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A contingent liability is disclosed when the Group has a possible 
or present obligation where it is not probable that an outfl ow of resources will be required to sett le it. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor 
disclosed.

q. Retirement and other employee benefi ts

 Post-employment benefi ts and other long term benefi ts of the Group:

 Payments to defi ned contribution retirement benefi t plans are recognized as an expense when the employees have rendered service entitling them to 
the contributions.

 Retirement benefi ts in the form of Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund are defi ned contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to 
the Statement of Profi t and Loss of the period when the contributions to the respective funds are due. Liability in respect thereof is determined on the 
basis of contributions as required under the Statue/Rules. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective funds.

 Gratuity liability is a defi ned benefi t obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation done as per Projected Unit Credit method, 
carried out by an independent actuary at the end of the year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the 
Statement of Profi t and Loss.

r. Cash fl ow statement

 Cash fl ows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profi t / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the eff ects of transactions 
of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash fl ows from operating, investing and fi nancing 
activities of the Group are segregated based on the available information.



161

3. Share capital

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014

 Authorised shares: 

 350,000,000 (previous year 250,000,000) Equity shares of ` 1/- each  350,000,000  250,000,000 

 Issued, subscribed and paid-Up: 

 298,878,974 (previous year: 185,417,436)  Equity shares of ` 1/- each  298,878,974  185,417,436 

 298,878,974  185,417,436 

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year / period:

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014

No.  Amount No.  Amount 

 At the beginning of the year / period  185,417,436  185,417,436  185,417,436  185,417,436 

 Issued during the year / period (Refer note 33)  113,461,538  113,461,538  -  - 

 At the end of the year / period  298,878,974  298,878,974  185,417,436  185,417,436 

b. Rights, preferences and restrictions att ached to shares
 The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1 each. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend 

proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim 
dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company aft er distribution of all 
liabilities, in proportion to their shareholding. 

c. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of fi ve 
years immediately preceding the reporting date:

As at 
June 30,  2015

 No.

As at
 June 30, 2014

 No. 

 Equity shares allott ed as fully paid up pursuant to business transfer agreement for consideration 
other than cash (Refer note 33) 

 67,307,692  - 

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% in the company

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014
 No.  % of holding  No.  % of holding 

Naresh Malhotra  62,201,546  20.81  62,201,546  33.55 
Reliance MediaWorks Limited  134,080,061  44.86  -  - 
Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) III 
Limited

 36,549,990  12.23  36,549,990  19.71 

Monsoon Studio Private Limited  27,506,095  9.20  -  - 
Namit Malhotra  14,900,000  4.99  14,900,000  8.04 
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e. In the Board of Directors meeting held on July 02, 2014 approval was granted to introduce and implement Employee Stock Option Scheme 
titled ‘PFL-ESOP Scheme 2014’ whereby stock options upto 6% of the paid up capital of the Company (post preferential allotment) aggregating 
17,932,738 stock options would be issued to eligible employees of the Company, its subsidiaries and associates. The said scheme was approved 
by the shareholders in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on August 01, 2014.

4. Reserves and surplus
 in ` 

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30, 2014
 Securities Premium Account 
 As per last balance sheet  4,590,396,975  3,498,061,519 
 Add : Premium on issue of equity shares  6,634,422,455  - 
 Add : Premium on issue of preferred shares  -  1,354,509,831 
 Less : Share of minority 375,856,333  - 
 Less : Expenses on issue of equity/ preferred shares  5,900,000  35,643,882
 Less : Premium on redemption of debentures (net of tax)  210,549,462  226,530,493

 10,632,513,635  4,590,396,975 
 Capital Reserve 
 On acquisition of business (Refer note 33)  517,690,352  - 

 517,690,352  - 
 General Reserve 
 As per last balance sheet  13,400,000  13,400,000 

 13,400,000  13,400,000 
 Debenture Redemption Reserve 
 As per last balance sheet  636,455,965  - 
 Add: Transferred from Surplus in the Statement of Profi t and Loss  65,550,000  636,455,965 

 702,005,965  636,455,965 
 Surplus in the Statement of Profi t and Loss 
 As per last balance sheet  1,982,008,351  2,572,453,224 
 Add: (Loss) / Profi t for the year / period  (2,922,228,303)  242,613,878 
 Less: Depreciation on account of transitional provisions of 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 (net of tax) (Refer note 2e) 

 15,176,987  2,250,751 

 Less: Transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve  65,550,000  636,455,965 
 Less: Minority share  216,869,857  194,352,035 

 (1,237,816,796)  1,982,008,351 
 Share options outstanding account 
 As per last balance sheet  225,939,646  - 
 Amounts recorded on grants during the period  -  225,939,646 
 Less: Deferred stock compensation expense  50,105,261  117,690,150 

 175,834,385  108,249,496 
 Fair value reserve  -  (1,607,524)
 Foreign currency translation reserve  15,782,291  (138,857,055)

 10,819,409,832  7,190,046,208 
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 On March 19, 2013, PFWNV issued 187,500 of class B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Shares (“class B Preferred”), which carry a par value of €0.01 
per share, for $10.0 million. These class B Preferred shares form a separate class and carry equal rights. The preferred shares are senior to the ordinary 
shares of PFWNV with respect to distribution of assets and rights upon liquidation of PFWNV or a Sale Transaction. The holder of the class B Preferred 
is entitled to the same dividend or distribution that the Board may declare to the holders of the Ordinary shares of PFWNV. The class B Preferred 
shareholders are entitled to vote together with Ordinary shareholders and the number of entitled votes will be calculated based on an as converted 
basis according to the then applicable conversion rate of the class B Preferred shares to ordinary shares of PFWNV. All outstanding class B Preferred 
shares shall automatically be converted into ordinary shares of PFWNV in the event of a qualifying initial public off ering. 

 On June 21, 2013, PFWNV issued 827,781 of class A Convertible Redeemable Preferred Shares (“class A Preferred”), which carry a par value of €0.01 
per share, for $38.0 million. These class A Preferred form a separate class and carry equal rights. The Series A Preferred shares are senior to the 
Series B Preferred shares and ordinary shares of PFWNV with respect to distribution of assets and rights upon liquidation of PFWNV or a Sale 
Transaction. The holder of the class A Preferred is entitled to a cumulative preferred dividend, accrued on quarterly basis, of 5% per annum over the 
aggregate of (a) nominal value of the class A Preferred, plus (b) share premium paid, in addition to the same dividend or distribution that the Board 
may declare from time to time to the holders of the Ordinary shares of PFWNV. The class A Preferred shareholders are entitled to vote together with 
Ordinary shareholders of PFWNV and the number of entitled votes will be calculated based on an “as converted” basis according to the then applicable 
conversion rate of the class A Preferred shares to ordinary shares of PFWNV. All outstanding class A Preferred shares shall mandatorily convert to 
ordinary shares of PFWNV upon completion of a qualifying initial public off ering or at any time at the option of the holder into ordinary shares.

 In consolidated fi nancials, class A & B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Shares are considered as part of Minority interest of the group.

5. Long-term borrowings

 in ` 
Non-current portion Current maturities

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014
 Debentures (unsecured) 
 Non-convertible debentures - series A  1,010,000,000  1,010,000,000  -  - 
 Non-convertible debentures - series B  891,000,000  891,000,000  -  - 
 Premium on aforesaid debentures  761,781,859  445,623,858  -  - 
 (Refer note (a) below) 
 Debentures (secured) 
 Optionally convertible debentures  461,400,000  461,400,000  -  - 
 (Refer note (b) below) 
 Non-convertible debentures  489,100,000  -  -  - 
 Premium on Non-convertible debentures  2,808,006  -  -  - 
(Refer note (c) below)
 Term loans (secured) 
 from banks  430,467,119  1,867,382,342  1,247,514,153  377,113,216 
 (Refer note (d), (e), (f), (i) and (j) below) 
 from fi nancial institutions 588,423,227  567,885,586  14,673,860  16,962,949 
 (Refer note (h) below) 
 from others  406,196,930  -  28,198,254  - 
 (Refer note (g) and (k) below) 
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 in ` 
Non-current portion Current maturities

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014
 Other loans and advances (secured) 
 Finance lease obligations  593,292,903  222,359,001  608,962,571  216,980,650 
 (Refer note (l) below) 
 Foreign currency loans - buyers credit  139,327,327  235,619,665  277,305,571  146,500,830 
 (Refer note (m) below) 

 5,773,797,371  5,701,270,452  2,176,654,409  757,557,645 
 The above amount includes 
 Secured borrowings  3,111,015,512  3,354,646,594  2,176,654,409  757,557,645 
 Unsecured borrowings  2,662,781,859  2,346,623,858  -  - 
 Amount disclosed under the head "other current 
liabilities" (note 10) 

 -  -  (2,176,654,409)  (757,557,645)

 5,773,797,371  5,701,270,452  -  - 

a. On November 05, 2012, the Company issued 1,901 Zero Coupon Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of ` 1,000,000 each, 
of the aggregate nominal value of ̀  1,901,000,000 to Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) III Limited. The Debentures were issued in two 
series being the Series A NCDs and the Series B NCDs. The Series A NCDs comprised of 1,010 Debentures aggregating ̀ 1,010,000,000 redeemable 
aft er 5 years and the Series B NCDs comprised of 891 Debentures aggregating ` 891,000,000 redeemable aft er 6 years.

 The amounts payable on redemption on Debentures are as follows: 

i. With respect to the Series A NCDs, an amount equal to 188.17% of the Principal amount of Series A NCDs. 

ii. With respect to the Series B NCDs, an amount equal to 213.41% of the Principal amount of Series B NCDs 

 In the event that either the Company or the Debenture Holders are desirous of redeeming the Debentures prior to its scheduled maturity other 
than upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Company and the Debenture Holders shall mutually agree on the amounts payable to the 
Debenture Holders upon such early redemption and the other terms of such redemption.

b. During March 2014 and April 2014, Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited (PFT) raised through private placement of secured, unlisted, unrated, 
redeemable, optionally convertible debentures (OCDs) aggregating Rs 461,400,000. Aft er 2 years from allotment, Investors will have an option 
of converting up to 25% of the total principal amount into equity shares of PFT. OCDs are secured by pledge of equity shares of PFT equivalent 
to 3 times of the issue size held by the Parent Company, guarantee issued by the Parent Company and personal guarantees of promoters. Further, 
secured by second charge on all the fi xed assets of PFT and fi rst and exclusive charge on Debt Service Reserve Amount (DSRA). Interest rate 14% 
p.a. with maturity profi le of 27 months. 

c. On February 20, 2015 the Company made an off er for the issuance of upto 4,000 unlisted, unrated, redeemable debentures not convertible into 
Equity Shares of the Company of face value of ` 100,000 each (“Debentures”) aggregating upto ` 270,000,000 with a Green Shoe Option of upto 
` 130,000,000 on a private placement basis. On March 04, 2015, 2,891 Debentures aggregating ` 289,100,000 were allott ed. On April 07, 2015 the 
Company made an additional off er for the issuance of upto 2,000 unlisted, unrated, redeemable debentures not convertible into Equity Shares 
of the Company of face value of ` 100,000 each (“Debentures”) aggregating upto ` 200,000,000. On May 05, 2015, the Company allott ed 1,580 
debentures under Tranche - 1, aggregating ` 158,000,000 and on May 08, 2015 the Company further allott ed 420 debentures under Tranche – 2, 
aggregating ` 42,000,000. In aggregate, the company allott ed 4,891 debentures amounting to ` 489,100,000 at 14% interest payable quarterly 
and a redemption premium payable on maturity of the debenture to make the IRR of 17%. Of these Debentures ` 289,100,000 matures in August 
2017 and ` 200,000,000 matures in November 2017.
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d. On November 06, 2012, the Company entered into a term loan agreement with a bank to borrow ` 495,000,000 to fund the redemption of FCCB 
at an interest rate of base rate + margin (as may be agreed with the bank from time to time) for a tenor up to a maximum of 4 years. The base rate 
and margin were 14.75% during the previous period. The term loan was to be repaid in 45 monthly installments starting from the end of 4th month 
from the date of disbursement. The outstanding balance as at June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014 is ` nil and `. 330,000,000 respectively. As at June 
30, 2014 `. 198,000,000 was included in long-term borrowing and `. 132,000,000 was included in current maturities of long-term borrowings. The 
term loan was secured by a specifi c charge on immovable assets of the Company, personal guarantees of the promoters and pledge of shares of 
the company held by the promoter.

e. Term loans from bank include ` 346,443,420 (Previous period: ` 231,987,111) taken by PFT, which is secured by fi rst and exclusive charge on all 
existing and future current assets and existing and movable fi xed asset except for fi xed assets fi nanced through equipment loan/lease, extension 
of mortgage property owned by the Group at Khar Mumbai, pledge of parent company shares held by the promoter, corporate guarantee issued 
by the parent company and personal guarantees of promoters. Loan is repayable in 42 equal monthly installments beginning aft er a moratorium 
of 6 months from the date of disbursement with an interest rate of 13.50% p.a to 14.50% p.a. As at June 30, 2015, ` 170,666,701 (Previous period: 
` 44,371,822) is included in current maturities of long-term borrowings and balance of ` 175,776,719 (Previous period: ` 187,615,289) is included 
in long-term borrowings. 

f. Term loans from bank include $ 4,000,000 (` 254,690,400) (Previous period: $ Nil) taken by Prime Focus Technologies Inc. (PFT Inc.), which is 
secured by exclusive fi rst charge on all assets including current assets of PFT Inc., cash margin, escrow of receivables, pledge of shares of PFT Inc. 
and DAX PFT LLC, pledge of certain shares of PFT and of the Company both backed by non-disposal undertaking, corporate guarantee of PFT and 
personal guarantee of the promoter. Term loan facility 1 of USD 2,000,000 (` 127,345,200) is repayable in 4 yearly equal installments beginning 
September 30, 2016 and facility 2 of USD 2,000,000 (` 127,345,200) on October 03, 2016. Interest rate on term loans are based on 6 months libor 
plus 550 basis. 

g. On August 13, 2014, the Company entered into a long term loan agreement with a fi nancial institution to borrow ` 450,000,000 at an interest rate 
of 12.50% p.a., to repay the existing term loan and for general corporate purpose which includes working capital and advance payment for capital 
expenditure. The term loan is to be repayable in 120 equated monthly installment starting from October 01, 2014 for loan availed on August 29, 
2014 and from November 01, 2014 for loan availed on September 05, 2014. Further, the term loan is secured by a specifi c charge on immovable 
properties of the Company. At the year end, outstanding balance of the term loan is ` 432,737,071 of which ` 26,540,141 is included in current 
maturities of long-term borrowings and `406,196,930 is long term borrowings.

h. Term loans from fi nancial institutions include ` 603,097,087 (Previous period: ` 584,848,535) for a mortgage taken by PFW Group which is 
collateralized by the land and buildings of the PFW Group. Out of the outstanding balance as at June 30, 2015, ` 588,423,227 (Previous period: 
` 567,885,586) is included in long-term borrowings in the balance sheet and ` 14,673,860 (Previous period: ` 16,962,949) is included in current 
maturities of long-term borrowings. Interest is charged on this mortgage at a fi xed rate of 7.1%. From July 01, 2013 the interest rate on the 
mortgage is reset to 3.8% for a 5 year period. The mortgage expires on July 01, 2018.

i. Bank loan of $ 16,912,258 as at June 30, 2015 (Previous period: $ 24,720,426) is collateralized by the tangible and intangible assets of the PFW 
Group, with the land and buildings subordinated to the mortgage holder. Interest is charged on this facility at a variable rate, which was 6% in 
the current fi nancial year. During the current year, the terms of the loan were amended to make the loan repayable prior to October 31, 2015. As 
of June 30, 2015 ` 1,076,847,552 (Previous period: ` Nil) is included in current maturities of long term borrowings and ` Nil (Previous period: ` 
1,481,767,053) is included in long term borrowings.

j. In 2011, PF London Group entered into a demand loan agreement with a bank with a sanctioned limit of $ 3.08 million with an interest rate of 
libor+3% against stand by lett er of credit issued by the Company’s banker. As at June 30, 2014, ̀  200,741,394 (£ 1,966,800) was included in current 
maturities of long-term borrowings. 
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k. Term loans from others are availed on the basis of hypothecation of fi xed assets funded from the loans at a rate of interest of 12.95% and is 
repayable over 12 quarterly installments starting the date of availing the loan.

l. Lease obligations towards assets acquired under fi nance leases:

in `

Total minimum lease payments 
outstanding 

Future Interest on outstanding 
lease payments

Present Value of minimum 
lease payments

 As at 
June 30,  2015

 As at 
June 30, 2014

 As at 
June 30,  2015

 As at 
June 30, 2014

 As at 
June 30,  2015

 As at 
June 30, 2014

Within one year     683,690,517       254,771,570        74,727,946         37,790,920        608,962,571      216,980,650 

Later than one year and 
not later fi ve years

    649,427,498       252,990,591        56,134,595         30,631,590        593,292,903      222,359,001 

Later than fi ve years                    -                        -                       -                        -                         -                       -   

 1,333,118,015       507,762,161      130,862,541         68,422,510      1,202,255,474      439,339,651 

 Finance lease obligations are secured by hypothecation of plant and machinery, offi  ce equipment, vehicles and soft ware taken on lease.

m. Foreign currency loans

 Foreign currency loans – buyer’s credit of ` 161,992,288 (Previous period ` 382,120,490) of which ` 65,824,441 (Previous period ` 235,619,665) is 
non-current and ̀  96,167,847 (Previous period ̀  146,500,830) is current and secured by pari passu charge on the immoveable assets of the Parent 
Company, both present and future (except building in Royal Palms, Goregaon, Mumbai), pari passu charge on the Parent Company’s current assets 
both present and future and personal guarantees of the promoter director. Also secured against margin monies – Fixed Deposits.

 Foreign currency loans- buyer’s credit of ` 254,640,610 (Previous period `. Nil) of which ` 73,502,886 (Previous period `. Nil) is non-current and ` 
181,137,724 (Previous period `. Nil) is disclosed as current maturity of long term loans is secured against margin monies- fi xed deposits pledged. 
Interest rate ranges from 1% to 3% p.a. with maturity profi le of 2-3 years.

6.  Deferred tax liability (net)

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

 Deferred tax liability 

 Diff erence between tax and books writt en down values of fi xed assets  118,628,762  121,657,864 

 118,628,762  121,657,864 

 Deferred tax assets 

 Unabsorbed loss carried forward  12,790,645  - 

 Provision for doubtful debts  -  82,678 

 Provision for gratuity  6,053,962  2,875,833 

 Others (Rent straight lining etc.)  7,206,883  - 

 26,051,490  2,958,511 

 92,577,272  118,699,353 
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 Deferred tax (asset) (net)
 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 
 Deferred tax liability 
 Diff erence between tax and books writt en down values of fi xed assets  168,829,692  166,197,107 

 168,829,692  166,197,107 
 Deferred tax assets 
 Unabsorbed loss caried forward  488,889,179  488,889,179 
 Premium on redemption on NCD  225,062,076  116,645,530 
 Provision for doubtful loan  -  459,969,603 
 Provision for diminution in the value of investment  -  174,924,941 
 Provision for doubtful debts / advances  34,464,139  52,321,698 
 Provision for gratuity  4,828,245  2,789,348 

 753,243,639  1,295,540,299 
 (584,413,947)  (1,129,343,192)

 The Group had recognized a deferred tax asset on the carry forward losses in the earlier years. Although the Company has incurred taxable losses in 
the current year, based on the agreements entered into by the Company for lease/ sub-lease of its premises and to render outsourcing service to its 
subsidiaries coupled with the revenue from existing business activities, the management is confi dent that suffi  cient taxable income to off set carry 
forward losses would be generated.

7. Other long-term liabilities
 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 
Security deposits  55,500,000  36,120,260 

Lease rent liability  1,495,903,530  95,231,514 

Deferred consideration for acquisition of business  1,765,359,736  474,732,720 

Other payables  609,056,848  - 

 3,925,820,114  606,084,494 

8. Provisions
 in ` 

Long-term Short-term
As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014 

Provision for employee benefi ts
Provision for gratuity  35,338,372  14,049,946  2,428,605  1,256,395 
Provision for leave encashment  13,551,273  -  8,297,052  - 
Provision for onerous contract  -  -  57,963,598  - 
Provision for income tax  -  -  32,849,349  470,364,595 
(net of advance tax)

 48,889,645  14,049,946  101,538,604  471,620,990 

 The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision was required for any foreseeable losses.
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9. Short-term borrowings

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

From Banks / Financial Institutions / Others (Secured)

Cash credit / overdraft  1,167,830,387  927,297,274 

Short-term demand loan  604,680,728  757,964,787 

Invoice discounting facility  396,553,370  88,363,226 

From Others (Unsecured)

Short-term demand loan  255,208,886  - 

 2,424,273,371  1,773,625,287 

a. In February 2011, the Company entered into an agreement for a working capital demand loan of ` 250,000,000 from a bank for a term of six 
months at an interest rate of 13% p.a. This is renewed periodically and is secured by fi rst pari passu charge on the Company’s current assets both 
present and future, personal guarantees and pledge of shares by the promoter director. As at June 30, 2015, ̀  100,000,000 and as at June 30, 2014, 
` 250,000,000 is outstanding and is included in short-term demand loans.

b. On November 06, 2012, the Company entered in to an agreement for pre-shipment fi nancing under export orders (“Facility”) of ` 385,000,000 
for funding against confi rmed orders up to 100% of export sales. The interest rate for the facility drawn in Indian rupees is base rate plus margin 
and for facility drawn in currency other than Indian rupees is LIBOR plus margin. There are sub-limits under the facility for fi nancial guarantees / 
standby lett er of credit for payment undertaking for buyer’s credit, pre-shipment fi nancing under export lett er of credit, export bills discounting, 
export invoice fi nancing, import invoice fi nancing, overdraft , short-term loans and bonds/ guarantees. The Facility is secured by fi rst pari-passu 
charge on stock and book debts of the Company, personal guarantee of the promoters, fi rst pari-passu charge on movable fi xed assets of the 
Company, fi rst pari-passu charge on immovable fi xed assets located at Royal Palms-Mastermind, Goregoan, Mumbai and Raghuvanshi Mills, 
Mumbai and pledge of shares of the Company. As at June 30, 2015 ` 146,718,825 and June 30, 2014 ` 292,267,856 is outstanding under the 
Facility. As at June 30, 2015 ` nil and June 30, 2014 ` 166,900,000 is included in short-term demand loans and as at June 30, 2015 ̀  146,718,825 and 
June 30, 2014 ` 125,367,856 is included in cash credit / overdraft .

c. On October 28, 2014, the Company borrowed ` 5,000,000 as working capital demand loan from a bank for a term of ten months at an interest rate 
of 13.75%. The short-term demand loan is secured by fi rst pari passu charge on the Company’s current assets both present and future, personal 
guarantees and pledge of shares by the promoter director. As at June 30, 2015, ` 5,000,000 is outstanding and is included in short-term demand 
loans.

d. On November 5, 2014, the Company raised ` 50,000,000 from others at an interest rate of 15.5% per annum for a term of 6 months from date of 
disbursement. This loan is renewed and is secured by pledge of shares by a promoter director. As at June 30, 2015 ` 50,000,000 was outstanding 
and is included under short-term demand loan.

e. On February 18, 2015, the Company raised ` 50,000,000 from others at an interest rate of 17% per annum for a term of 363 days from the date 
of disbursement. The short-term demand loan is secured by pledge of shares by a promoter director. As at June 30, 2015 ` 50,000,000 was 
outstanding and is included under short-term demand loan. 

f. Cash credits/ overdraft  from banks are secured against fi rst pari passu charge on the Company’s current assets both present and future, personal 
guarantees and pledge of shares by the promoter director. The cash credit is repayable on demand and carries interest at the rate of 14.50% 
to 14.75% per annum. As at June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, the cash credits/ overdraft  outstanding were ` 183,587,792 and ` 179,919,806, 
respectively.
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g. On January 31, 2013, the Company entered into an agreement for a working capital loan of ̀  150,000,000 from others at an interest rate of 16% per 
annum for a term of 12 months from the date of disbursement. This loan is renewed periodically and is secured by personal guarantee and pledge 
of shares by a promoter director. On February 01, 2015, the Company rolled over the said loan at an interest rate of 15.50% per annum for a term 
of 12 months from the date of renewal. On January 21, 2015, the Company additionally borrowed ` 50,000,000 for general corporate purpose at 
an interest rate of 15.50% per annum for a term of 12 months from the date of disbursement. The general corporate purpose loan is secured by 
personal guarantee and pledge of shares by a promoter director. As at June 30, 2015 ` 177,400,000 and as at June 30, 2014 ` 135,000,000 was 
outstanding and is included under short-term demand loan.

h. Short term demand loan includes bank loan of `222,280,725 ($3,322,032) (Previous period: ` 206,064,787 ($3,437,794)) taken by PFW Group, 
which is collateralized by the tax credit receivables of $ 4,598,326 (Previous period: $4,061,703). The line of credit amount is $3,950,000. The line 
of credit is bearing interest rate at the bank prime rate plus 1.3%, equivalent to 4.3%.

i. PFT has availed a cash credit and invoice discounting facility from bank, which is secured by fi rst and exclusive charge on all existing and future 
current assets and all existing and future movable fi xed assets except fi nanced through equipment loan/lease pari-passu with term loans. The 
loans are further secured by corporate guarantee issued by parent company and personal guarantee of promoters. The rate of interest ranges 
from 13% to 15%. As at June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014 `139,189,630 and `105,479,040 respectively was included in Cash Credit / Overdraft  and 
`50,041,223 and `51,894,910 respectively was included in Invoice Discounting Facility.

j. In June 2014, cash credit balance included a line of credit availed from a bank by the PF London Group of ` 516,530,572 (£ 5,060,800). The facility 
was repayable on demand, carried interest at LIBOR + 5% and was secured by fi lm trade receivables of PF London Group. 

k. In June 2014, invoice discounting facility included a line of credit availed from a fi nancial institution by the PF London Group of ` 36,468,316 (£ 
357,305). The facility was repayable on demand, carried an interest rate of 5% (2% over base rate) and was secured by broadcast and commercial 
trade receivables of PF London Group. 

l. On November 27, 2014, the Company raised ` 50,000,000 through inter corporate borrowing for working capital at an interest rate of 18% per 
annum for a term of 60 days from the date of disbursement. The working capital loan was secured by pledge of shares by a promoter director. The 
loan was repaid during the year. 

m. On July 01, 2014, the Company raised short term demand loan of ̀  3,000,000,000 from others at an interest rate of 13.5% p.a. This loan was repaid 
on March 31, 2015. This loan was secured by pledge of the Company’s shares in PF World Ltd. (Mauritius).

n. PFW Group has availed borrowings from banks for pre-shipment and post-shipment export fi nance at a rate of interest of LIBOR+2.50% to 
LIBOR+7.25% with a tenor of upto 1 year. The facility is secured against current assets and fi xed assets of the Company, pledge of shares of the 
ultimate holding Company by the promoter of the ultimate holding company, corporate guarantee of the ultimate holding company and personal 
guarantee of the promoter of the ultimate holding company to the extent of ̀  250,000,000 and is secured against current assets and fi xed assets 
of the Company and corporate guarantee from ultimate holding company and parent company to the extent of ` 180,000,000. As at June 30, 2015 
` 346,512,147 (Previous period: ` nil) is included in Invoice discounting facility.

o. PFW Group has availed cash credit/ overdraft  from a bank for which bank has a fi xed and fl oating charge in respect of all present and future 
liabilities and obligations secured on the undertaking and all property and assets present and future including goodwill, book debts, uncalled 
capital, buildings, fi xtures, and fi xed plant & machinery. As at June 30, 2015 ` 698,334,140 (Previous period: `. Nil) is outstanding and is included in 
cash credit/ overdraft .

p. PFW Group has availed unsecured short term working capital loans from corporates during the year. As at June 30, 2015 ` 255,208,886 (Previous 
period: ` nil) is outstanding and is included in Unsecured short term borrowings from others.
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10. Other current liabilities

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 5)  2,176,654,409  757,557,645 

Accrued salaries and benefi ts  498,836,130  218,265,798 

Withholding and other taxes payable  348,203,323  217,095,370 

Capital Creditors  191,756,253  137,232,112 

Advances received from clients  168,344,468  95,863,107 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  14,567,149  9,235,229 

Interest & redemption premium payable on OCD's  13,449,324  - 

Security deposits  31,917,029  16,424,100 

Bank book overdraft  153,892,020  2,028,765 

Deferred revenue  1,257,078,392  74,625,074 

Deferred consideration for acquisition of business  593,704,232  - 

Unclaimed dividends  -  14,835 

Other payables  901,324,555  181,744,114 

 6,349,727,284  1,710,086,149 

 Other payables include withholding taxes, service tax payable, VAT payable and employer and employee contribution to provident and other funds 
liability.
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11. Tangible assets
 in ` 

 Building  Plant and 
equipment 

 Furniture and 
fi xtures 

 Lease Hold 
Improvement 

 Offi  ce 
equipments 

 Vehicles  Total 

Gross block
As at April 01, 2013  1,821,574,114  5,664,057,716  441,774,220  824,852,479  85,207,143  40,493,074  8,877,958,746 
Additions  -  1,172,451,289  34,345,022  360,441,829  80,490,149  7,017,599  1,654,745,888 
Deduction  -  (47,043,051)  (532,317)  (102,039,865)  (120,883)  (9,890,161)  (159,626,277)
Exchange diff erences  135,816,216  471,686,653  57,005,008  149,715,445  5,692,477  775,417  820,691,216 
As at June 30, 2014  1,957,390,330  7,261,152,607  532,591,933  1,232,969,888  171,268,886  38,395,929  11,193,769,573 
Depreciation
As at April 01, 2013  112,771,971  2,534,892,009  229,114,233  438,947,788  39,305,071  10,530,535  3,365,561,607 
For the period  46,231,024  857,334,358  48,929,661  151,464,878  45,908,299  5,155,540  1,155,023,760 
Deduction  -  (8,543,105)  (532,317)  (2,947,375)  (112,281)  (5,065,644)  (17,200,722)
Exchange diff erences  8,521,922  254,293,745  35,054,408  69,248,003  703,395  957,939  368,779,412 
As at June 30, 2014  167,524,917  3,637,977,007  312,565,985  656,713,294  85,804,484  11,578,370  4,872,164,057 
Net block
As at June 30, 2014  1,789,865,413  3,623,175,600  220,025,948  576,256,594  85,464,402  26,817,559  6,321,605,516 
As at April 01, 2013  1,708,802,143  3,129,165,707  212,659,987  385,904,691  45,902,072  29,962,539  5,512,397,139 

 in ` 
 Building  Plant and 

equipment 
 Furniture and 

fi xtures 
 Lease Hold 

Improvement 
 Offi  ce 

equipments 
 Vehicles  Total 

Gross block
As at July 01, 2014  1,957,390,330  7,261,152,607  532,591,933  1,232,969,888  171,268,886  38,395,929  11,193,769,573 
Business acquisition  658,415,151  5,635,137,069  93,873,236  1,945,276,967  90,318,065  3,800,535  8,426,821,023 
Additions  -  1,687,950,668  12,099,100  450,332,810  69,745,236  5,898,277  2,226,026,091 
Deduction  -  (187,391,290)  (10,028,183)  -  -  (800,496)  (198,219,969)
Sale of investment in 
subsidiary

 -  (2,219,672,212)  (270,735,525)  (419,624,427)  -  (2,865,706)  (2,912,897,870)

Exchange diff erences  90,897,554  (462,572,710)  (25,988,556)  (188,582,020)  2,358,717  259,277  (583,627,738)
As at June 30, 2015  2,706,703,035  11,714,604,132  331,812,005  3,020,373,218  333,690,904  44,687,816  18,151,871,110 
Depreciation
As at July 01, 2014  167,524,917  3,637,977,008  312,565,985  656,713,294  85,804,484  11,578,370  4,872,164,058 
Business acquisition  6,515,151  4,327,008,801  36,075,483  999,506,479  43,003,469  -  5,412,109,383 
For the year  42,649,989  1,257,948,851  23,966,869  472,610,981  47,958,338  6,090,584  1,851,225,612 
Adjustment against reserve  -  16,496,805  12,297  -  5,296,947  166,595  21,972,644 
Deduction  -  (23,671,190)  (5,444,604)  -  -  (760,471)  (29,876,265)
Sale of investment in 
subsidiary

 -  (1,103,715,237)  (189,177,986)  (377,226,335)  -  (1,542,612)  (1,671,662,170)

Exchange diff erences  9,011,377  (266,936,519)  (14,366,788)  (88,479,809)  (14,552,655)  91,584  (375,232,810)
As at June 30, 2015  225,701,434  7,845,108,519  163,631,256  1,663,124,610  167,510,583  15,624,050  10,080,700,452 
Net block
As at June 30, 2015  2,481,001,601  3,869,495,613  168,180,749  1,357,248,608  166,180,321  29,063,766  8,071,170,658 

- The Group has capitalized exchange loss, arising on long-term foreign currency loans, amounting to ` 11,492,969 (Previous period ` 54,820,725 ) to the cost of plant 

and equipment.



PRIME FOCUS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

172

12. Intangible assets
 in ` 

 Goodwill Film
Rights

 Customer 
relationships and 

contracts 

 Trade names  Soft ware  Total 

Gross block
As at April 1, 2013  5,320,000 896,647,016  66,052,718  6,506,940  1,320,228,217  2,294,754,891 
Additions 598,896,213 525,849,087  -   -  158,652,405  1,283,397,705 
Deduction  - -  -   -  (1,160,929)  (1,160,929)
Exchange diff erences  - 204,729,289  342,044  809,813  55,176,676  261,057,822 
As at June 30, 2014  604,216,213 1,627,225,392  66,394,762  7,316,753  1,532,896,369  3,838,049,489 

Amortization
As at April 1, 2013  5,320,000 12,000,001  66,052,718  6,506,940  229,552,787  319,432,446 
For the period  - 7,495,890  -   -  169,459,031  176,954,921 
Deduction  - -  -   -  (168,710)  (168,710)
Exchange diff erences  - -  342,044   809,813  10,452,134  11,603,991 
As at June 30, 2014  5,320,000 19,495,891  66,394,762  7,316,753  409,295,242  507,822,648 
Net block
As at June 30, 2014  598,896,213 1,607,729,501  -   -  1,123,601,127  3,330,226,841 
As at April 1, 2013  - 884,647,015  -  -  1,090,675,430  1,975,322,445 

 in ` 
 Goodwill Film

Rights
 Customer 

relationships and 
contracts 

 Trade names, 
Brand and Non-

compete 

 Soft ware  Total 

Gross block
As at July 1, 2014  604,216,213 1,627,225,392  66,394,762  7,316,753  1,532,896,369  3,838,049,489
Business acquisition  416,645,871 - -  45,322,793  1,565,019,691  2,026,988,355 
Additions  309,845,007 - -  -  657,517,148  967,362,155 
Deduction  (57,305,340) - -  -  (9,130,403)  (66,435,743)
Sale of subsidiary  (43,642,535) (147,862,818)  -  -  -  (191,505,353)
Exchange diff erences  154,718,930 (42,780,339)  426,380  8,028,697  (21,114,586 )  99,279,082 
As at June 30, 2015  1,384,478,146 1,436,582,235  66,821,142  60,668,243  3,725,188,219  6,673,737,985 
Depreciation
As at July 1, 2014  5,320,000 19,495,891  66,394,762  7,316,753  409,295,242  507,822,648 
Business acquisition  - -  -  -  518,387,174  518,387,174 
For the period  - 5,145,206  -   6,767,925  348,274,255  360,187,386 
Deduction  - -  -   -  -  - 
Sale of subsidiary  - -  -   -  -  - 
Exchange diff erences  -  -  426,380  4,365,015  6,171,425  10,962,820 
As at June 30, 2015  5,320,000 24,641,097  66,821,142  18,449,693  1,282,128,096  1,397,360,028 
Net block
As at June 30, 2015  1,379,158,146 1,411,941,138  -   42,218,550  2,443,060,123  5,276,377,957 

 - The Group has capitalized exchange loss, arising on long-term foreign currency loans, amounting to  ` 442,777. (Previous period: ` 116, 932) to the cost of soft ware.
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13. Non-current investments

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

 Non-trade 

 Unquoted - fully paid up 

 The Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Ltd.  100,000  100,000 

 4,000 shares of ` 25/- each 

 Mainframe Premises Co-Operative Society Ltd.  3,500  3,500 

 350 shares of ` 10/- each 

 Locksmith Ltd  35,035,987  - 

 1400 shares of £ 0.001 each 

 Digital Domain-Reliance LLC *  822,258,791  - 

 857,398,278  103,500 

 * The Group has 30% ownership interest in Digital Domain - Reliance LLC

14. Current investments (at lower of cost and market value)

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

 Other than trade unquoted 

 Conexion Media Group Plc  -  625,148 

 -  625,148 

15. Trade receivables (unsecured)

 in ` 

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30,  2014 

 Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months 

 Considered good  2,404,067,989  331,013,871 

 Considered doubtful  109,324,484  230,171,330 

 Other debts 

 Considered good  1,352,250,793  3,521,640,215 

 Considered doubtful  -  1,539,222 

 3,865,643,266  4,084,364,638 

 Less: Provision  109,324,484  231,710,552 

 3,756,318,782  3,852,654,086 
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16.  Loans and advances
 in ` 

Long-term Short-term
As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014

 Unsecured - considered good 
 Capital advances  309,865,599  392,082,791  -  - 
 Deposits  828,648,104  137,381,358  3,883,904  252,598,100 
 Inter-company deposits (including interest)  -  -  225,218,671  241,696,500 
 MAT credit entitlement  72,520,042  103,706,336  -  - 
 Prepaid expenses  -  -  499,898,785  336,954,170 
 Tax credits receivable from foreign government -  -  980,776,852  510,679,458 
 Advance payment of taxes  418,703,655  209,325,363  -  - 
 (Net of Provision for Tax) 
 Other loans and advances  16,001,587  96,329,636  936,783,719  392,699,112 

 1,645,738,987  938,825,484  2,646,561,931  1,734,627,340 
 Unsecured - considered doubtful 
 Capital advances  -  11,000,000  -  - 
 Inter-company deposits (including interest)  -  -  -  31,946,577 
 Other loans and advances  -  -  50,000,000  53,299,472 

 -  11,000,000  50,000,000  85,246,049 
Less: Provision  -  (11,000,000)  (50,000,000)  (85,246,049)

 1,645,738,987  938,825,484  2,646,561,931  1,734,627,340 

 Other loans advances include loans and advances to employees and others, advances to suppliers, input credit, deposits to Government authorities, 
service taxes receivable, etc.

17. Cash and bank balances
in `

 As at June 30, 2015  As at June 30,  2014

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  2,462,646  2,279,348 

Balances with banks:

 In Current Accounts  352,146,541  70,919,987 

 Deposits less than three months  -  68,251,978 

 354,609,187  141,451,313 

Other bank balances:

 Margin money deposits  261,623,678  83,472,796 

 261,623,678  83,472,796 

 616,232,865  224,924,109 
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a. Margin money deposits aggregating ` 240,666,078 (previous period: ` 83,472,796) are subject to fi rst charge to secure the foreign currency 
loans – buyer’s credit and bank guarantees.

b. Margin money deposits aggregating ` 20,957,600 (previous period: ` Nil) are subject to fi rst charge to secure the interest of non-convertible 
debenture holders issued by the Company.

18. Other assets

 in ` 
Non-current Current

As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014 As at June 30, 2015 As at June 30, 2014
Unbilled revenue  -  -  1,920,357,166  1,679,672,901 
Interest accrued on fi xed deposits  -  -  4,469,496  2,600,838 
Receivable on sale of subsidiary  -  -  19,987,159  - 
(Refer note 23)
Other assets  682,447  682,447  -  23,844,713 

 682,447  682,447  1,944,813,821  1,706,118,452 

19. Other income

 in ` 

 Year ended 
June 30, 2015

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014

Dividend

 Long term investments - non trade  24,000  12,000 

Interest Income

 Bank deposits  12,650,717  14,144,207 

 On income tax refunds  5,404,191  - 

 Others  7,894,504  12,721,677 

Profi t on sale of asset  3,601,169  - 

Exchange gain (net)  -  380,697,185 

Excess provision for doubtful debts writt en back  127,275,492 -

Sundry credit balance writt en back  31,097,330  5,527,359 

Insurance claim received  423,694  8,871,816 

Bad debt recovered  72,937  6,000 

Recovery of excess remuneration paid to KMP  -  3,600,000 

(Refer note 26)

Miscellaneous income  7,151,134  34,520,745 

 195,595,168  460,100,989 
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20. Employee benefi ts expense

 in ` 

 Year ended 
June 30, 2015

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014

Salaries, wages and bonus  9,002,358,531  4,872,671,163 

Stock option expense (refer note 31)  67,584,889  108,249,496 

Contribution to provident and other funds  38,184,139  22,624,730 

Gratuity  7,411,081  1,461,296 

Staff  welfare  148,035,440  65,158,335 

 9,263,574,080  5,070,165,020 

21. Finance costs

 in ` 

 Year ended 
June 30, 2015

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014

Interest on working capital fi nance  282,453,456  178,661,605 

Interest on term loan  259,399,508  391,157,477 

Interest on buyer's credit  7,848,315  13,261,444 

Interest on non convertible debentures  8,351,800  - 

Interest on optionally convertible debentures  75,213,668  20,932,677 

Interest on others  35,206,635  20,110,277 

Bank charges  58,781,617  62,636,434 

 727,254,999  686,759,914 
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22. Other expenses

 in ` 

 Year ended 
June 30, 2015

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014

Technical service cost  514,548,103  596,078,533 

Communication cost  166,489,320  140,736,639 

Consumable stores  250,847,572  151,142,555 

Director's sitt ing fees  900,000  440,000 

Electricity charges  111,857,765  184,516,307 

Insurance cost  91,652,802  48,758,668 

Legal and professional fees  380,795,563  316,710,488 

Loss on sale of fi xed assets  2,160,751  60,826,631 

Rates and taxes  70,920,778  41,160,120 

Rebates and discount  17,892,388  17,297,565 

Rent (Refer note 27)  1,044,361,623  566,858,609 

Travelling and conveyance  258,625,440  220,417,431 

Miscellaneous expenses  535,297,360  418,310,199 

Repairs and maintenance-equipment  69,738,809  93,991,834 

Repairs and maintenance-buildings  167,071,134  26,188,582 

Bad debts writt en off  (net of provision for doubtful debts writt en back of ` 61,906,158) (Previous 
period ` 132,705,729)

 37,800,257  38,539,864 

Provision for doubtful debts  1,744,542  - 

Sundry balances writt en off  2,979,984  - 

Exchange loss (net)  372,538,385  - 

Auditor's remuneration

 As auditor 

 Audit fees  22,482,256  22,782,814 

 In other matt ers  1,802,500  362,500 

 4,122,507,332  2,945,119,339 
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23. Exceptional items

 in ` 

 Year ended 
June 30, 2015

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014

 Provision for doubtful debts / advances (net)  50,060,476  87,021,379 

 Restructuring and integration costs  619,146,656  9,055,486 

 Loss on disinvestment of subsidiary  453,022,758  - 

 (Refer note below) 

 Assets writt en off   -  77,987,782 

 Loan to PFL PLC writt en off   1,353,249,789  - 

 2,475,479,679  174,064,647 

 On March 31, 2015 the Company sold its entire holdings of 21,492,003 ordinary shares of Prime Focus London Plc. (PFL PLC), a subsidiary company 
incorporated in the U.K. for a consideration of ` 37,074,693. The Company incurred a loss of ` 453,022,758. Of the total consideration ` 19,987,159 is 
outstanding as at June 30, 2015 (Refer note 18).

24. Earnings per share (EPS)

 in ` 

 Year ended 
June 30, 2015

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014

Net (loss) / profi t atributable to equity shareholders  (2,922,228,303)  242,613,878 

Exceptional items (net of tax) 2,458,464,123 137,578,956

Net Profi t before exceptional items but aft er tax  (463,764,180)  380,192,834 

Number Number

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS 211,839,986 185,417,436

Earnings per share (before exceptional items)

Basic EPS  (2.19)  2.05 

Diluted EPS  (2.19)  2.05 

Earnings per share (aft er exceptional items)

Basic EPS  (13.79)  1.31 

Diluted EPS  (13.79)  1.31 



179

25. Segment  information 

 Primary segment information - Business Segments

 The Group is presently operating as integrated post production set up. The entire operations of the Group are governed by the same set of risks and 
returns and hence have been considered as representing a single segment. The said treatment is in accordance with the guiding principles enunciated 
in the Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (AS-17). 

 Segment information for secondary segment reporting (by geographical segment based on location of customers)

in `

Revenue from operations Segment Assets Capital Expenditure

Year ended 
June 30, 2015

Period ended June 
30, 2014

As at 
June 30, 2015

As at 
June 30, 2014

Year ended 
June 30, 2015

Period ended June 
30, 2014

India  2,567,812,885  2,356,057,662  8,662,327,389  4,848,793,183  1,856,778,394  1,144,696,874 

United Kingdom  4,327,766,845  3,297,171,808  15,386,367,222  6,849,798,690  1,323,530,385  821,746,732 

U.S.  6,917,937,868  3,044,508,611  2,591,445,890  5,639,438,821  935,978,915  701,467,351 

Canada  1,220,939,884  297,713,113  2,561,684,485  1,472,683,644  1,002,632,210  213,832,752 

Other Countries  345,287,105  1,331,764,677  2,044,517,656  129,974,001  53,810,797  13,701,080 

 15,379,744,586  10,327,215,871  31,246,342,642  18,940,688,339  5,172,730,701  2,895,444,789 

26.  Related party disclosures

 a. List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year / period

  i. Key management personnel

   Prime Focus Limited 

   Mr. Naresh Malhotra – Whole-time Director (Chairman till June 24, 2014)

   Mr. Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan – Managing Director (w.e.f June 25, 2014), CEO (till June 24, 2014)

   Mr. Namit Malhotra – CEO, Chairman and Executive Director (w.e.f June 25, 2014)

   Mr. Nishant Fadia – CFO (till July 31, 2014)

   Mr. Vikas Rathee – CFO (w.e.f August 01, 2014)

   Ms. Kirti Desai – Company Secretary (resigned w.e.f. July 07, 2015)

   Prime Focus World N.V.

   Mr. Namit Malhotra – Chief Executive Offi  cer and Whole-time Director

   Mr. Massoud Entekhabi – Whole-time Director

   Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited

   Mr. Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan – Whole-time Director

   Mr. Ganesh V.Sankaran - Whole-time Director

   Prime Focus London Plc

   Mr. Bernard Kumeta - CEO and Whole time Director (resigned on November 05, 2013)
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  ii. Relative of Key management personnel
   Prime Focus Technologies Private Limited
   Mrs. Sumati Ganesh – Wife of Mr. Ganesh V Sankaran

  iii. Enterprises owned or signifi cantly infl uenced by Key Management Personnel or their relatives

   Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited
   N2M Reality Private Limited
   Monsoon Studio Private Limited

  iv. Enterprises exercising signifi cant infl uence over the Company

   Reliance MediaWorks Limited (w.e.f. April 07, 2015)
   Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) III Limited
   Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) Limited

   Standard Chartered Bank

(i) Key Management Personnel *
in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Remuneration 
Mr.Naresh Malhotra  6,000,000  7,500,000 
Mr.Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan  8,391,433  7,068,333 
Mr.Namit Malhotra  35,974,544  40,197,838 
Mr.Massoud Entekhabi  24,779,942  32,778,636 
Mr.Vikas Rathee  13,750,000  - 
Mr. Nishant Fadia  1,000,000  6,000,000 
Mr.Ganesh V. Sankaran  7,200,000  7,400,000 
Ms. Kirti Desai  1,565,112  - 
Mr. Bernard Kumeta - 11,099,970
Recovery of excess remuneration paid
Mr.Naresh Malhotra  -  3,600,000 

in `

  As at 
June 30,  2015 

 As at 
June 30, 2014 

Balance Outstanding – Remuneration Payable 

Mr.Naresh Malhotra  500,000  371,790 

Mr.Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan  608,555  449,559 

Mr.Namit Malhotra  416,667  83,333 

Mr.Ganesh V. Sankaran  437,026 437,123 

Mr.Vikas Rathee  1,250,000  - 

Mr. Nishant Fadia  -  400,000 

Ms. Kirti Desai  130,426  - 
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(ii) Relative of Key Management Personnel

in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Remuneration 

Mrs.Sumati Ganesh 579,961 886,725 

in `

  As at 
June 30,  2015 

 As at 
June 30, 2014 

Balance Outstanding – Remuneration Payable 

Mrs.Sumati Ganesh  33,515  55,886 

(iii) Enterprises owned or signifi cantly infl uenced by key management personnel or their relatives

in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Rent

Blooming Bud Coaching Private Limited  33,600,000  39,300,000 

Deposit given

Blooming Bud Coaching Private Limited  -  5,000,000 

Capital advance repaid (net)

N2M Reality Private Limited  65,000,000  - 

Shares issued on preferential basis (including share premium)

Monsoon Studio Private Limited  1,199,999,996  - 

in `

  As at 
June 30,  2015 

 As at 
June 30, 2014 

Balance outstanding

Rent paid in advance

Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited  -  3,327,540 

Deposit

Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited  53,000,000  53,000,000 

Capital advance

N2M Reality Private Limited 265,000,000  330,000,000 
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(iv) Enterprises exercising signifi cant infl uence over the Company

in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Loan (repayments) / taken, net
Standard Chartered Bank  (470,549,031)  (225,804,703)
Finance costs

Standard Chartered Bank  29,303,040  133,742,944 
Premium on NCD
Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) Limited  316,158,001  343,176,024 
Interest income
Standard Chartered Bank  -  22,295 
Issue of equity shares (including share premium)
Reliance MediaWorks Limited  4,699,999,980  - 

in `

  As at 
June 30,  2015 

 As at 
June 30, 2014 

Balance outstanding
Loan outstanding
Standard Chartered Bank  151,718,825  622,267,856 
Bank Balance in current account
Standard Chartered Bank  4,954  4,954 
Non-convertible debentures
Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) Limited  1,901,000,000  1,901,000,000 
Premium on NCD accrued
Standard Chartered Private Equity (Mauritius) Limited  761,781,859  445,623,858 

 * Naresh Malhotra and Namit Malhotra (Promoters) have given personal guarantees individually / jointly and have pledged part of their shareholdings 
for borrowings obtained by the Group (Refer note 5 and 9).

27. Leases

in `

  As at 
June 30,  2015 

 As at 
June 30, 2014 

Lease Payments due within one year  709,342,365  170,943,557 
Lease Payments due later than one year and not later than fi ve years  2,459,396,727  414,751,413 
Lease Payments due later than fi ve years  6,296,848,308  - 

 9,465,587,400  585,694,970 

 Amount of lease rental charged to the Statement of Profi t and Loss in respect of non-cancellable operating leases is ` 859,434,212 (Previous period: 
` 144,612,902).

 The Company has taken certain premises on cancellable operating lease basis. The tenure of the lease ranges from 11 to 180 months. Amount of lease 
rental charged to the Statement of Profi t and Loss in respect of cancellable operating leases is ` 184,927,411 (Previous period: ` 422,245,707).
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28. Capitalization of expenditure
in `

 Year ended 
June 30,  2015 

 Period ended 
June 30, 2014 

Foreign currency loss /(gain)  11,935,746  54,937,657 

Employee benefi t expenses  771,616,459  115,776,382 

Direct overheads *  55,421,434  38,234,179 

Finance cost  3,489,252  6,875,577 

 During the period, the Group has capitalized the following expenses of revenue nature to the cost of intangible asset under development / capital work 
in progress and tangible assets. Consequently, expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of amounts capitalized by the Group.

 * Includes rent, electricity and security charges

29. Capital and other commitments
in `

  As at 
June 30,  2015 

 As at 
June 30, 2014 

i Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account net of advances, 
and not provided for:

 214,795,736  99,578,936 

 PFT and the promoters of the Company have agreed that neither PFT nor its subsidiaries will undertake any activities, as defi ned under Memorandum 
/ Articles of Association without obtaining consent of debenture holders in the Company, so long as at least 20% or more of the debentures issued by 
the Company are outstanding.

30. Contingent liabilities
in `

  As at 
June 30,  2015 

 As at 
June 30, 2014 

i Income Tax matt ers under dispute *
Relates to demands raised by the income tax authorities for various assessment years manily 
on account of disallowances of depreciation on computer based assets, additions under the 
Transfer Pricing provisions and Tax deducted at source (TDS) amounts

 69,410,252  73,808,523 

* in the above matt er, the Company is hopeful of succeeding and as such does not expect any 
signifi cant liability to crystalize.

ii Guarantees given by the Group  3,575,088,357  5,093,282,586 

iii Earn outs and performance linked consideration payable for business acquisitions  417,769,937  249,169,545 

iv PFL Plc is a member of a Group VAT registration and is jointly and severally liable for any debts 
by member of the registration

 -  7,687,434 

v Cummulative dividend on class A Convertible Redeemable Preferred Shares  235,326,952  107,647,467 

vi Disputed Cess Tax Demand pending with Deputy Commissioner, Navi Mumbai Municipal 
Corporation-Cess Department. The Company believes, being an SEZ unit it is fully exempt from 
payment of Octroi/Cess Tax as per Maharashtra IT-ITEs policy, 2009. The amount of Rs. 96 56 
175/- deposited, as Tax demand, for the purpose of admission of Appeal is refl ected as Short 
Term Loans and Advances.

 53,688,655  - 

vii Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts  583,422,280  - 
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31. Stock based compensation

 i. PFT has reserved issuance of 210,396 (Previous period 231,572) equity shares of ` 10/- each for off ering to eligible employees of the Company 
under Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP). 19,024 options were granted during the year. From options granted in previous periods 12,237 
were vested during the year (Previous period 4,880).

  The current status of the stock options granted to the Employees is as under:

Particulars Current year Previous period Current year Previous period

No. of outstanding options Weighted average exercise price

Outstanding at the beginning of the year/ period 217,865 60,645 2,683 263

Granted during the year/ period 19,024 169,067 2,745 2,847

Lapsed/ forfeited during the year/ period 49,730 11,847 2,757 263

Exercised during the year/ period - - -

Expired during the year/ period - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year/ period 187,158 217,865 2,359 2,683

Exercisable at the end of the year/ period 17,117 4,880 911 263

  For stock options outstanding as at June 30, 2015 the range of exercise price is ` 263 to ` 4,478 and weighted average remaining contractual life 
is 5.12

  Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year is ` 816.37

  Following are details with regard to determination of the fair value of stock options:

  Option Pricing Model used – Black-Scholes-Merton formula

  Weighted average share price – ` 2,488  per share

  Expected volatility – 10%

  Option life – 6 years

  Expected dividends – 0% yield

  Risk-free interest rate – 8.08% p.a.

  PFT has followed the intrinsic value method to account for the grant of stock options. Since the intrinsic value, being the diff erence between the 
Net Asset Value and the Exercise Price, is Nil, the grant of options does not have any fi nancial implications. Profi t and Loss impact for the year if 
Fair Value method is followed is ` 32,702,404.

 ii. PF London Group operates an equity-sett led, share-based compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for 
the grant of the options is recognized as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the 
fair value of the options granted.

  The charge for the period recognised in Statement of Profi t and Loss in respect of equity-sett led, share-based payments is ` Nil (Previous period: 
` Nil).
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  The following tables reconcile the number of share options outstanding and the weighted average exercise price:

For the period ended 30 June 2014
Options Weighted average 

exercise price

Number Pence

Outstanding at  April 01, 2013   1,000,287 7.00

Granted  - -

Forfeited - -

Exercised - -

Outstanding at June 30, 2014       1,000,287 7.00

Exercisable as at June 30, 2014  1,000,287 -

 iii. During fi scal year 2014, the Board of Directors of PFWNV and its Shareholders’ approved a share option plan and reserved 973,285 common 
shares for issuance thereunder. During fi scal year 2014, options totalling 408,586 ordinary shares were granted to certain executives and board 
members.

  Each share option converts into one ordinary share of PFWNV on exercise. No amounts are paid or payable by the recipient on receipt of the 
option. The options carry neither rights to dividends nor voting rights. Options may be exercised at any time from the date of vesting to the date 
of the expiry.

  The following share-based payment arrangements were in existence during the current year:

Number Grant date Expiry date Exercise Price per share Fair Value at Grant date

Grants 408,586 1-Jul-2013 1-Jul-2023 $ 13.13 $ 8.92-9.31

  61,250 options were fully vested at the date of grant and 347,336 options vest over a period of 16 to 36 months aft er their date of the grant and 
expire within ten years from the date of grant, or ninety days aft er the resignation of the optionee, if not exercised.

  Fair value of share options granted in 2014

  The weighted average fair value of the share options granted during the fi scal year 2014 is $9.12. Options were priced using a black scholes option 
pricing model. Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has been adjusted based on management’s best estimate for the eff ects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations. Expected volatility is based on historical sale price volatility of comparable 
companies in the industry over the expected life of 5.19 – 5.81 years.

  Inputs into the model were as follows:

Grant date share price $ 13.13

Exercise price $ 13.13

Expected volatility 85%

Expected life 5.19 – 5.81 years

Dividend yield -

Risk free interest rate 1.39 – 1.66%
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  Movement in shares options during the year

  The following reconciles the shares options outstanding at the beginning and the end of the year/ period:

2015 2014

Numbers of 
Options

Weighted average 
exercise price

Numbers of 
Options

Weighted average 
exercise price

Balance at beginning of year/ period 408,586 $ 13.13 - -

Granted during the year/ period - - 408,586 $ 13.13

Forfeited during the year/ period - - - -

Exercised during the year/ period - - - -

Expired during the year/ period - - - -

Balance at the end of the year/ period 408,586 $ 13.13 408,586 $ 13.13

  The average remaining contractual life in respect of share based options is 365 days (FY 14: 609 days). 

32. On April 04, 2014, Prime Focus Technologies Inc. (PFT Inc.) completed acquisition of Sample Digital Holdings LLC (DAX) for a base consideration of $ 9.1 
million in a performance linked transaction. PFT Inc. acquired all the assets of DAX for an upfront payment with balance payable over 3 years primarily 
from cash fl ows from the North American operations.

33. On April 07, 2015, 23,076,923 and 90,384,615 equity shares were allott ed to Monsoon Studio Private Limited and Reliance MediaWorks Limited 
(“RMW”), respectively, on a preferential basis at ` 52 per share. Of these 67,307,692 equity shares were issued to Reliance MediaWorks Limited as 
consideration other than cash towards the transfer of its fi lm and media services business to the Company in accordance with the Business Transfer 
Agreement dated November 19, 2014 between the Company, RMW and Reliance Land Private Limited. In accordance with the said Agreement, the 
transfer of BOT Agreement pertaining to the Studio including other business assets and liabilities related to the BOT Agreement (“Studios”) and debt 
facilities of ̀  2,000,000,000 was to be eff ected post receipt of the necessary additional approvals. Upon receipt of the necessary statutory approvals, 
with eff ect from the closing date of April 07, 2015, net assets of fi lm and media services business were transferred to and recorded by the Company 
at the fair value of ` 4,017,690,352 as determined by the independent valuers. However, pending receipt of the additional approvals, the Studios’ and 
the debt facilities have not been transferred to and recorded by the Company. Presently, the Company has recorded a capital reserve of ` 517,690,352 
being the diff erence between considerations for the transaction being ` 3,500,000,000 and fair value of the net assets transferred as detailed below. 
Post receipt of additional approvals, the Studios’ and the debt facilities will be recorded at fair value with the diff erential being adjusted against the 
capital reserve.

 In `

Tangible Assets 1,017,268,879

Investments in Subsidiaries -

Loans to Subsidiaries 3,055,700,000

Net Current Assets (55,278,527)

Net assets acquired on slump sale basis 4,017,690,352
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34. Eff ective July 1, 2014 the Group acquired the entire outstanding shareholding of Double Negative Holdings Limited (“DNEG” a UK based VFX business 
house) for a consideration of ` 3,896,739,271 of which `1,918,698,846 has been discharged in the form of cash and issue of equity shares in Prime 
Focus World NV of ` 795,964,603 and balance ` 1182,075,821 is deferred consideration payable over 4 years. Double Negative Holdings Limited is 
operating through its subsidiaries Double Negative Limited, Double Negative Singapore PTE Limited, Double Negative Canada Productions Limited 
and Double Negative Films Limited in the business of providing visual eff ects services. For the current year, the Company has consolidated the results 
of Double Negative Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries for the entire year.

35. The Group acquired the 2-dimensional to 3-dimensional conversion business of Gener8 Digital Media Corp Limited for a consideration of ̀  505,798,294 
of which ` 171,478,914 was paid in cash and balance `334,319,380 is deferred consideration payable over 4 years. The business was acquired by a 
Vancouver based subsidiary of the Group incorporated during the current year – Gener8 Digital Media Services Limited. The Company has recognized 
the purchase eff ective March 23, 2015.

36. The Board of Directors of the Company vide circular resolution passed on March 24, 2014 inter-alia, considered and approved the extension of the 
previous fi nancial year i.e. (April 01, 2013 to March 31, 2014) of the Company by a period of three (3) months in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 210 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the previous period’s fi nancial year of the Company was for a period of fi ft een (15) months i.e. 
commencing from April 01, 2013 and ending on June 30, 2014 and therefore the fi nancial results of the last fi nancial period are not comparable with 
fi nancial results of the current year which are for twelve (12) months.

37. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defi ned under the MSMED Act, 2006

 The Company does not have suppliers who are registered as micro, small or medium enterprise under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 as at June 30, 2015. The information regarding micro, small and medium enterprises has been determined on the basis of 
information available with the management.

38. Previous period’s fi gures have been regrouped where necessary to confi rm to current year’s classifi cation.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Ramakrishnan  Sankaranarayanan
 Whole-time Director Chairman (Executive Director) Managing Director
 DIN: 00004597 and Chief Executive Offi  cer DIN: 02696897
  DIN: 00004049

Place : Mumbai Vikas Rathee Parina Shah
Date   :  September 16, 2015 Chief Financial Offi  cer Company Secretary
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FORM AOC-1 (Pursuant to fi rst proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
Statement containing salient features of the fi nancial statement of subsidiaries/Associate Companies/ Joint Venture

in `

Sr. No. Name of the Subsidiary Prime Focus 
Technologies 

Private Limited

Prime Focus 
Technologies UK 

Limited

Prime Focus 
Technologies, Inc.

Prime Post Europe 
Limited

DAX Cloud ULC Prime Focus 
International 

Limited

Prime Focus Visual 
Eff ects Private 

Limited

1 Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned, if 
diff erent from the holding 
company's reporting period

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15

2 Reporting currency and 
Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant 
Financial year in the case of 
foreign subsidiaries.

INR GBP USD GBP CAD GBP INR

1.00 92.7564 62.53 92.7564 49.45 92.7564 1.00

3 Share capital (`)  170,100,000  1  1,000  9,276  4,945  2,260,212,637  100,000 

4 Reserves & surplus  386,622,892  (30,615,800)  73,538,432  32,935,664  20,725,354  (620,925,584)  (50,082)

5 Total assets  2,537,141,573  59,721,652  1,312,561,155  293,731,358  22,473,417  3,477,179,737  90,400 

6 Total liabilities  1,980,418,681  90,337,451  1,239,021,724  260,786,418  1,743,118  1,837,892,685  40,482 

7 Investments  -  -  4,945  -  -  -  - 

8 Turnover  1,564,035,173  68,970,571  515,608,172  149,024,200  29,327,369  284,913,897  - 

9 Profi t before taxation  77,408,376  (17,372,483)  (41,048,453)  34,942,382  20,237,681  (46,528,437)  (3,039)

10 Provision for taxation  26,578,986  1,028,849  541,762  -  -  -  - 

11 Profi t aft er taxation  50,829,390  (18,401,332)  (41,590,215)  34,942,382  20,237,681  (46,528,437)  (3,039)

12 Proposed Dividend  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

13 % of shareholding 75.50% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

in `

Sr. No. Name of the Subsidiary GVS Soft ware 
Private Limited

PF Motion 
Pictures Limited 

PF Investments 
Limited

Prime Focus 3D 
India Private 

Limited

PF Overseas 
Limited

PF World Limited Prime Focus 
Luxembourg 

S.a.r.l.

Gener8 Digital 
Media Services 

Limited

1 Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned, if 
diff erent from the holding 
company's reporting 
period

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15
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2 Reporting currency and 
Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant 
Financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries.

INR INR USD INR USD USD USD CAD

1.00 1.00 62.53 1.00 62.53 62.53 62.53 49.45

3 Share capital (`)  100,000  500,000  2,688,790  500,000  6,253  5,267,433,405  1,083,019,600  225,656,377 

4 Reserves & surplus  (111,151)  (600,027)  (2,792,852)  (9,019)  (2,185,159)  30,934,380  (118,430,315)  24,116,062 

5 Total assets  2,300  500,000  1,296,091  500,000  336,099  5,718,732,007  2,168,291,451  787,796,254 

6 Total liabilities  13,451  600,027  1,400,152  9,019  2,515,005  420,364,222  1,203,702,165  538,023,815 

7 Investments  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   

8 Turnover  -  -  -  -  -  34,618,921  278,978  134,987,512 

9 Profi t before taxation  (2,936)  (4,765)  (934,648)  (9,019)  (839,764)  33,428,014  (35,249,617)  33,222,139 

10 Provision for taxation  -  -  -  -  -  -  243,696  -   

11 Profi t aft er taxation  (2,936)  (4,765)  (934,648)  (9,019)  (839,764)  33,428,014  (35,493,312)  33,222,139 

12 Proposed Dividend  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -   

13 % of shareholding 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

in `

Sr. No. Name of the Subsidiary Prime Focus 3D 
Cooperatief U.A.

Prime Focus 
World N.V.

Prime Focus 
International 
Services UK 

Limited

Prime Focus 
North America 

Inc.

1800 Vine Street 
LLC

Prime Focus 
Creative Services 

Canada Inc.

Vegas II VFX 
Limited 

Prime Focus VFX 
USA, Inc.

1 Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned, if 
diff erent from the holding 
company's reporting 
period

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15

2 Reporting currency and 
Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant 
Financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries.

USD USD GBP USD USD CAD USD USD

62.53 62.53 92.7564 62.53 62.53 49.45 62.53 62.53

3 Share capital (`)  2,167,828,496  4,323,802  -    312,650  -    35,483,798  -  625.00 

4 Reserves & surplus  (7,388,857)  7,072,495,019  (1,580,069,142)  4,226,747,727  725,098,750  (548,626,346)  41,919,277  (15,904,036)

5 Total assets  2,167,977,317  11,895,628,546  1,384,568,812  6,869,556,574  1,396,654,846  1,661,196,212  920,581,044  -   

6 Total liabilities  7,537,679  4,818,809,725  2,964,637,954  2,642,496,197  671,556,096  2,174,338,760  878,661,767  15,903,411 
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7 Investments  2,167,591,445  11,661,100,609  -    -    -    -    -  -   

8 Turnover  -  -    1,075,078,444  3,777,966  67,397,335  1,065,777,911  (330,979,614)  -   

9 Profi t before taxation  (1,040,374)  95,164,146  (1,278,743,426)  (349,276,491)  16,108,607  8,197,673  (28,960,840)  -   

10 Provision for taxation  -  3,599,681  -    1,458,779  -    -    -  -   

11 Profi t aft er taxation  (1,040,374)  91,564,465  (1,278,743,426)  (350,735,270)  16,108,607  8,197,673  (28,960,840)  -   

12 Proposed Dividend  -  -    -    -    -    -    -  -   

13 % of shareholding 100.00% 76.33% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

in `

Sr. No. Name of the Subsidiary Prime Focus 
ME Holdings 

Limited

Prime Focus 
China Limited

Prime Focus 
(HK) Holdings 

Limited

Prime Focus 
World Creative 

Services Private 
Limited

Double 
Negative 
Holdings 
Limited

Double 
Negative 
Limited

Double 
Negative 

Singapore Pte 
Limited

Double 
Negative 
Canada 

Productions 
Limited 

Double 
Negative Films 

Limited

1 Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned, if 
diff erent from the holding 
company's reporting 
period

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-15

2 Reporting currency and 
Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant 
Financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries.

USD USD USD INR GBP GBP SGD CAD GBP

62.53 62.53 62.53 1.00 92.7564 92.7564 45.4985 49.45 92.7564

3 Share capital (`)  429,822  18,759 81  3,478,000  464  6,493  45  49  - 

4 Reserves & surplus  1,166,363,428  (185,767)  16,417,657  2,289,861,650  (19,293) (1,745,260,837)  1,108,039,582  (9,079,804)  - 

5 Total assets  1,380,254,974  9,398,259  100,286,575  3,035,540,502  15,305  4,242,095,951  1,125,679,566  363,658,074  - 

6 Total liabilities  213,461,724  9,565,267  83,868,837  742,200,852  34,134  5,987,350,295  17,639,939  372,737,829  - 

7 Investments  -    -    -    -    6,679  -  -  -    - 

8 Turnover  84,415,500  337,515,053  744,159  962,706,648  -  3,717,228,790  1,150,887,161  89,892,745  - 

9 Profi t before taxation  (48,717,461)  152,727,427  (14,046,123)  1,530,899  -  (750,512,504)  364,482,805  (9,973,090)  - 
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10 Provision for taxation  -    38,181,857  -    255,115  -  -  29,963  -    - 

11 Profi t aft er taxation  (48,717,461)  114,545,570  (14,046,123)  1,275,784  -  (750,512,504)  364,452,842  (9,973,090)  - 

12 Proposed Dividend  -    -    -    -  -  -  -  -    - 

13 % of shareholding 100.00% 70.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Notes:
i. Gener8 India Media Services Limited, Reliance MediaWorks (Mauritius) Limited and Reliance Lowry Digital Imaging Services Inc were acquired on April 07, 2015, hence are not part of 

table above

ii. Subsidiaries and step-down subsidiaries sold / liquidated during the year

 Prime Focus London Plc, UK   VTR Media Services Limited

 VTR Media Investments Limited   PF Broadcast & Commercial Limited

 Busy Buses Limited    Prime Focus Broadcast Limited

 Clipstream Limited   VTR Post Limited

 VTR Media Investments 2 Limited  Prime VFX Limited 

 DMJM Film Limited   PF Broadcast VFX Limited

 Prime Focus Productions 5 Limited  PF Film UK Limited

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
 

 Naresh Malhotra Namit Malhotra Ramakrishnan  Sankaranarayanan
 Whole-time Director Chairman (Executive Director) Managing Director
 DIN: 00004597 and Chief Executive Offi  cer DIN: 02696897
  DIN: 00004049

Place : Mumbai Vikas Rathee Parina Shah
Date   :  September 16, 2015 Chief Financial Offi  cer Company Secretary
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PRIME FOCUS LIMITED

Registered Offi  ce: Prime Focus House, Linking Road, Khar (West), Mumbai- 400052  Tel: +91 22 6715 5000
Website: www.primefocus.com ; Email Id: ir.india@primefocus.com

CIN:  L92100MH1997PLC108981

PROXY FORM
Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration Rules) 2014

Name of the member(s) : …………………………………………………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………….

Registered Address : …………………………………………………………………………….…………………………………………………………………………………….

E-mail ID : …………………………………………………………………………….…………………………………………………………………………………….

Folio No. / Client ID No.  : …………………………………………………………………………….…………………………………………………………………………………….

I/We, being the Member(s) of ………………………… shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:

1. Name : ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… Email ID : …………………………………………………

 Address :…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

 ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

 Signature : …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………, or failing him/her

2. Name : ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… Email ID : …………………………………………………

 Address :…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

 ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

 Signature : …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………, or failing him/her

3. Name : ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… Email ID : …………………………………………………

 Address :…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

 ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

 Signature : …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

 as my/ our proxy to att end and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 18th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, 24th December, 
2015 at 10.00 a.m. at 9thFloor, ‘True North’, Plot no. 63, Road no. 13, Opp. Hotel Tunga Paradise, MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400093 and at any adjournment thereof in 
respect of such resolutions as is indicated below:

Sr. No. RESOLUTIONS Vote (Optional*)
Ordinary business For Against Abstain

1 To receive, consider and adopt :
a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended June 30, 

2015, together with the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.
b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended June 30, 

2015 and the Report of Auditors thereon.
2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ramakrishnan Sankaranarayanan (DIN:02696897), who retires by 

rotation and being eligible off ers himself for re-appointment
3 Ratifi cation of Statutory Auditors’ Appointment

Special Business
4 Appointment of Dr. (Mrs.) HemalathaThiagarajan (DIN: 07144803) as an Independent Director
5 Appointment of Mr. Amit Bapna (DIN: 00008443) as a Non-Executive Director
6 Off er or invite for Subscription of Secured / Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures and/or other Debt 

securities on private placement basis
7 Approval for existing Material Related Party Transactions

Signed this __________________day of _______________2015                            Signature of the shareholder : ………………                Signature of Proxy holder(s) : …………………….

Notes:
1. This form of proxy in order to be eff ective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Offi  ce of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
2. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statements and Notes, please refer the Notice of Annual General Meeting.
3. The Company reserves its right to ask for identifi cation of the proxy.
4. The proxy form should be signed across the Revenue Stamp as per specimen signature(s) registered with the Company/depository participant.
5. *It is optional to put ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all resolution, your proxy will be entitled 

to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

Affi  x
Revenue

Stamp
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